COMMITTEE Guelph
AGENDA P

Making a Difference

TO Audit Committee
DATE June 12, 2013

LOCATION Council Chambers, Guelph City Hall, 1 Carden Street
TIME 5:00 p.m.

DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE
THEREOF

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES - April 17, 2013 Open Meeting Minutes
PRESENTATIONS (Items with no accompanying report)
a) None.

CONSENT AGENDA

The following resolutions have been prepared to facilitate the Committee’s
consideration of the various matters and are suggested for consideration. If the
Committee wishes to address a specific report in isolation of the Consent Agenda,
please identify the item. The item will be extracted and dealt with separately. The
balance of the Audit Committee Consent Agenda will be approved in one resolution.

ITEM CITY DELEGATIONS ToBE
PRESENTATION

AUD-2013.7 « Evan McDade, V4

2012 Draft Audited Partner, Deloitte

Consolidated Financial * Jennifer Gruber,

Statements and External Manager, Deloitte

Post-Audit Report

AUD-2013.8 « Tara Johnston, 4

2012 Unconsolidated Manager, Financial

Financial Statements and City | Reporting &

Financial Highlights Accounting

Resolution to adopt the balance of the Audit Committee Consent Agenda.

ITEMS EXTRACTED FROM CONSENT AGENDA

Once extracted items are identified, they will be dealt with in the following order:
1) delegations (may include presentations)
2) staff presentations only
3) all others.
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CLOSED MEETING

THAT the Audit Committee now hold a meeting that is closed to the public with
respect to:

1. 2012 Draft Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and
External Post-Audit Report
S. 239 (2) (a) of the Municipal Act - security of the property of the
municipality

2. Letter of Recommendation - 2012 Audit Results
S. 239 (2) (@) of the Municipal Act - security of the property of the
municipality

ADJOURNMENT

NEXT MEETING - September 18, 2013
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Making a Difference

Minutes of the Audit Committee
Held in the Council Chambers, Guelph City Hall on
Wednesday, April 17, 2013 at 5:00 p.m.

Attendance
Members: Chair Guthrie, Councillors Furfaro and Wettstein
Absent: Mayor Farbridge and Councillor Kovach

Councillors: Councillors Bell, Findlay, Hofland and Van Hellemond

Staff: Ms. A. Pappert, Chief Administrative Officer; Mr. A. Horsman, Executive Director,
Finance & Enterprise/Chief Financial Officer; Ms. L. Alonzo, Internal Auditor; Mr.
D. McCaughan, Executive Director, Operations, Transit and Emergency Services;
Mr. M. Amorosi, Executive Director, Corporate & Human Resources; Mr. B.
Labelle, City Clerk; and Ms. D. Black, Council Committee Coordinator

Call to Order (5:00 p.m.)

Chair Guthrie called the meeting to order.

Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature Thereof

There were no disclosures.

Confirmation of Minutes

1. Moved by Councillor Furfaro
Seconded by Councillor Wettstein

That the open meeting and closed meeting minutes, as amended, of the Audit Committee held
on February 13, 2013 be confirmed as recorded.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Guthrie, Furfaro and Wettstein (3)
VOTING AGAINST: (0)
CARRIED

Consent Agenda
The following items were extracted:
AUD-2013.5 Additional Value For Money Audits 2013

AUD-2013.6 Internal Auditor Report - Commercial Vehicle Operator’s
Registration (CVOR) Fleet Audit
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April 17, 2013 Audit Committee

Extracted Consent Items
AUD-2013.5 Additional Value For Money Audits 2013

The Internal Auditor clarified that the Value for Money Audits are a comprehensive process to
find efficiencies, increase transparencies and/or validate current processes for benchmarking
savings, and not just addressing the potential of saving money.

2. Moved by Councillor Wettstein
Seconded by Councillor Furfaro

1. That the recommendations in report CAO-A-1304 dated April 17, 2013 and
entitled “Additional Value-For-Money Audits 2013” be approved.

Chair Guthrie stepped down and Councillor Wettstein assumed the Chair (5:50 p.m.)
Councillor Guthrie reassumed the Chair (5:53 p.m.)

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Guthrie, Furfaro and Wettstein (3)
VOTING AGAINST: (0)
CARRIED

AUD-2013.6 Internal Auditor Report - Commercial Vehicle Operator’s
Registration (CVOR) Fleet Audit

There was discussion with respect to the Auditor’'s recommendations and the staff response.
The Internal Auditor noted that an annual follow-up on completed audits would be undertaken
unless it was deemed prudent to do review the area sooner. The Internal Auditor indicated that
there were no concerns in relation to the staff response and that staff was working to resolve
the outstanding issues which had been identified.

3. Moved by Councillor Furfaro
Seconded by Councillor Wettstein

1. That the Internal Auditor Report — Commercial Vehicle Operator’s Registration
(CVOR) Fleet Audit report dated April 17, 2013 be received.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Guthrie, Furfaro and Wettstein (3)
VOTING AGAINST: (0)
CARRIED

Review of Draft Meeting Flow Guide

The Committee reviewed and provided feedback on a draft meeting flow guide developed in
accordance with the Standing Committee Terms of Reference.

Adjournment (6:06 p.m.)

7. Moved by Councillor Furfaro
Seconded by Councillor Wettstein
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April 17, 2013 Audit Committee

That the April 17, 2013 meeting of the Audit Committee be adjourned.
CARRIED

Blair Labelle - City Clerk
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONSENT AGENDA

June 12, 2013

Members of the Audit Committee.
SUMMARY OF REPORTS:

The following resolutions have been prepared to facilitate the Committee’s consideration of
the various matters and are suggested for consideration. If the Committee wishes to address
a specific report in isolation of the Consent Agenda, please identify the item. The item will be
extracted and dealt with immediately. The balance of the Audit Committee Consent Agenda
will be approved in one resolution.

A Reports from Administrative Staff

REPORT DIRECTION

AUD-2013.7 2012 DRAFT AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL Approve
STATEMENTS AND EXTERNAL POST-AUDIT REPORT

1. That Report FIN-13-23 entitled 2012 Draft Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements and External Post-Audit Report” be received.

2. THAT the 2012 Draft Audited Consolidated Financial Statements be

approved
AUD-2013.8 2012 UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Approve
AND CITY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

1. THAT the Report FIN-13-25 entitled "2012 Unconsolidated Financial
Statement and City financial highlights” be received.

attach.



Deloitte.

City of Guelph
Year-end communication
for the year ending December 31, 2012

June 12, 2013



Agenda

» Executive summary
 Audit risks and conclusions
» Communication requirements
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Audit scope and findings

Audit scope matters

Audit strategy and scope The audit planning and the preliminary risk assessment activities we conduct enable us to set the scope of our
audit and to design procedures tailored to that scope. Refer to our audit plan communicated on November 14,
2012.

Materiality Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements, including omissions, in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the
financial statement users. Judgments about materiality are made in the light of surrounding circumstances, and
are affected by our perception of the information needs of the financial statement users, and by the size or
nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both. We are responsible for providing reasonable assurance that
your consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement.

Canadian GAAS require that we determine performance materiality for purposes of assessing the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements and determining the nature, timing, and extent of
our audit procedures. Planning the audit solely to detect individually material misstatements overlooks the fact
that the aggregate of individually immaterial misstatements may cause the consolidated financial statements to
be materially misstated, and leaves no margin for possible undetected misstatements. Performance materiality
is set at a lower level than materiality, so that if misstatements are detected, we may nevertheless be able to
conclude with reasonable assurance that the uncorrected misstatements both in individually and in aggregate
does not exceed materiality.

Materiality levels are determined on the basis of consolidated results of operations. Our materiality for the year
ending December 31, 2012 was $6,000,000 (2011 - $6,000,000).

Audit risks In accordance with our audit plan, our procedures focused on the following significant risks:

» Accounts payable and accrued liabilities;

* Actuarially determined liabilities;

» Contingences;

* Council and Senior Management expenses;
- Estimates;

* Payroll;

* Reserves and reserve funds;

* Revenue/deferred revenue;

e Taxation revenue; and

» Tangible capital asset disposals.

We have summarized the results of our audit procedures for each of these risk areas in the following pages of
this report.
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Audit scope and findings (continued)

Audit scope matters
Group audit

We are auditors of all entities within the group, with the exception of The Elliott and Guelph Hydro Inc. which are audited
by KPMG. No restrictions have been placed on the scope of our audit. In performing the audit, we were given full and-
complete access to the accounting records, supporting documentation and other information requested.

Use of the work of experts

As planned, Deloitte and external experts assisted in the audit to the extent we considered necessary:

IT specialists Participated in evaluating internal controls and in using our computerized audit
applications.

Commodity Tax experts  Helped assess the adequacy of the City’s accounting for commodity taxes and related
balance sheet accounts.

Actuarial experts Helped assess the adequacy of the employee future benefit liability.

Significant difficulties
encountered in performing
the audit

None noted.

Audit results

In accordance with Canadian GAAS, our audit is designed to enable us to express an opinion on the fairness of the
presentation of the City of Guelph’s annual financial statements prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

Status of our audit

We expect to be in a position to render our audit opinion dated June 24, 2013 on the consolidated financial statements of
the City of Guelph following approval of the consolidated financial statements by Council and the completion of the
following outstanding procedures:

* Receipt of documentation from KPMG relating to the audit of Guelph Hydro Inc.;
* Receipt of minor file documentation items;

* Receipt of signed management representations letter;

* Receipt of legal update to audit report date; and

» Completion of the Engagement Quality Control review.

Fraud and illegal acts

Based on the procedures we performed as recommended by CAS 240, The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud
in an Audit of Financial Statements, we are not aware of any illegal acts or fraudulent events with respect to City of
Guelph during the year.
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Audit scope and findings (continued)

4

Audit scope matters
Significant events

As part of our audit process, we did not identify any significant events that were not in the normal course of
operations.

Significant accounting policies

We believe management’s selection of accounting policies to be appropriate under Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

City of Guelph’s significant accounting policies are set forth in Note 1 to December 31, 2012 consolidated financial
statements.

Management judgment and
accounting estimates

Significant accounting estimates are disclosed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Audit adjustments and uncorrected
misstatements

In accordance with Canadian GAAS, we request that all misstatements be corrected.

There were no audit adjustments and uncorrected misstatements noted in the current year.

Adjusted and unadjusted disclosure
deficiencies

In accordance with Canadian GAAS, we request that all disclosure deficiencies be corrected.

There were no disclosure deficiencies aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest
period presented, as all disclosure deficiencies detected in our audit have been corrected by management.

Disagreements with management

No disagreements with management.

Consultation with other
accountants

There were no consultations with other accountants relating to accounting to auditing matters that relate to the
December 31, 2012 consolidated financial statements.

Legal and regulatory compliance

Our limited procedures did not identify any areas of material non-compliance with the laws and regulations by the
City of Guelph.

Representations letter

A draft version of the representations letter to be signed by management is included in Appendix 3.

Conclusion

No restrictions have been placed on the scope of our audit. In performing the audit, we were given full and
complete access to the accounting records, supporting documentation and other information requested.

We intend to issue an unmodified audit report on the consolidated financial statements of the City of Guelph for the
year ended December 31, 2012 once the outstanding items referred to above are satisfactorily completed and the
consolidated financial statements are approved by Council.

A draft version of our Independent Auditor’s report is included in Appendix 1.

City of Guelph — Year-end communication
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Audit scope and findings (continued)

Other matters
Independence We have developed appropriate safeguards and procedures to eliminate threats to our independence or to
reduce them to an acceptable level.

As required under GAAS, we have reported all relationships and other relevant matters that, in our professional
judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and confirmed our independence to the
Audit Committee for the year ended December 31, 2012 in Appendix 2.

Independence ' We have developed appropriate safeguards and procedures to eliminate threats to our independence or to
reduce them to an acceptable level.

As required under GAAS, we have reported all relationships and other relevant matters that, in our professional
judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and confirmed our independence to the
Audit Committee for the year ended December 31, 2012 in Appendix 2.

Independence We have developed appropriate safeguards and procedures to eliminate threats to our independence or to
reduce them to an acceptable level.

As required under GAAS, we have reported all relationships and other relevant matters that, in our professional
judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and confirmed our independence to the
Audit Committee for the year ended December 31, 2012 in Appendix 2.
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Audit risks

Our audit plan identified certain areas that we refer to as significant audit risks. There have been no changes to these risks nor have any
additional risks been identified since our previous communication. The results of our audit work on these risks are set out below:

Areas of risk
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities

Our audit response

Tested disbursements subsequent to year-end to determine the
reasonableness of accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

Tested the supporting assumptions for accruals.

Reviewed the outcome of prior year estimates and accruals.

Our conclusion

e Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are
reasonable as at December 31, 2012 and are
properly reported in the financial statements.

Actuarially determined liabilities

Reviewed actuary report, including related assumptions.
Ensured appropriate accounting treatment has been applied.

Reviewed related financial statement note disclosure for accuracy
and completeness.

Communicated with actuary regarding our reliance on their report
for audit purposes.

e Actuarially determined liabilities are reasonable
as at December 31, 2012 and are properly
reported in the financial statements.

Contingencies

We were in contact with the City’s external law firms to obtain the
status of any outstanding claims and we reviewed the evaluation
of claims to ensure proper recognition.

e Disclosure is complete and accurate and
properly reported in the financial statements.

Council and senior management
expenses

Reviewed a sample of expense reports and VISA statements for
validity and proper approval.

e Expenses tested were in line with the City’s
expense policies.

Estimates e Tested the supporting assumptions for estimates. e Management estimates were determined to be
; ; . reasonable for the year ending December 31,
o Reviewed the outcome of prior year estimates and accruals. 2012
Payroll e Focused detail testing on payroll expenditures and accruals. e Payroll expense is reasonable for the year

Substantive testing performed on variances.

ending December 31, 2012.

6

City of Guelph — Year-end communication

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities.



Audit risks (continued)

Areas of risk
Reserves and reserve

Our audit response
o Performed substantive testing on the continuity and material

Our conclusion
e Reserve and Reserve Funds balances are

funds

transactions to determine if transfers were in accordance with Council
approvals and applicable legislative requirements.

reasonable as at December 31, 2012 and are
properly reported in the financial statements.

Revenue/deferred revenue

e Reviewed grants charges, contributions or other monies received
during the year to determine if the amount should have been recorded
as revenue or as deferred revenue.

Revenue and deferred revenue recorded in the
consolidated financial statements is reasonable
for the year ending December 31, 2012 and are
properly reported in the financial statements.

Taxation revenue

e Reviewed the City’s calculation of taxation for municipal purposes.
Received confirmation of assessment roll from the Municipal Property
Assessment Corporation (MPAC).

e Ensured that Management’s estimate of allowance for doubtful
accounts is reasonable.

Taxation revenue is reasonable for the year
ending December 31, 2012 and is properly
reported in the financial statements.

Tangible capital asset
disposals

o Reviewed disposal schedule prepared by management for

reasonability and tested selected transactions.

Reporting on tangible capital asset disposals is
properly reported for the year ending December
31, 2012.
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Communication requirements

Required communication

1.

Our responsibilities under GAAS.

Comments

See our audit plan which was communicated on
November 14, 2012.

2. Our audit strategy and scope, including our approach to auditing financial information of See our audit plan which was communicated on
components of the group audit and our planned involvement in work performed by component November 14, 2012.
auditors.
3. Management judgment and accounting estimates. Management judgments and accounting estimates are
reasonable — see comments on page 2.
4. Financial statement adjustments. There were no audit adjustments and no uncorrected
misstatements.
5. Uncorrected misstatements and disclosure deficiencies. There were no audit adjustments and no uncorrected
misstatements.
6. Significant accounting policies. See Note 1 to the 2012 consolidated financial
statements.
7. Alternative treatments for accounting policies and practices that have been discussed with No alternative significant accounting policies were noted.
management during the current audit period.
8. Our views about significant qualitative aspects of City of Guelph's accounting practices, Significant accounting practices — see page 2 of this
including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures. report.
9. Our responsibility for other information in documents containing audited financial statements We will review the annual report when provided by
(e.g., MD&A), any procedures performed, and the results. management.
10. Disagreements with management. None.
11. Our views about significant matters that were the subject of consultation with other There were no consultations with other accountants

accountants.

relating to accounting or auditing matters affecting the
December 31, 2012 consolidated financial statements.
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Communication requirements

Comments

Required communication
12.Major issues discussed with management prior to our retention.

None.

13. Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit.

None.

14.Material written communications between management and us.

Engagement letter dated November 14, 2012.

15. All relationships between City of Guelph and us that, in our professional judgment, may
reasonably be thought to bear on independence.

See Independence letter — Appendix 2.

16.A statement that, in our judgment, our engagement team and others in our firm as appropriate,
our firm itself and, when applicable, network firms have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence.

See Independence letter — Appendix 2.

17.1llegal or possibly illegal acts.

No fraud, errors or illegal acts noted.

18.Fraud or possible fraud identified through the audit process. None noted.

19. Significant transactions inconsistent with normal course of business, including related party None noted.
transactions.

20.Non-compliance with laws and regulations that come to the auditor’s attention. None noted.

21.Limitations placed on our scope. None.

22.Written representations the auditor is requesting.

Draft management’s representations letter — Appendix 3.
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STAFF Guélph
REPORT P

Making a Difference

TO Audit Committee
SERVICE AREA Finance & Enterprise
DATE June 12, 2013

SUBJECT 2012 Draft Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
and External Post-Audit Report

REPORT NUMBER FIN-13-23

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PURPOSE OF REPORT
The purpose of this report is to:
a) To present and review the City’s 2012 Draft Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements including the related entity statements;
b) To provide Council with the City’s external audit results as reported in
Deloitte’s 2012 Post-Audit Report; and
c) To present and review the 2012 Corporate Financial Dashboard

KEY FINDINGS
The City is proud to present the unqualified opinion from the external audit of
the 2012 consolidated financial statements.

The City’s corporate financial performance measures continue to be in a strong
position compared to industry benchmarks and averages. The City will look to
consider the two reserve and reserve fund indicators that have fallen below
target in the 2014 budget process.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

An unqualified opinion on the City’s Consolidated Financial Statements will assist
the City in obtaining a fair credit rating, as well as supporting grant funding
requests from certain organizations. Additionally, monitoring financial
performance measure trends enables the City to identify concerns early and
address them before there is any significant impact.

ACTION REQUIRED
That Report FIN-13-23 entitled "2012 Draft Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and External Post-Audit Report” be received; and

THAT the 2012 Draft Audited Consolidated Financial Statements be approved

RECOMMENDATION
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STAFF Guélph
REPORT P

Making a Difference

That Report FIN-13-23 entitled "2012 Draft Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and External Post-Audit Report” be received; and

THAT the 2012 Draft Audited Consolidated Financial Statements be approved

BACKGROUND

Annually, City Council is required to review and approve the City of Guelph Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements as required by the Municipal Act. The
Consolidated Financial Statements include the results of the following entities:

e Guelph Police Services Board

e Guelph Public Library Board

e Investment in Guelph Junction Railway

e Investment in Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc. (includes Guelph Hydro Inc.)
e The Elliott

« The Downtown Guelph Business Association

e 45.2% (2011 - 46.2%) of Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Although not specifically required by the Municipal Act, Audit Committee has also
requested City staff present unconsolidated financial statements as it would provide
more transparent and relevant information for Council members. The
unconsolidated financial statements with financial analysis and highlights are
included in FIN-13-25 - 2012 unconsolidated financial statements and financial
review.

The review and approval of the audited 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements
and the review of Deloitte’s Post-Audit Report satisfies the following Audit
Committee responsibilities as found in the 2013 Work Plan:

« Understand the scope of the external auditor's review of internal financial
control over financial reporting and obtain reports on significant findings and
recommendations, together with management’s responses and the timing of
the disposition of significant findings

« After consultation with the Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer and the external
auditors, gain a reasonable assurance, at least annually, of the quality and
sufficiency of the City’s accounting and financial personnel and other
resources

« Review with staff and the external auditors the result of the audit including
any difficulties encountered and all other matters required to be
communicated to the Committee under Generally Accepted Auditing
standards

« At the conclusion of the audit, consult with the external auditors, without the
presence of staff, regarding internal financial controls, compliance and the
fullness and accuracy of the City's consolidated financial statements
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Ensure the timely presentation of the external auditor's annual audit report
to Council

» Review significant accounting and reporting issues, including complex or
unusual transactions, highly judgmental areas and recent professional and
regulatory pronouncements and understand their impact on the financial
statements

+ Review the representation letter provided by staff to the external auditors

e Prior to the presentation of the annual financial statements to Council,
review the financial statements and consider whether they are complete,
consistent with information known to committee members and reflect
appropriate accounting principles

« Recommend to Council the approval and distribution of the annual
consolidated financial statements

REPORT
Throughout this report, please refer to Appendix A for references to the Draft

Consolidated Financial Statements. These are the statements that are required to
be approved by Council in accordance with the Municipal Act.

Overview of the City Reporting Entity - These Consolidated Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) Standards.
This reporting basis requires that in addition to the City’s departments, the
following entities are also included:

a) Guelph Police Services Board - fully consolidated

b) Guelph Public Library Board - fully consolidated

c) The Elliott - fully consolidated

d) The Downtown Guelph Business Association ("The BIA”) - fully consolidated

e) Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health Unit (“Public Health”)- 45.2%
(2011 - 46.2%) - proportionate consolidation

f) Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc. ("GMHI") (which wholly owns Guelph Hydro
Inc.) - modified equity basis

g) Guelph Junction Railway Company (*GIR"”)- modified equity basis

Fully consolidated means that the full financial statements of those entities have
been combined into the City’s statements and all inter-organizational transactions
have been eliminated. Proportionate consolidation means that only the City’s share
(45.2%) of Public Health’s results have been combined into the City’s statements
and all inter-organization transactions have been eliminated. Modified equity basis
means that the carrying value of the net assets of the investees are shown on the
face of the City’s Statement of Financial Position as an investment and any gain or
loss is shown on the Statement of Operations. There are no inter-organizational
eliminations.
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Making a Difference

Review of the Consolidated Entities’ Financial Statements - In the preparation of
the Consolidated Financial Statements, staff have reviewed each of the financial
statements of the consolidated entities. The following is a summary of financial
highlights of these entities and any relevant information that resulted from each of
their entity’s audits. Although this report includes analysis of the GJR and GMHI
results, the financial statements have not been attached in an appendix as Council
will receive these financial statements at the Annual General Meetings of each
company.

a) The Elliott - Appendix C - The Elliott is required to be consolidated into the
City of Guelph financial statements due to their financial reliance on the City.
The Elliott’s financial statements are audited by KPMG LLP and have a year
end date of March 31 (rather than the City’s reporting date of December 31).

e The City has a loan receivable outstanding from the The Elliott of
$18.8M relating to debentures issued on behalf of this organization by
the City.

» The City also guarantees the Elliott’s term loan and line of credit of
$1.4M

« In addition to these debts, The Elliott also carries a bankers
acceptance SWAP type loan of $2.45M and has an obligation under a
capital lease of $162K.

e The Elliott had a net deficit of $1.03M (2011 - deficit of $1.2M) and a
net surplus excluding amortization of $704K (2011 surplus of $485K)

e Upon review of the Elliott’s external audit findings report also included
in Appendix C, it was noted that KPMG continues to monitor Going
Concern as a potential risk due to the net liability position and the
increased deficit year over year. Management have concluded that
based on the net positive increased cash position of $353K there is no
risk of Going Concern in the next fiscal year.

« The City and The Elliott have restructured the promissory note
agreement in early 2013 that will also help to address this going
concern risk in future years.

b) Public Health - Appendix D - Public Health is audited by Deloitte and Touche
and the City consolidates 45.2% (2011 - 46.2%) of its operations as the
City’s proportionate share of this entity. In 2012, the proportionate share of
Public Health was realigned to the 2009 census to ensure each obligated
municipality’s results are reflective of current population. Please refer to
Note 18 of the City’s consolidated financial statements for a summary of
Public Health’s financial results. Highlights from these statements include:

e Public Health has reported a net surplus of $3.6M (2011 - $1.5M)
which is reasonable given the level of capital investment that occurred
in 2012 (Public Health had capital revenues received from the Ministry
and the obligated municipalities which are included in income but the
expense has been capitalized).
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e During 2012, Public Health spent $2.97M on capital which is an
increase over 2011 of $691K. This high level of capital spending is
related to the two new facilities being built in Guelph and Orangeville.

« In 2012, Public Health successfully applied for and was approved to
received $1.28M of funding towards these new facilities that will
directly reduce the obligated municipalities cost. These funds are in
addition to $87K received in 2011. Public Health will continue to apply
for additional funding from the Ministry through project completion.

« In December 2012, the three obligated municipalities and Public
Health signed a financing agreement to fund the capital cost of
building the two new facilities. Note disclosure has been included in
both the Public Health statements and the City’s financial statements.
This financing agreement will protect the City’s investment over the 10
year financing period in case of any unexpected changes in legislation.

c) The BIA - Appendix E - The Downtown Guelph Business Association is a
“business improvement area” of the City and is consolidated because it is
financially dependent on the City for funding its operations. City staff have
identified concerns with the 2012 financial results and are scheduled to meet
with BIA management to further discuss these statements and their financial
position. Highlights from these financial statements include:

e The BIA has reported a 2012 deficit of $54K (2011 -deficit of $3.5K)
which is the 3™ consecutive year of deficits.

» The BIA used the majority of their reserves to fund the 2012 deficit
and as a result liquidated their investments and much of their surplus
cash. Total cash and investment position went from $149.6K in 2011
to $22.7K in 2012.

« The BIA has unbudgeted revenues and expenses related to an
advertising campaign in 2012 but these do not impact the net deficit.
The BIA deficit is driven mostly by overspending compared to budget
on consulting and member communication expenses.

d) GMHI and GJR - both of these entities have a formal process for reporting
their financial statements to Council in accordance with each Corporation’s
shareholder declaration. For this reason, their financial statements have not
been included in the attached appendices. A summary of each of these
entity’s financial results can however be found in Notes 5 and 6 to the
consolidated financial statements. GIR'’s financial statements are audited by
Deloitte and Touche and Guelph Hydro Inc.’s statements (100% owned by
GMHI) are audited by KPMG LLP. Highlights relating to these two entities
include:

e GIR realized a net income of $275K (2011 - $228K) which represents
the increase in the City’s investment in this company. GIJR took on
debt in 2011 and 2012 totaling $1.6M in order to expand trackage for
new business. This capital work has been completed and GJIR is now
repaying this debt over the next 5 - 7 years.

PAGE 5



STAFF Guélph
REPORT P

Making a Difference

e GIR continued to repay the loan payable to the City on schedule with
an outstanding balance of $94K at December 31, 2012.

 GMHI consolidated net income totaled $1.06M (2011 - $1.89M) less
the dividend payment of $2.95M to the City in 2012 represents a
decrease in the City’s investment in GMHI of $1.89M. Due to a change
in timing of the dividend payment in 2012, the City received a dividend
for both the 2011 and 2012 fiscal years.

External Auditor Report - Appendix B - The external audit results as prepared by
Deloitte and Touche are included in Appendix B. In addition to this report, specific
audit findings related to the City’s financial reporting controls and processes along
with recommended solutions have been included in a closed meeting report FIN-13-
24 as these are limited by the Municipal Act Section 239(a) - “Protection of City
Property”.

The external audit is substantially complete except for the items as listed in on
page 2 of Appendix B “Status of our audit”. Given the timing that is required by the
Generally Accepted Auditing Standards, some of these items are required to be
completed after the financial statements have been approved, which is the date
Council approves the statements (expected to be June 24, 2013). These
outstanding items include obtaining an update on the legal status of outstanding
claims as disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements, obtaining management’s
representation with respect to the financial statements, as well as receiving back
certain confirmations from the City’s actuary and KPMG LLP.

Reserve and Reserve Fund Transfers — Included in these consolidated financial
statements are a number of reserve and reserve fund transfers related to the
allocation of the year end operating surplus that have yet to be approved by
Council. If Council does not approve these transfers as recommended in reports
FIN-13-26, the City of Guelph consolidated financial statements will change from
the current presentation.

2012 Corporate Performance Measures Dashboard -Appendix F — The City’s
corporate performance measure dashboard shows that the City continues to show
strong ratings in debt, tax collections and capital reserves. There is however
caution raised once again that the city’s tax-supported contingency reserves are
underfunded and need to be replenished. Using reserves to balance any given
year’s budget is not a sustainable practice.

CORPORATE STRATEGIC PLAN
2.1 - Build an adaptive environment for government innovation to ensure fiscal and

service sustainability.
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2.3 - Ensure accountability, transparency and engagement.

DEPARTMENTAL CONSULTATION
None noted

COMMUNICATIONS
Staff have met with the Communications department to coordinate a

communication plan.

ATTACHMENTS
Appendix A: 2012 Draft City of Guelph Consolidated Financial Statements

Appendix B: 2012 External Audit Findings Report

Appendix C: The Elliot 2012 Audited Financial Statements & External Audit Finding
Report

Appendix D: Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health Unit 2012 Audited Financial
Statements

Appendix E: The Downtown Guelph Business Association 2012 Audited Financial
Statements

Appendix F: 2012 Corporate Financial Performance Measures Dashboard
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Original Signed by: Original Signed by:
Report Author: Reviewed By:

Tara Johnston Katrina Power

Manager, Financial Reporting & General Manager, Finance
Accounting 519-822-1260 ext. 2289

katrina.power@gquelph.ca

Original Signed by:

Recommended By:

Al Horsman

Executive Directory, CFO, Finance
& Enterprise Services
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Al.Horsman@guelph.ca
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Deloitte LLP

4210 King Street East
Kitchener ON N2P 2G5
Canada

Tel: 519-650-7600
Fax: 519-650-7601
www.deloitte.ca

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the
City of Guelph

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the City of
Guelph, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2012, and the
consolidated statements of operations and accumulated surplus, in net financial assets and cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accountmg licies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Fina ‘Statements

Management is responsible for the preparatlon an sentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance wuh Canadian

We conducted our audit in accordaneé with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. :



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Corporation of the City of Guelph as at December 31, 2012 and the results of its
operations, change in its net financial assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

June 24, 2013

Kitchener, Ontario
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City of Guelph

Consolidated statement of financial position

as at December 31, 2012
(000's)
2012 2011
$ $
Financial assets
Cash 47,953 33,096
Investments (Note 4) 116,006 115,234
Taxes receivable 5,353 7,940
Accounts receivable 28,604 34,505
Loans and notes receivable 900 1,315
Investment in Guelph Junction Railway Inc. (Note 5) 6,225 5,950
Investment in Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc. (Note 6) 76,367 78,260
281,408 276,300
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 41,543
Accrued interest payable 794
Vacation and other employee benefits payable 5,575
Developer agreement deferred revenue (receivable) (88)
Other deferred revenue 11,069
Deferred contributions (Note 7) 25,785
Employee future benefits (Note 9) 26,568 27,546
Net debt (Note 10) 112,012 121,355
Obligation under capital lease (Note 11) 162 134
Landfill post-closure liability (Note 12) 5,050 5,700
Other long-term liablities (Note 13) 396 -
234,574 239,413
Net financial assets 46,834 36,887
Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (No 966,325 937,545
Inventory 1,967 2,162
Prepaid expenses 1,672 565
969,964 940,272
Contingencies (Note 20)
Commitments and guarantees (Note 21)
Accumulated surplus (Note 15) 1,016,798 977,159

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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City of Guelph

Consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus
year ended December 31, 2012

(000's)
2012 2012 2011
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 23)
$ $ $
Revenues
Taxation
Property taxation (Note 3) 185,110 184,138 174,260
Property taxation - Downtown Guelph Business Association 424 424 412
Penalties and interest on taxes 1,413 1,319 1,590
186,947 185,881 176,262
User charges 77,856 79,609 74,339
Contributed subdivision assets - 20,744 9,901
Contributions
Government of Canada 6,199 4,115 13,540
Province of Ontario 48,572 54,816
Municipal 3,054 3,346
Developers 9,930 16,556
Other 834 1,871
166,858 174,369
Other
Investment income 4,170 2,567
Donations 328 600 578
Sales of equipment, publications 3,926 4,955 5,210
Recoveries 2,918 11,011 6,954
Licences and permits 2,736 2,811 2,742
Provincial Offenses Act revenues 3,580 3,813 3,652
Other fines 960 874 745
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets® . . 4,193 642 5,853
income (loss) from Government Busifiess Enter - (1,618) 617
20,744 27,258 28,918
Total revenues 357,465 379,997 379,549
Expenses
General government 23,847 22,040 18,954
Protection services 68,999 68,977 64,871
Transportation services 49,443 58,074 52,096
Environmental services 63,861 65,971 63,202
Health services 22,054 22,411 21,458
Social and family services 43,373 43,773 41,091
Social housing 18,457 17,200 17,291
Recreation and cultural services 35,678 36,651 33,143
Planning and development 5,732 7,097 5,592
Total expenses 331,444 342,194 317,698
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year 26,021 37,803 61,851
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 977,159 977,159 914,075
Adjustments (Note 2) - - (978)
Adjustment: Interest earned on reserves and reserve funds 1,340 1,836 2,493
Less: Minority interest in Health Unit tangible capital assets - (282)
Accumulated surplus, end of year 1,004,520 1,016,798 977,159

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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City of Guelph

Consolidated statement of change in net financial assets

year ended December 31, 2012

('000's)

2012 2012 2011

Budget Actual Actual

{Note 23)

$ $

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year 26,021 37,803 61,851
Amortization of tangible capital assets 44,000 41,192 37,467
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (93,542) (49,797) (95,905)
Contributed subdivision assets - (20,744) (9,901)
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (4,193) (642) (5,853)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets - 1,211 10,066
Minority interest in Health Unit tangible capital assets - (282)
Adjustment in accumulated surplus (Note 2) - (978)
Interest earned on reserves and reserve funds 1,836 2,493
Change in inventory 195 290
Change in prepaid expenses (1,107) (84)
Increase (decrease) in net financial assets for the year 9,947 (836)
Net financial assets, beginning of year 36,887 36,887 37,723
Net financial assets, end of year 10,513 46,834 36,887

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this
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City of Guelph
Consolidated statement of cash flows
year ended December 31, 2012

(000's)
2012 2011
$ $
Operating activities
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year 37,803 61,851
ltems not affecting cash:
Amortization of tangible capital assets 41,192 37,467
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (642) (5,853)
Contributed subdivision assets (20,744) (9,901)
Allowance on asset backed investment (369) (155)
Unrealized loss (gain) on interest rate swap contracts (129) 414
Loss (income) from Government Business Enterprises 1,618 (617)
Employee future benefit expenses (978) 1,690
Landfill post-closure recovery (650) (300)
Interest earned on reserves and reserve funds 1,836 2,493
Changes in non-cash working capital:
Taxes receivable 2,587 (459)
Accounts receivable 5,901 5,436
Developer agreement receivable/deferred revenue 1,999 916
Inventory 195 290
Prepaid expenses (1,107) (84)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (12,377) (2,378)
Accrued interest payable (52) 17
Vacation and other employee benefits 93 154
Other deferred revenue 1,505 733
Other long-term liabilities 396 -
Cash provided by operating . 58,077 91,714
Capital and investing ac
Acquisition of tangible capital.assets (49,797) (95,905)
Minority interest in Health Unit tangi - (282)
Proceeds from disposal of tangible capital assets 1,211 10,066
Change in loans and notes receivable 415 3)
Net investment acquisitions (403) (41,944)
Cash used by capital and investing (48,574) (128,068)
Financing activities
Proceeds from debt issuance 10,220 47,500
Repayment of debt principal (19,563) (23,424)
Net change in obligation under capital lease 28 134
Net change in deferred contributions 14,669 1,513
Cash provided by financing 5,354 25,723
Increase (decrease) in cash for the year 14,857 (10,631)
Cash, beginning of year 33,096 43,727
Cash, end of year 47,953 33,096

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

(3000’s)

1. Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the City of Guelph (the "City”) have been
prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the City are as follows:

Reporting entity

The consolidated financial statements reflect the financial assets, liabilities, operating revenues and
expenses and changes in investment in tangible capital assets of the reporting entity. The reporting
entity is comprised of those City functions or entities which have been determined to comprise a part of
the aggregate City operations based upon control exercised by the City, except for the City's
government businesses which are accounted for on the modified equity basis of accounting.

Consolidated entities

In addition to the City departments, the reporting entity includes i

Guelph Public Library Board

Guelph Police Services Board
Downtown Guelph Business Association
The Elliott

All interfund assets, liabilities, revenues and .expenses
ends March 31, which does not coincide
consolidated using the fiscal year ending Mar

been eliminated. The Elliott’s fiscal year
fiscal year end. The Elliott has been

Proportionately consolidated entitie

The City reports only its sha
partnerships in which it partic
Health Unit to the extent: :
other participants. 1n:2012, th
2009 census.

ities and results of operations of any government
articipates in the Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public
.2%) based on population, as stated in agreement with the
ionate share of each obligated municipality was realigned to the

Modified equity basis entities

The investments in Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc. and Guelph Junction Railway Company are
accounted for on a modified equity basis, consistent with the public sector accounting standards for the
treatment of government business enterprises. Under the modified equity basis, the business
enterprise’s accounting principles are not adjusted to conform to those of the City, and inter-
organizational transactions and balances are not eliminated. Under the modified equity basis of
accounting, the carrying value of the investment in subsidiaries is adjusted to reflect the City’s share of
the net asset change of the investee.

Basis of accounting

Accrual basis of accounting

Revenue and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting except for revenues generated
under the Provincial Offences Act which are accounted for on the cash basis. The accrual basis of
accounting recognizes revenues in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise
to the revenues; expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of
goods or services or the creation of an obligation to pay.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000’s)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of accounting (continued)

Taxes receivable and related revenues

Property tax billings are prepared by the City based on assessment rolls issued by the Municipal
Property Assessment Corporation ("MPAC”). Tax rates are established annually by the City Council,
incorporating amounts to be raised for local services and amounts the City is required to collect on
behalf of the Province of Ontario in respect of education taxes. A normal part of the assessment
process is the issuance of supplementary assessment rolls, which provide updated information with
respect to changes in property assessment. Once a supplementary assessment roll is received, the City
determines the taxes applicable and renders supplementary tax billings.

Taxation revenues are recorded at the time the tax billings are issued. Assessments and the related
property taxes are subject to appeal. Tax adjustments as a result of appeals are recorded as a
reduction of tax revenue when the result of the appeal process is reasonably certain. The City is entitled
to collect interest and penalties on overdue taxes and these ues are recorded in the period the

Reserves and reserve funds

e in reserves and reserves funds for future
aring and the current year earned interest

Certain amounts, as approved by City Cou
operating and capital purposes. Reserve Fu
is accounted for as an adjustment within accl

developer contributions and ot
services or expenditur f
recognized in the fisca

Tangible capital ass

(i) Tangible capital assets are:r;eborded at cost, which includes all amounts that are directly attributable
to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of
the tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated lives as follows:

Land improvements - 20 to 75 years
Buildings -10 to 75 years
Machinery and equipment - 3 to 25 years
Vehicles -5 10 15 years
Sanitary sewers infrastructure - 50 to 80 years
Storm sewer infrastructure - 15 to 80 years
Transportation infrastructure - 20 to 80 years
Waterworks infrastructure - 510 80 years

The City has various capitalization thresholds, so that individual tangible capital assets of lesser
value are expensed, unless the assets have significant value collectively (pooled assets). Examples
of pools are desktop and laptop computers, police equipment, traffic signals, streetlights, and fire
equipment.

(it Land purchased for service delivery purposes is recorded as a tangible capital asset at cost. Any
land cost premium incurred or discount received related to expropriation will be included as part of
the asset to be constructed and amortized over its’ useful life.

(iii) Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recognized at their fair value at the date of
receipt, and correspondingly recognized as revenue in that period. Similarly, contributions of assets
to a third party are recorded as an expense equal o the net book value of the tangible capital asset
as of the date of transfer.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000°’s)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of accounting (continued)

Tangible capital assets (continued)

(iv) Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which transfer substantially all of the
benefits and risks incidental to ownership of the asset are accounted for as capital leases. All other
leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are charged to
expenses as incurred.

Employee future benefit obligations

The cost of future benefits earned by employees is actuarially determined using the projected benefit
method prorated on service and assumptions of mortality and termination rates, retirement age and
expected inflation rates.

amortized on a straight-line basis
date of the amendment. Actuarial
flerences between the actual and
sed to determine the accrued
% of the benefit obligation is

Past service costs from plan amendments, if any, are deferred
~ over the average remaining service life of active employees
gains and losses on the accrued benefit obligation a
expected experience and from changes in the actuaria

amortized over the average remaining service life of ¢

Government transfers

ts in the period in which the events giving
uthorized, any eligibility criteria have been

Government transfers are recognized in the fin
rise fo the transfer occur, providing.that.the transf
met, and reasonable estimates of.

Investment income

Investment income e
period earned. In

Use of estimates

The preparation of the fi I statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.
Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include valuation allowance for asset
backed investments, valuation allowances for receivables, certain accrued liabilities and obligations
related to employee future benefits and the carrying value of tangible capital assets. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.

Future accounting changes

Effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2012, all governments will be required to adopt
Public Sector Accounting Board Handbook (“PSAB”) Section 3410 Government Transfers. This
standard provides guidance to governments for the accounting and reporting of government transfers
from both the transferring government and the recipient government in the financial statements.

Effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2014, all governments will be required to adopt
PSAB Section 3260, Liability for Contaminated Sites. This standard provides guidance on how to
account for and report a liability associated with the remediation of contaminated sites, defines which
activities would be included in the liability for remediation, establishes when to recognize and how to
measure a liability for remediation and provides guidance on financial statement presentation and
disclosure.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2012
($000°s)

Significant accounting policies {continued)
Future accounting changes (continued)

Effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2015, all governments will be required to adopt
PSAB Section 2601, Foreign Currency Translation, PSAB Section 3450 Financial Instruments and
PSAB Section 1201 Financial Statement Presentation. This standard provides guidance on how to
account for and report on financial instruments and related revenue and expenditures and also provides
guidance on financial statement presentation and disclosure.

The City is currently in the process of evaluating the potential impact of adopting these standards.

2, Restatement of 2011 comparative figures

During the 2012 year, it was determined that a certain reserve fund has external restrictions and should

be recorded as deferred contributions.

The total impact of correcting this item in the 2011 comparativ

2011
As
reported  Adjustment restated
$ $ $
Deferred contributions (24,500) (1,285) (25,785)
Licences and permits revenue (3,049) 307 (2,742)
Accumulated surplus, beginni (914,075) 978 (913,097)
Accumulated surplus, end.of yea (978,444) 1,285 (977,159)
3. Taxation revenue
a) Taxation collected on behalfo :yschool boards
The net taxation levies collected on behalf of the school boards are comprised of the following:
2012 2011
$ $
Taxation 60,879 61,644
Payments in lieu 2 2
60,881 61,646
Requisitions {60,881) (61,646)

Net levy for the year

Included in accounts receivable are levies owed
accounts payable and accrued liabilities - $307).

from the school boards totaling $316 (2011. -
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2012
($000°s)

3. Taxation revenue (continued)

b) Taxation revenue by major tax class

2012 Taxes - own Payments. in Supplem- Rel?ates & 2012 Total
purpose lieu entary taxes Write-offs

$ $ $ $ $

Residential 113,358 13 2,858 (122) 116,107
Mulit-Residential 12,933 - - {163) 12,770
Commercial 30,202 4,279 1,423 {948) 34,956
Industrial 19,030 131 256 (1,342) 18,075
Pipelines 500 - 1 - 516
Farmiands 12 - 10 22
Managed Forests 2 - - 2
Other 24 1,666 - 1,690
Total tax revenue 176,061 (2,565) 184,138
Taxes -0 upplem- Rebates & Write 2011 Total

entary taxes offs
$ $ $
Residential 2,729 (276) 109,100
Mulit-Residential 343 (294) 13,514
Commercial 1,069 (343) 32,460
Industrial 316 (1,319) 17,090
Pipelines 3 - 489
Farmlands 1 - 12
Managed Forests 2 - - - 2
Other - 1,606 - (13) 1,593
Total tax revenue 166,290 5,754 4,461 (2,245) 174,260
4. Investments
Investments are recorded at cost. The cost and market values are as follows:

2012 2011

Market Cost  Market Cost

$ $ $ $

Short-term investments 58,061 57,755 67,029 66,933

Long-term investments 59,482 58,251 48,735 48,301
117,543 116,006 115,764 115,234
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000’s)

4. investments (continued)

In 2009, a restructuring plan was implemented to convert frozen short-term asset-backed commercial
paper to long-term notes of various classes with terms matching the maturity of the underlying assets.
As a result of the exchange, the City recorded the new carrying value (increase of $64) but recognized
the highly speculative nature of any ultimate payment of principal at maturity by booking a provision for
impairment. The impairment is recorded net of the cost of the long-term investments and is estimated to
be 18% of the investment cost or $373 (2011 - 18% or $743).

5. Investment in Guelph Junction Railway Company

The following table provides condensed supplementary financial information for the Guelph Junction
Railway Company (the “Railway”) for the year ended December 31:

Financial position

Current assets 1,028 1,591
Property, plant and equipment 8,166 6,855
Total assets 9,194 8,446
Current liabilities 759 843
Long-term debt 1,274 678
Deferred capital contributions 936 975
Total liabilities 2,969 2,496
Net assets 6,225 5,950
Results of operations
Revenues 2,087 1,699
Operating expen 1,812 1,471
Net income 275 228
Retained earnings, begi 5,950 5722
Retained earnings, en 6,225 5,950

Related party transactions

The City pays certain expenses and receives certain revenues on behalf of the Railway for which the
Railway reimburses the City periodically through the year. During the year, these net expenses
reimbursed to the City amounted to $1,483 (2011 - $339). Included in accounts receivable is an amount
owing from the Raillway of $343 (2011 - $287) related to the reimbursement of these current year net
expenditures. Additional payments in 2012 of $50 (2011 - $50) were made to the City to repay the
amount owing from prior years. The total amount owing to the City at year end is $95 (2011 - $145) and
is included as part of loans and notes receivable.

The Railway also paid the City $23 (2011 - $22) in office rent and administration fees. These
transactions were made in the normal course of business and have been recorded at the exchange
amounts.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000°s)

6. Investment in Guelph Municipal Holding Inc.

The City of Guelph owns 100% of Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc.(*GMHI") which owns 100% of the
shares of Guelph Hydro Inc (*GHI”), which in turn owns 100% of Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc.
and 100% of Envida Community Energy Inc.. The following table provides condensed supplementary

financial information for GMHI for the year ended December 31:

2012 2011
$ $
Financial position
Current assets 50,057 61,966
Property, plant and equipment 130,798 125,185
Intangible assets 314 275
Deferred charges 40 40
Future income taxes 6,885 5,993
Total assets 188,094 193,459
Current liabilities 24,933 28,516
Customer deposits and deferred revenue 13,509 13,723
Long-term debt 65,237 65,350
Employee future benefits 8,048 7,610
Total liabilities 111,727 115,199
Total shareholder's equity 48,576 48,576
Net assets 27,791 29,684
Total investment 76,367 78,260
Results of operation
Revenues 147,542 155,917
Cost of sales 119,872 127,385
Operating expenses 26,738 25,631
Income taxes {125) 1,012
Total expenses 146,485 154,028
Net income 1,057 1,889
Retained earnings, beginning of year 29,684 29,295
Dividends (2,950) {(1,500)
Retained earnings, end of year 27,791 29,684

Related party transactions

GHI pays certain expenses and receives certain revenues on behalf of the City related to customer
water billings for which GHI remits to the City bi-monthly. During the year, these net revenues received
amounted to $44,478 (2011 - $41,417). Amounts owing to the City related to these transactions total
$8,613 (2011 - $8,108) and are included in accounts receivable.

Dividend income was received from the Company of $2,950 (2011 - $1,500) and is also reported as part
of investment income. These transactions were made in the normal course of business and have been
recorded at the exchange amounts.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000’s)

7. Deferred contributions

The following funds have statutory restrictions and as such are classified as deferred contributions:

Beginning Ending

balance 2012 2012 balance

2012 inflows Outflows 2012

$ $ $ $

Development charges 17,008 19,619 9,070 27,557
Grants 6,961 10,107 6,413 10,655
Other 1,816 435 9 2,242
25,785 30,161 15,492 40,454

The development charges are restricted for use to fund g
accordance with the Development Charges Act. The defeire
provincial gas tax funds, infrastructure stimulus fun
replacement funds. Each of the grants has a specified

h related capital expenditures in
ts include federal gas tax funds,
federal public transit funds and Ontario bus
of restrictions that outlines how the funds can

ved for parkiand dedication as restricted

- 1,818) members of its staff. The plan is a defined
ment benefit to be received by the employees based

a multi-employer plan, on behalf o
benefit plan which specifies the,a;
on the length of service and
for all plan assets.

The amount contrib
reported as an expen

As at December 31, 2
agreement.

As at December 31, 2012 the OMERS plan is in a deficit position of $9.9 billion (2011 - $7.3 billion),
which will be addressed through temporary contribution rate increases, benefit reductions, and
investment returns.

9. Employee future benefits

Employee future benefits are current costs of the City to its employees and retirees for benefits earned
but not taken as at December 31, and consist of the following:

2012 2011

$ $

Workplace Safety and Insurance ("WSIB") 3,867 3,549
Sick leave 8,288 10,222
Post retirement benefits 14,413 13,775
26,568 27,546
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000°’s)

Employee future benefits and other liabilities (continued)
a) Liability for Workplace Safety & Insurance (“WSIB”)

The City is a Schedule Il employer under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act. As a Schedule I
employer, the City assumes the liability for any award made under the Act. A comprehensive actuarial
valuation of the future liability for WSIB benefits was conducted as at December 31, 2009 and has been
extrapolated to estimate the liability for the 2010 through 2012 period. The next required valuation will
be as of December 31, 2012.

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in estimating the City’s WSIB liabilities are as follows:

¢ Discount rate 5% (2009 - 5%)

¢ Expected future WSIB payments per lost time injury 52% (2009 - 61%)

o Health care inflation CP1 plus 4% (2009 - CPI plus 4%)
¢ WSIB Administration Rate 2% (2009 - 25%)

¢ Lost time injury count

46 (2009 - 36)
Information about the City’s WSIB liability is as follows:

2012 2011

$ $

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of yea 4,153 3,949
Current service cost 735 712
Interest 208 198
Benefits paid (737) (706)
Accrued benefit obligation, end: 4,359 4,153
Unamortized net actuarialloss (492) (604)
3,867 3,549

Information about th penses recognized in the period are as follows:

2012 2011

$ $

Current period benefit cost 735 712
Amortization of net actuarial loss from December 31, 2009 15 15
Amortization of net actuarial loss from December 31, 2006 97 97
Interest expense 208 198
1,055 1,022

A reserve in the amount of $2,246 (2011 - $2,203) has been accumulated to fund this liability.
b) Liability for sick leave

Under the sick leave benefit plan, unused sick leave can accumulate for certain employees and these
employees may become entitled to a cash payment when they leave the City’s employment.

A comprehensive actuarial valuation was completed as of December 31, 2010 and the next required
valuation will be as of December 31, 2013.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000°’s)

9. Employee future benefits and other liabilities (continued)
b) Liability for sick ieave (continued)

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in estimating the City's sick leave liabilities are as follows:

o Discountrate 4.75% (2009 - 5%)
+ [nflation rate 2% (2009 - 2%)
o Future salaries 3.5% per year (2009 — 3.5%)
Information about the City’s sick leave liability is as follows:
2012 2011
$ $
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 12,401 9,353
Current service cost 982 919
Interest 591 561
Plan amendment (2,777) -
Net actuarial loss - 2,403
Benefits paid (894) (835)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 10,303 12,401
Unamortized net actuarial loss (2,015) (2,179)
8,288 10,222

During 2012, the CUPE 241,
eliminated the accumulated ~
valuation for sick leave p]ans as of December 31 2012. This plan amendment resuited in
a reduction to the sick i

19 6 collective bargaining umons ratmed a new contract that

Information about the

2012 2011

$ $

Current period benefit cost 982 919
Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss 164 168
Plan amendment (2,777) -
Interest expense 591 561
(1,040) 1,648

There are currently reserves totaling $7,701 (2011 - $10,446) available to fund this liability.

¢) Post retirement benefits

The City provides dental and health care benefits between the time an employee retires under OMERS,
or retires at a normal retirement age, up io the age of 65.

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in estimating the City's liabilities are as follows:

» Discountrate 4.75% (2009 — 5.0%)

e  Consumer price index 2.0% (2009 - 2.0%)

e Prescription Drugs Trend Rate 7.67% reducing 4.0% per year to reach 4.0% per
year starting in 2019 (2009 - no change)

e Dental and other Medical Trend Rates 4.0% (2009 - 4.0%)
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000’s)

9.

10.

Employee future benefits and other liabilities (continued)
c) Post retirement benefits (continued)

Information about the City’s employee post retirement benefits are as follows:

2012 2011

$ $

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 15,250 14,812
Current service cost 670 627
Interest 720 697
Benefits paid (875) (886)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 15,765 15,250
Unamortized net actuarial loss (1,352) (1,475)
14,413 13,775

Information about the City’s employee future benefit exp

2012 2011

$ $

Current period benefit cost 670 627
Amortization of net actuarial los 123 123
Interest expense 720 697

Net debt

a) The balance of the net debt reported on the consolidated statement of financial position is comprised

of the following:

2012 2011
$ $
Total debt incurred by the City
including those incurred on behalf of related organizations
and outstanding at the end of the year amount to 112,012 122,035
Less: debt recoverable from school boards - (680)
Net debt at the end of the year 112,012 121,355
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

(3000’s)

10.

Net debt (continued)

b) The net debt is comprised of the following components:

2012 2011
$ $
Operating line of credit - bearing interest at prime 800 580
Demand loan - interest only at 3.7%, maturing in 2012 - 10,000
Debentures - repayable at rates ranging from 0.095% to 5.237%
and maturing from 2014 through 2031 89,151 97,601
Long-term loans - repayable at rates ranging from prime to 6.38%
and maturing from 2015 through 2025 19,607 10,601
Banker's acceptance, interest at 4.83% fixed through a swap
transaction, plus a stamping fee of 1.25% for a total of 6.08%
repayable guarterly, maturing 2015 with option to refinangefo
an additional ten years, net of transaction costs ‘ 2,454 2,573
112,012 121,355

During 2012, the City repaid the maturing
floating rate five-year term facility of the sam

During 2011, the City issued a $486;
This debenture was issued 16 fund $

¢) Thenetdebtis repayab the following periods and will be funded through the following revenue

sources:
General taxation User pay and Deyelgper Total

other contributions
$ $ $ $
2013 6,342 2,724 1,708 10,774
2014 6,501 1,961 1,781 10,243
2015 6,711 3,937 1,817 12,465
20186 6,924 1,460 1,854 10,238
2017 16,540 1,483 1,926 19,949
Thereafter 34,799 9,474 4,070 48,343
77,817 21,039 13,156 112,012
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000’s)

10.

11.

12.

13.

Net debt (continued)

d) Total charges during the year for net debt are as follows:

2012 2011

$ $

Principal repayments 19,563 23,424
Interest 4,552 4,599
24,115 28,023

Obligation under capital lease:

A consolidated entity of the City has financed certain equipment thretigh a capital lease arrangement as
follows:

2012 2011
$ $

2012 - 40
2013 55 40
2014 55 39
2015 55 39
2016 55 -

2017 5 -

Total minimum lease pa 225 158
Less amount representin (63) (24)
Present value of ne 162 134
Interest of $13 (2011 - $ ing to capital lease obligations has been included in interest expense.

Landfill post-closure liability

The City owns one landfill site. This landfill site was closed in 2003. The liability for post-closure costs
has been reported on the consolidated statement of financial position. The liability was calculated based
upon the present value of estimated post-closure costs discounted to December 31, 2012 at a factor of
3.5% (2011 - 5.0%) per annum. Post-closure care is estimated to be required for 35 years from the
date of site closure.

The estimated expenditures for post-closure care as at December 31, 2012 is $5,050 (2011 - $5,700).

There are no reserve funds established to fund this liability as at December 31, 2012, as the City is
funding this cost annually through the budget process.

Other long-term liabilities

The City offers three tax-increment based grant (“TIBG”) programs in the areas of Heritage
Redevelopment, Brownfield Redevelopment and Downtown Development.

The tax-increment based grants are approved individually by Council and require annual reporting and
property tax payment by the applicant into order for the City to pay a grant installment. The agreements
have two identifiable phases: i) grant pre-approval and construction phase; ii) grant approval and
payment phase.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000’s)

13.  Other long-term liabilities

The City has two TIBG agreements that are in the grant payment phase:

a) TIBG Agreements

2012

$

Heritage Redevelopment 396

b) The TIBG's are repayable in the following periods:

$
2013 98
2014 98
2015 98
2016 98
2017 2
Thereafter 2
396
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000°’s)

14. Tangible capital assets

2012
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Cost of year Additions Disposals of year
$ $ $ $
Land and land improvements 68,363 4,756 (10) 73,109
Buildings 256,853 11,672 (491) 268,034
Machinery and equipment 109,992 18,553 41 128,586
Assets under capital lease 162 65 - 227
Vehicles 56,291 7,640 (1,289) 62,642
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 250,937 (2) 260,988
Storm water 169,823 - 180,998
Transportation 341,805 - 373,491
Waterworks 195,512 - 220,659
Assets under construction - 29,336
(1,751) 1,598,070
Balance, b Balance, end
Accumulated amortization ortization Disposals of year
$ $ $
Land and land improvements 649 - 4,217
Buildings 10,133 (290) 71,141
Machinery and equipmen ,953 7,226 185 83,364
Assets under capital le: 32 36 - 68
Vehicles 29,048 5,157 (1,075) 33,130
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & wi 120,396 4,196 (2) 124,590
Storm water 42,146 2,944 - 45,090
Transportation 179,459 6,819 - 186,278
Waterworks 79,835 4,032 - 83,867
591,735 41,192 (1,182) 631,745
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Net book value of year of year
$ $
Land and land improvements 64,795 68,892
Buildings 195,555 196,893
Machinery and equipment 34,039 45,222
Assets under capital lease 130 159
Vehicles 27,243 29,512
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 130,541 136,398
Storm water 127,677 135,908
Transportation 162,346 187,213
Waterworks 115,677 136,792
Assets under construction 79,542 29,336
937,545 966,325
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000’s)

14. Tangible capital assets (continued)

2011
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Cost of year Additions Disposals of year
$ $ $ $
Land and land improvements 38,915 33,015 (3,567) 68,363
Buildings 192,993 63,894 (34) 256,853
Machinery and equipment 106,534 3,472 (14) 109,992
Assets under capital lease - 162 - 162
Vehicles 60,462 2,502 (6,673) 56,291
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 246,378 - 250,937
Storm water 163,535 - 169,823
Transportation 312,695 - 341,805
Waterworks 183,466 - 195,512
Assets under construction - 79,542
(10,288) 1,529,280
Balance, end
Accumulated amortization Disposals of year
$ $
Land and land improvements (2) 3,568
Buildings (30) 61,298
Machinery and equipment (8) 75,953
Assets under capital leage - 32
Vehicles ‘ (6,035) 29,048
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & wast  water 115,905 4,491 120,396
Storm water o 39,519 2,627 42,146
Transportation 173,284 6,175 179,459
Waterworks 74,931 4,904 79,835
560,343 37,467 (6,075) 591,735
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Net book value of year of year
$ $
Land and land improvements 35,628 64,795
Buildings 138,232 195,555
Machinery and equipment 37,479 34,039
Assets under capital lease - 130
Vehicles 30,861 27,243
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 130,473 130,541
Storm water 124,016 127,677
Transportation 139,411 162,346
Waterworks 108,535 115,677
Assets under construction 128,784 79,542
873,419 937,545
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000°’s)

15. Accumulated surplus

The accumulated surplus is comprised of the following components:

2012 2011
$ $
Reserves set aside for specific purpose by Council:
for employee future benefits 11,571 14,594
for stabilization and contingency 11,395 10,522
for program related purposes 10,883 10,324
Reserves set aside by Downtown Guelph Business Association
for contingency 17 66
Reserves set aside by Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health
for contingency 185 187
Total reserves - Schedule 4 34,051 35,693
Reserve funds set aside for specific purpose by Cour
for capital financing purposes 113,660 105,697
Reserves set aside by Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph
for capital financing purposes ' 1,165 572
Total reserve funds - Schedule 4 114,825 106,269
Total reserves and reserve funds 148,876 . 141,962
Invested inwtangible capi 966,325 937,545
Investment in Guelph 76,367 78,260
investment in Guelph ay-Company 6,225 5,950
Operating fund {31,535) (26,248)
Unfunded liabilities
Net debt & obligation under capital lease (112,174) (121,489)
Employee future benefits and related liabilities (32,236) (33,121)
Landfill post closure liability (5,050) {5,700)
Total 867,922 835,197
Accumulated surplus 1,016,798 977,159

In accordance with the City’s policy for reserve funds, interest is earned on the average reserve fund
balance for the year at the average internal rate of return earned during the year. In 2012, $1,836 (2011
- $2,493) of interest was earned by the reserve funds and is recorded as a decrease in investment
income and an adjustment to accumulated surplus.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

(3000’s)

16. Contributions to other entities

Contributions made to other entities during the year greater than $100 are as follows:

2012 2011

$ $

Grand River Conservation Authority 1,429 1,395
Hospice Wellington 200 200
Guelph General Hospital 200 200
MacDonald Stewart Art Centre 160 175
Humane Society 611 459
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 1,579 1,529
4,179 3,958

17. Expenditures by type

The following is a summary of the current expen’!y tures ported on the consolidated statement of

operations and accumulated surplus by the t

2012 2011

$ $

Salaries, wages and em 163,609 155,216
Interest on net debt 7 4,565 4,610
Materials 43,063 36,665
Purchased services 28,569 24,261
Rents and financial ex 9,698 10,323
External transfers 51,498 49,156
Amortization of tangible capital assets 41,192 37,467
342,194 317,698
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000°’s)

18.

Government partnerships

The City’s share of 45.2% (2011 - 46.2%) the results of the Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health’s
financial activities for the year and its financial position at December 31 are included in the consolidated
financial statements using proportionate consolidation and include the amounts as follows:

2012 2011
$ $
Assets 2,784 2,105
Liabilities 1,567 1,389
Net financial assets 1,217 716
Tangible capital assets 2,303 834
Prepaid expenses 133 43
Balance 2,436 877
Accumulated surplus 3,653 1,593
Revenues 10,092 9,018
Expenditures 8,041 8,101
Excess of revenue over expenses 2,051 917
Accumulated surplus, beginning.o 1,593 949
Transfer to reserves 9 9
Minority interest in tangi - (282)

Accumulated surplu 3,653 1,593

During the year, th
partnership.

Financing Agreement:

On December 19, 2012, the City, the County of Wellington and the County of Dufferin (the “obligated
municipalities”) entered into a Financing Agreement with the Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Heath
(“Public Health”) to finance the cost of building two new Public Health facilities at Chanceliors Way,
Guelph, and Broadway, Orangeville.

The Financing Agreement allows for quarterly advances of capital by the obligated municipalities to
Public Health beginning in January 2013, until the completion of the new facilities. The total amount of
the advances will not exceed $24,400. Interest will be calculated annually, commencing on the 1st day
of the month following the date of substantial completion of both facilities. The interest rate will be 3.34%
per annum, and the term and amortization of the loan will be twenty years. Repayment to the obligated
municipalities will commence thirty days following certification by the project’s architect of substantial
completion of both facilities. The whole or any part of the capital financing under this agreement may be
prepaid at any time or times without penaity or bonus.
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19.

Shared service agreements

Certain programs as mandated by provincial legislation are managed by neighboring municipalities on
behalf of the City and certain programs are also managed by the City on behalf of other municipalities.

The City’s share of revenues and expenditures from social service programs managed by Wellington
County are as follows:

2012 2011
$ $
Revenues
Social housing 2,905 3,001
Child care - 7,483 7,254
Social services 13,179 12,774
23,567 23,029
Expenditures
Social housing 16,207 16,817
Child care 9,934 9,371
Social services 17,661 17,219
43,802 43,407
Net expenditures {20,235) (20,378)

The City’s share of ne
78%) and social service

Additionally, the City p:
operation of Wellington™T

The City’s share of reven expenditures from programs managed by the City are as follows:

2012 2011
$ $
Revenues
Land Ambulance 4,059 3,504
Provincial Offences Act 1,942 1,878
6,001 5,382
Expenditures
Land Ambulance 8,362 7,813
Provincial Offences Act 1,203 1,048
9,565 8,861
Net expenditures (3,564) (3,479)
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19.

20.

21.

Shared service agreements (continued)

The City’s share of net expenditures for land ambulance is 61% (2011 - 61%) and Provincial Offences
Act is 53% (2011 — 53%).

The Provincial Offences Act revenues are recorded on a cash basis due to regulatory restrictions. As at
December 31, 2012 there are $6,661 (2011 - $6,872) of over-due fines receivable and of this amount
$324 (2011 - $734) is considered uncollectable.

The City’s share of the net expenditures for all the above programs, are included in the consolidated
statement of operations and accumulated surplus.

Contingencies

a) In 2008, Urbacon Buildings Group Corp. served a Statement of Claim against the City pursuant to
the Construction Lien Act seeking damages in excess of $12,000 and punitive and other damages
totaling over $7,000. The City has filed a Statement )efense and Counterclaim claiming
damages in the amount of $5,000. The City has also filed s against other parties relating to this
action totaling $6,800. The frial on the issue of liabilit ced January 2013 and is still on-

going.
b) During 2010, a claim was filed against the.

development charge disputes. The matter is curr
for July, 2013.

¢) From time to time, the City may be in
Management assesses such claims and

seeking damages of $2,000 in relation to
going and the next court date is scheduled

or loss are made based on management’s
not provide for claims that are considered unlikely to

result in a significant loss
amount of loss cann

a)

rizing provision of such guarantee in favour of Guelph Community Sports.
The balance of the guaranteed facility is $588 as at August 31, 2012.

b) In February 2013, a settlement was reached regarding an appeal of the City’s development charge
by-law. The resulting settlement will require the City to refund development charges back to certain
developers; the amount of which is not yet finalized. This refund will result in a decrease to deferred
contributions in the year it is paid.

¢) The City has a financial commitment approximating $3,150 resulting from the Ministry of
Transportation’s initiative to expand GO train service into Guelph; terms of payment have not yet
been finalized.

d) The City has commitments totaling $2,050 (2011 - $802) resulting from agreements entered into as
part of the Heritage Redevelopment Grant Program. Grant expenditures will be recognized upon the
applicant meeting all the eligibility criteria.

e) The City has commitments totaling $3,821 (2011 - $3,527) resulting from agreements entered into
as part of the Brownfield Tax Increment Based Grant Program. Grant expenditures will be
recognized in the year of reassessment by MPAC and when all eligibility criteria have been met by
the applicant.

f) The City has commitments totaling $1,507 (2011 - nil) resulting from agreements entered into as part
of the Major Downtown Activation Grant Program. Grant expenditures will be recognized in the year
of reassessment by MPAC and when all eligibility criteria have been met by the applicant.
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21.

22,

23.

24,

Commitments and guarantees {continued)

g) The City has commitments under a variety of leases and agreements of which the longest expires on
June 18, 2088. The minimum lease payments over the next five years are as follows:

$

2013 888
2014 634
2015 477
2016 454
2017 431
2,884

h) Other obligations include:
MacDonald Stewart Arts Centre

The City has committed to operating grants for 201

Other community grants

The City has committed to providing vari
(2011 - $312).

Local Immigration Partnership

ons and accumulated surplus are the activities of the
] hich is a federally funded program for the purpose of
ity for immigrants by focusing efforts on employment services,
egration/inclusion and community services/programs. During
$228 (2011 - $243) of funding from Citizenship and Immigration
program.

2012, the City of
Canada related to the

Budget figures

Budgets are established to set tax rates or to finance projects which may be carried out over one or
more years. Budget figures have been translated to reflect changes in public sector accounting
standards on the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus by adjusting for
amortization of tangible capital assets, including the consolidated entities and excluding budgeted
amounts for the debt principal repayment and reserve transfers. Budget figures have not been audited.

Segmented information

The City of Guelph is a diversified municipal government institution that provides a wide range of
services to its citizens. For management reporting purposes, the City’s operations and activities are
organized and reported on in two groups: Operating Fund and Capital Fund. These funds were created
for the purpose of recording specific activities to attain certain objectives in accordance with special
regulations, restrictions or limitations. Within the operating fund, the City’s operations are further defined
into the Tax Supported and User Pay/Enterprise categories and then segregated in to five service area
pillars: Community & Social Services, Operations, Transit and Emergency Services, Planning & Building
and Engineering & Environment, Corporate & Human Resources, Finance & Enterprise.

Although City services are provided internally by these defined service areas, for financial reporting, the
City has chosen to remain consistent with the Ontario Financial Information Return (FIR) and the nine
functional areas that it prescribes. This will allow comparability between our Schedule of Segment
Disclosure (Schedules 1 and 2 attached) and several schedules on the FIR that require full segment
disclosure of operating expenditures and limited disclosure of operating revenues.
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24.

25.

Segmented information (continued)

The services that have been separately disclosed in the segmented information are defined by the
compositional requirements of the FIR as follows:

General Government
Governance (election management, Council, Council support, Office of the Mayor)

Corporate management (Office of the CAO, finance, corporate communications, legal, corporate
properties and real estate and information technology)

Protection services
Police services, fire services, 911 service, court operations, building and structural inspection,
parking enforcement, by-law enforcement and animal control

Transportation services

Roadways - including asphalt resurfacing and c sealing, line painting, sweeping, traffic

Health services

Land ambulance operations:
Social housing

Social housing pre
Social and family s

General assistance (Ontarig Works) and childcare programs, contributions to Wellington Terrace,
and The Elliot opera

Recreation and cultural services

Parks, recreational facilities, recreational programs, libraries, museums, River Run Centre,
Sleeman Centre and other cultural services

Planning and development services

Planning and zoning, Committee of Adjustment, tourism, economic development, and Downtown
Guelph Business Association operations

Comparative figures

Certain 2011 comparative figures have been reclassified in order to present them in a form comparable
to those for 2012.
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of segment disclosure - Schedule 1

year ended December 31, 2012

(Unaudited)
General Protection Transportation Environmental Health Social & Family Social Recreation &  Planning and
Government Services Services Services Services Services Housing Cultural Services  Development Total
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Revenues
Taxation 185,881 - - - - - - - - 185,881
User charges 252 959 11,888 51,089 32 8,324 - 6,141 924 79,609
Contributed subdivision assets 20,744 - - - - - - - - 20,744
Contributions 120 1,712 8,899 7,821 16,606 24,526 2,905 3,329 587 66,505
Other
Investment income 4,086 - . . 15 4,170
Donations - 35 - 527 - 600
Sales of equipment, publications - 80 1,422 15 4,955
Recoveries 476 445 - 934 153 11,011
Licences and permits 65 - - - - 2,811
Provincial offences act - - - - - 3,813
Other fines - - - - - 874
Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets 169 - - 677 - 642
Loss from Government Business Enterprises (1,618) - - ~ - (1,618)
210,175 33,410 2,905 13,030 1,694 379,997
Expenses
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 12,579 8,160 - 19,239 3,365 163,608
Interest on net debt 1,046 610 - 675 372 4,565
Materials 1,599 1,990 23 4,381 540 43,063
Purchased services 5,325 1,003 492 2,875 1,435 28,569
Rents and financial expenses 1,983 617 - 1,339 42 9,698
External transfers 1,592 1,325 - 28,767 16,665 900 765 51,498
Internal charges (5,435) 848 (5,620) 537 - 1,993 118 -
Amartization of tangible capital assets 3,351 2,999 11,546 2,089 20 5,249 460 41,192
22,040 68,977 58,074 43,773 17,200 36,651 7,097 342,194
Excess of revenues over expenses
{expenses over revenues) 188,135 (58,398) {29,573) (2,929) {5,750} 10,363) {14,295) {23,621) (5,403) 37,803
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of segment disclosure - Schedule 2

year ended December 31, 2011
{Unaudited)

General Protection Transportation Environmental Health Social & Family Social Recreation &  Planning and
Government Services Services Services Services Services Housing Cultural Services  Development Total
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Revenues
Taxation 176,262 - - - - - - - - 176,262
User charges 295 845 12,140 46,465 1 7,787 6,008 798 74,339
Contributed subdivision assets 9,901 - - - - - - - - 9,901
Contributions (94) 3,080 21,436 15,134 15,318 24,436 3,001 7,559 259 90,129
Other
Investment income 2,502 47 14 - - - 4 2,567
Donations - - - 33 - 494 5 578
Sales of equipment, publications - 3,879 - 86 - 1,210 13 5,210
Recoveries 103 469 9 433 - 1,049 200 6,954
Licences and permits 265 77 - - - - - 2,742
Provincial offences act - - - - - - - 3,652
Other fines - - - - - - - 745
Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets 372 (6) (29) - - - 5,983 5,853
Income from Government Business Enterprises 617 - - - - - - 617
190,223 065 15,313 32,775 3,001 16,320 7,262 379,549
Expenses
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 10,819 55,667 17,020 8,071 - 17,769 3,487 155,216
Interest on net debt 1,082 512 5 1,090 - 660 427 4,610
Materials 1,510 1,878 974 1,973 38 4,356 273 36,665
Purchased services 4,865 2,595 929 502 2,637 808 24,261
Rents and financial expenses 2,970 194 254 - 1,041 40 10,323
External transfers 1,949 1,246 - 26,895 16,730 486 358 49,156
Internal charges (6,979) 1,273 (2,837) 42 1 1,934 143 -
Amortization of tangible capital assets 2,738 1,506 11,316 1,837 20 4,260 56 37,467
18,954 64,871 52,096 41,091 17,291 33,143 5,592 317,698
Excess of revenues over expenses
{expenses over revenues) 171,269 (54,557) (13,820) 2,863 (6,145) (8,316) (14,290) (16,823) 1,670 61,851
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of net debt - Schedule 3

December 31,2012
('000's)
Bylaw Project description Term Maturity date Interest rates 2012 2011
$ $
Debentures:
17536 On behalf of the Elliott 10 15-Sep-14 2.75% t0 5.20% 593 868
18105 New City Hall 25 28-Aug-31 5.237% 16,815 17,323
18105 New POA Court 25 28-Aug-31 5.237% 4,743 4,886
18622 Social Services Building Renovation 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% 10 4.70% 1,753 2,004
18622 Police HQ Renovations 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% t0 4.70% 814 931
18622 Road Projects - Gordon, Victoria, Cardigan, Clair 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% t0 4.70% 3,443 3,937
18622 Bus Storage Area Expansion 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% t0 4.70% 118 135
18622 Organic Waste Facility - Roof Repairs 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% t0 4.70% 322 368
18898 Road Projects - Gordon, Victoria, Eramosa 10 25-Nov-18 095 % to 4.60% 554 624
18898 South End Station 10 25-Nov-19 095 % to 4.60% 4,851 5,467
18898 New City Hall 10 25-Nov-19 .085 % to 4.60% 1,674 1,887
18898 Land Purchase - Library 10 25-Nov-18 .095 % t0 4.60% 619 697
18898 Public Drop Off Facility 10 25-Nov-18 .095 % to 4.60% 157 177
18898 Transit Terminal Road Upgrades 10 25-Nov-18 095 % t0 4.60% 1,358 1,531
18898 Watermain Projects - Laird, Arkell, Scout Camp 10 25-Nov-19 095 % t0 4.60% 4,631 5,218
18898 Waste Water Treatment Plant Facility Upgrade 10 25-Nov-19 095 % to 4.60% 4,258 4,797
19284 Organic Waste Facility Composter Rebuild 10 9-Nov-21 1.25% t0 3.70% 25,424 28,000
19294 Civic Museum Renvovations 10 9-Nov-21 1.25% t0 3.70% 5,176 5,700
19294 On behalf of the Elliott 10 9-Nov-21 1.25% to 3.70% 11,850 13,050
89,151 97,601
Other loans:
The Elfiott Line of Credit Demand NA 800 580
The Elliott Bankers Acceptance - SWAP 10 25-Jun-15 2,454 2,573
The Elliot Term Loan 5 31-Mar-15 600 600
Mortgage RBC - Sleeman Centre 10 3,483 4,204
CIBC Loan - Sleeman Centre - SWAP 18.8 5,524 5,797
RBC interest only foan Demand - 10,000
TD Interest only loan - SWAP 5 10,000 -
Net Debt before the school boards 112,012 121,355
15648 Public School Board 4.50% to 6.20% - 451
15648 Separate School Board 4.50% t0 6.20% - 229
Less: Receivable from School Boards - (680)
Recoverable from Schoo! Boards - -
Total Net Debt 112,012 121,355
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4

December 31, 2012
('000's)
Code Description 2012 2011
$ $
Reserves:
For Employee Future Benefits:
100 Sick Leave - Fire 3,593 3,531
101 Sick Leave - Police 3,558 3,297
102 Sick Leave - Library 328 894
103 Sick L.eave - CUPE 241 222 2,724
330 WSIB 2,246 2,203
338 Land Ambulance Severance 440 345
212 Early Retiree Benefits 1,184 1,600
11,571 14,594
For Stabilization and Contingency:
131 Employee Benefit Stabilization 3,102 2,132
180 Tax Rate Stabilization 1,894 1,894
181 Water Rate Stabilization 2,114 2,114
182 Waste Water Rate Stabilization 2,342 2,242
198 Operating Contingency 902 902
191 Human Resource Contingency 1,041 1,238
11,395 10,522
For Program Related:
184 Insurance 1,593 1,328
119 Affordable Housing 637 653
122 Brownfield Strategy 205 512
206 Building Operating Maij 62 81
192 Heritage Redevelopm 950 908
193 Ontario Municip 3,040 4,054
194 Downtown Impr 207 360
195 Election Cg 441 314
196 Joint Job E 329 330
345 Westminster 35 35
208 Social Housing = 200 300
197 Human Resource Negotiations 375 89
210 Information Technology Licences 320 210
211 POA Contingency 26 -
205 Community Investment Strategy 50 50
179 Strategic Priorities 2,413 1,100
10,883 10,324
Consolidated Entities
Reserves - Downtown Guelph Business Association 17 66
Reserves - Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health 185 187
Total Reserves 34,051 35,693
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4

December 31, 2012
('000's)
Code Description 2012 2011
$ $
Reserve Funds:
111 Fire 1,503 356
113 Transit 118 219
115 Police 114 268
116 Waste Management 2,013 1,335
118 Computers 558 459
121 Play Equipment 295 345
124 Operations Fleet 2,161 3,215
120 POA Relocation 790 179
135 Museum Development 252 58
136 McCrae House Development 142 137
137 Moon-McKeigan 13
138 Library Bequests 174
150 Capital Taxation 2,520
151 Capital Parking 1,961
152 Capital Waterworks 22,469
153 Capital Wastewater 26,095
154 Capital Strategic Plan 15 -
155 Capital Landfill Compensation 126 134
156 Capital DC Exemption 2,009 3,158
157 Capital Library 849 828
158 Capital Police 2,916 2,556
159 Accessibility 514 505
160 Road Infrastructure 3,440 2,993
161 Public Transit Improy 21 594
162 Capital Sleeman Centre 3 9
164 Capital Roac 972 1,396
165 Capital Stormwater 237 181
166 Capital Park Planni 75 84
167 Capital Policy Planning 245 60
168 Capital Economic Development 22 71
169 Capital Operations 445 551
170 Capital Recreation - 103
171 Capital Culture 171 124
172 Capital Transit 1,496 555
173 Capital Fire 132 281
175 Capital Corporate Property 25 14
176 Capital Info Services 74 153
177 Capital Museum - 41
178 Tree Donation - -
186 Capital Waste Management 695 493
189 Capital GSEC 42 31
190 Building Life Cycle 876 654
199 City Infrastructure Fund - 2,494
200 Investing Ontario Act 1,123 2,154
201 ISF - City Share Water - 958
202 ISF - City Share Waste Water - 1,143
Carried forward to next page 90,178 82,121
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4

December 31, 2012
('000's)
Code Description 2012 2011
$ 3
Carried forward from previous page 90,178 82,121
203 RINC City Share - 6
331 Road Widening 973 954
332 Industrial Land 1,757 4,254
340 Capital River Run 113 195
341 Locomotive 6167 1 1
350 Transportation Demand Management 21 21
351 Capital Renewal 14,359 14,093
352 Greenhouse Gas 687 527
353 Waterworks DC Exempt 2,469 1,698
354 Wastewater DC Exempt 2,491 1,543
355 Greening 57 81
356 Public Art 207 203
357 Brownfield Capital 347 -
Consolidated Entities
Reserve Funds - Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Publi 1,165 572
Total Reserve Funds 114,825 106,269
Total Reserves and Reserve Funds 148,876 141,962
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City of Guelph
Guelph Public Library Board - Schedule 5
Statement of Revenue and Expense

December 31, 2012
('000's)
2012 2012 2011
Budget Actual Actual
OPERATING FUND
Revenue
Grant - Province of Ontario $ 168 $ 168 § 126
Donations 58 90 6
Fees and service charges 310 307 389
Sundry revenue 7 7 53
543 572 574
Expenses
Administrative and office 7
Operating supplies 500
Repairs and maintenance 429
Interest on long-term debt 27
Consulting and professional fees 64
Communications 163
Amortization 280
Training 16 14
Salaries and benefits 5,433 5,996 5,278
Rental and leases 819 771 747
Furniture and equipment 23 24 41
Utilities and taxes 157 116 120
7,310 8,628 7,670
Net operating deficit (6,767) (8,056) (7,096)
CAPITAL FUND
Developer contribution revenues - 1 52
Less: Tangible capital asset acquisitions (1,094) (1,136) (963)
Net capital deficit (1,094) (1,135) 911)
Total combined net deficit (7,861) (9,191) (8,007)
Less: net contributions (to)/from reserves 60 116 139
Less: debt principal repayments (79) (79) )
(7,880) (9,159 (7,945)
City of Guelph share of net deficit 7,880 9,154 7,945
Fund balance, end of year $ - 8 - § -
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City of Guelph
Guelph Police Services Board - Schedule 6
Statement of Revenue and Expense

December 31, 2012
('000's)
2012 2012 2011
Budget Actual Actual
OPERATING FUND
Revenue
Grant - Province of Ontario 1,190 $ 1,351 § 1,170
Gain on sale of tangible capital assets 85 65 61
Other fees and recoveries 786 1,253 1,024
2,061 2,669 2,255
Expenses
Amortization - 1,091 806
Personnel supplies 175 154
Professional consulting 963 775
Fleet 545 537
Repairs and maintenance 275 196
Corporate training and development 346 305
Rental and lease 85 136
Communication 203 183
Utilities, taxes and insurance 358 343
Banking and other fees 6 4
Equipment and furniture 128 67
Operating, admin and office supplies 265 232 260
Interest on long-term debt - 132 142
Salaries and benefits 31,746 31,195 30,857
35,245 35,734 34,765
Net operating deficit (33,184) (33,065) (32,510)
CAPITAL FUND
Revenue
Developer contributions - - 448
Province of Ontario grants - (6) 173
Other revenues 13 13
- 7 634
Expenses
Tangible capital asset acquisitions 12,529 1,203 1,800
Net capital deficit (12,529 (1,196) (1,166)
Total combined net deficit (45,713) (34,261) (33,676)
Add: net contributions from reserves 1,218 570 1,217
Less: debt principal repayments 11,168 (399) (406)
(33,327) (34,090) (32,865)
City of Guelph share of net deficit (33,327) (34,090) (32,865)

Fund balance, end of year
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- Deloitte LLP
e o I e 4210 King Street East
Kitchener ON N2P 2G5
Canada
Tel: 519-650-7600

Fax: 519-650-7601
www.deloitte.ca

June 12, 2013

To the Chair and members of the Audit Committee of the City of Guelph
Dear Audit Committee Members:

Report on audited annual financial statements

As agreed in our engagement letter dated November 14, 2012, we have performed an audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the City of Guelph as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2012, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (“GAAS™) and
expect to issue our audit report thereon dated June 24, 2013.

This report summarizes our findings during the audit. Our audit has been conducted in accordance with
the Audit Plan that was presented to the Audit Committee members at the meeting on November 14,
2012.

Use of our report

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee, management and
others within the City of Guelph and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties. Accordingly, we disclaim any responsibility to any other party who may rely on it.

We would like to express our appreciation for the cooperation we received from the officers and
employees of the City of Guelph with whom we worked to discharge our responsibilities.

We look forward to discussing this report summarizing the outcome of our audit with you and answering
any questions you may have.

Yours very truly,

\olsitte LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants, Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
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Audit scope and findings

This report summarizes the main findings arising from our audit

Audit scope rﬁatters

Audit strategy and The audit planning and the preliminary risk assessment activities we conduct enable us to set the scope
scope of our audit and to design procedures tailored to that scope. Refer to our audit plan communicated on
November 14, 2012.

Materiality Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements, including omissions, in the consolidated financial
statements that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of the financial statement users. Judgments about materiality are made in the light of
surrounding circumstances, and are affected by our perception of the information needs of the financial
statement users, and by the size or nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both. We are
responsible for providing reasonable assurance that your consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement.

Canadian GAAS require that we determine performance materiality for purposes of assessing the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements and determining the nature, timing, and
extent of our audit procedures. Planning the audit solely to detect individually material misstatements
overlooks the fact that the aggregate of individually immaterial misstatements may cause the
consolidated financial statements to be materially misstated, and leaves no margin for possible
undetected misstatements. Performance materiality is set at a lower level than materiality, so that if
misstatements are detected, we may nevertheless be able to conclude with reasonable assurance that
the uncorrected misstatements both in individually and in aggregate does not exceed materiality.

Materiality levels are determined on the basis of consolidated results of operations. Our materiality for the
year ending December 31, 2012 was $6,000,000 (2011 - $6,000,000).

Audit risks In accordance with our audit plan, our procedures focused on the following significant risks:
* Accounts payable and accrued liabilities;
o Actuarially determined liabilities;
e Contingences;

Council and Senior Management expenses;

Estimates;

» Payroll;

» Reserves and reserve funds;

» Revenue/deferred revenue;

o Taxation revenue; and
o Tangible capital asset disposals.

We have summarized the results of our audit procedures for each of these risk areas in the following
pages of this report.

Group audit We are auditors of all entities within the group, with the exception of The Elliott and Guelph Hydro Inc.
which are audited by KPMG. No restrictions have been placed on the scope of our audit. In performing
the audit, we were given full and complete access to the accounting records, supporting documentation
and other information requested.

Use of the work of As planned, Deloitte and external experts assisted in the audit to the extent we considered necessary:

experts
o Deloitte IT specialists  Participated in evaluating internal controls and in using our computerized

audit applications.

Deloitte Commodity Helped assess the adequacy of the City’s accounting for commaodity taxes

Tax experts and related balance sheet accounts.
External Actuarial Helped assess the adequacy of the employee future benefit liability.
experts
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Audit scope matters

Significant difficulties None noted.

encountered in

performing the audit

Audit results In accordance with Canadian GAAS, our audit is designed to enable us to express an opinion on the

fairness of the presentation of the City of Guelph’s annual consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Status of our audit

We expect to be in a position to render our audit opinion dated June 24, 2013 on the consolidated
financial statements of the City of Guelph following approval of the consolidated financial statements by
Council and the completion of the following outstanding procedures:

» Receipt of documentation from KPMG relating to the audit of Guelph Hydro inc;
» Receipt of minor file documentation items;

» Receipt of signed management representations letter;

» Receipt of legal update to audit report date; and

« Completion of the Engagement Quality Control review.

Fraud and illegal acts

Based on the procedures we performed as recommended by CAS 240, The Auditor's Responsibilities
Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements, we are not aware of any illegal acts or fraudulent
events with respect to City of Guelph during the year.

Significant events

As part of our audit process, we did not identify any significant events that were not in the normal course
of operations.

Significant
accounting policies

We believe management's selection of accounting policies to be appropriate under Canadian public
sector accounting standards.

City of Guelph's significant accounting policies are set forth in Note 1 to December 31, 2012 consolidated
financial statements.

Management
judgment and
accounting estimates

Significant accounting estimates are disclosed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Audit adjustments
and uncorrected
misstatements

In accordance with Canadian GAAS, we request that all misstatements be corrected.
There were no audit adjustments and uncorrected misstatements noted in the current year.

Adjusted and
unadjusted
disclosure
deficiencies

In accordance with Canadian GAAS, we request that all disclosure deficiencies be corrected.

There were no disclosure deficiencies aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to
the latest period presented, as all disclosure deficiencies detected in our audit have been corrected by
management.

Disagreements with
management

No disagreements with management.

Consultation with
other accountants

There were no consultations with other accountants relating to accounting to auditing matters that relate
to the December 31, 2012 consolidated financial statements.

Legal and regulatory

Our limited procedures did not identify any areas of material non-compliance with the laws and

compliance regulations by the City of Guelph.

Representations A draft version of the representations letter to be signed by management is included in Appendix 3.
letter

Conclusion No restrictions have been placed on the scope of our audit. In performing the audit, we were given full

Other matters

and complete access to the accounting records, supporting documentation and other information
requested.

We intend to issue an unmodified audit report on the consolidated financial statements of the City of
Guelph for the year ended December 31, 2012 once the outstanding items referred to above are
satisfactorily completed and the consolidated financial statements are approved by Council.

A draft version of our Independent Auditor’s report is included in Appendix 1.

Independence

We have developed appropriate safeguards and procedures to eliminate threats to our independence or
to reduce them to an acceptable level.

As required under GAAS, we have reported all relationships and other relevant matters that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and confirmed our
independence to the Audit Committee for the year ended December 31, 2012 in Appendix 2.

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities.

City of Guelph 2



Other matters

Quality control Our firm’s quality control process embraces each of the elements identified in the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) Handbook sections covering Canadian standards of quality control for
firms that perform audits and reviews of financial statements and other assurance engagements.

Communications As a part of our audit plan, we committed to communicate certain matters to the Audit Committee.
A summary of our communications is provided in Appendix 4.
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Audit risks

Our audit plan identified certain areas that we refer to as significant audit risks. There have been no
changes to these risks nor have any additional risks been identified since our previous communication.
The results of our audit work on these risks are set out below:

Risks

Areas of risk Our audit response Our conclusion

Accounts payable and accrued o Tested disbursements subsequent to s Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities year-end to determine the liabilities are reasonable as at
reasonableness of accounts payable December 31, 2012 and are properly
and accrued liabilities. reported in the financial statements.

o Tested the supporting assumptions for
accruals.

e Reviewed the outcome of prior year
estimates and accruals.

Actuarially determined liabilities » Reviewed actuary report, including o Actuarially determined liabilities are

related assumptions. reasonable as at December 31, 2012
» Ensured appropriate accounting and al:elproperly reported in the
treatment has been applied. financial statements.
o Reviewed related financial statement
note disclosure for accuracy and
completeness.
e Communicated with actuary regarding
our reliance on their report for audit
purposes.

Contingencies » We were in contact with the City’s o Disclosure is complete and accurate
external law firms to obtain the status and properly reported in the financial
of any outstanding claims and we statements.
reviewed the evaluation of claims to
ensure proper recognition.

Council and senior management ¢ Reviewed a sample of expense reports e Expenses tested were in line with the

expenses and VISA statements for validity and City's expense policies.
proper approval.

Estimates » Tested the supporting assumptions for * Management estimates were
estimates. determined to be reasonable for the

« Reviewed the outcome of prior year year ending December 31, 2012.
estimates and accruals.

Payroli » Focused detail testing on payroll e Payroll expense is reasonable for the
expenditures and accruals. year ending December 31, 2012.

o Substantive testing performed on
variances.

Reserves and reserve funds e Performed substantive testing on the e Reserve and Reserve Funds
continuity and material transactions to balances are reasonable as at
determine if transfers were in December 31, 2012 and are properly
accordance with Council approvals and reported in the financial statements.

applicable legislative requirements.
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Areas of risk

Revenue/deferred revenue

Our audit response

» Reviewed grants charges,
contributions or other monies received
during the year to determine if the
amount should have been recorded as
revenue or as deferred revenue.

Our conclusion

e Revenue and deferred revenue
recorded in the consoclidated financial
statements is reasonable for the year
ending December 31, 2012 and are
properly reported in the financial
statements.

Taxation revenue

» Reviewed the City's calculation of
taxation for municipal purposes.
Received confirmation of assessment
roll from the Municipal Property
Assessment Corporation (MPAC).

+ Ensured that Management's estimate
of allowance for doubtful accounts is
reasonable.

* Taxation revenue is reasonable for
the year ending December 31, 2012
and is properly reported in the
financial statements.

Tangible capital asset disposals

» Reviewed disposal schedule prepared
by management for reasonability and
tested selected transactions.

» Reporting on tangible capital asset
disposals is properly reported for the
year ending December 31, 2012.

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities.
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Internal control matters

We obtained an understanding of the internal controls relevant to our audit. We evaluated the design of
these controls and determined whether they were implemented. We are not, however, required in a non-
integrated audit to determine whether all relevant controls are operating effectively. Although not required
by Canadian GAAS, we may decide that, for a particular engagement, it makes sense to rely on the
effective operation of some controls to determine the planned substantive procedures we will perform. In
such cases, we would go beyond evaluating the design of relevant controls and determining whether they
have been implemented to also test whether the controls on which we intend to rely are operating
effectively throughout the period of reliance.

In our audit of City of Guelph’s consolidated financial statements, we planned to and were able to rely on
internal controls in the following areas:

¢ Budget;
e Payroll; and
e Expenditures.

Canadian GAAS requires us to report to the Audit Committee any significant deficiencies that have come

to our attention. We did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal controls during the audit. We
have prepared a management letter, which will be provided separately.
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Appendix 1 — Draft version of
our Auditor’s report

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the
City of Guelph

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the City of
Guelph, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2012, and the
consolidated statements of operations and accumulated surplus, change in net financial assets and cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities. City of Guelph 7



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Corporation of the City of Guelph as at December 31, 2012 and the results of its
operations, change in its net financial assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

(To be signed Deloitte LLP)

Chartered Professional Accountants, Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

June 24, 2013

Kitchener, Ontario

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities. City of Guelph 8



Appendix 2 — Independence letter

@
Deloitte
4210 King Street East

Kitchener ON N2P 2G5
Canada

Tel: 518-650-7600

Fax: 519-650-7601
June 12, 2013 www.deloitte.ca

The Chair and Members of the Audit Committee
City of Guelph

Dear Members of the Audit Commuittee:

We have been engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of the City of Guelph (the “City”)
for the year ending December 31, 2012.

Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) require that we communicate in writing with you

regarding our compliance with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence as well as all
relationships and other matters between the City, our Firm and network firms that, in our professional

judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. We are also required to communicate

the related safeguards that have been applied to eliminate identified threats to independence or reduce
them to an acceptable level.

In determining which relationships to report, these standards require us to consider relevant rules and

related interpretations prescribed by the appropriate provincial institute / ordre and applicable legislation,

covering such matters as:

(a) holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client;

(b) holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert
significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client;

(c) personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired partners,
either directly or indirectly, with a client;

(d) economic dependence on a client; and

(e) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement.

We confirm to you that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate, the firm and, when
applicable, network firms have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

We have prepared the following comments to facilitate our discussion with you regarding independence
matters arising since June 11, 2012, the date of our last letter.

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities. City of Guelph
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City of Guelph
June 12, 2013
Page 2

Our firm has provided non-audit services to the City from June 11, 2012 to June 12, 2013. The provision
of these services, in our professional judgement, does not impair our audit independence relationship.

GAAS requires that we confirm our independence to those charged with governance in the context of the
Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario. We hereby confirm
that we are independent with respect to the Company within the meaning of the Rules of Professional
Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario as of June 12, 2013.

This report is intended solely for the use of the audit committee, Council, management, and others within
the City and should not be used for any other purposes.

We look forward to discussing with you the matters addressed in this letter at our upcoming meeting on
June 12, 2013.

Yours very truly,

\olobte LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants, Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
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Appendix 3 — Draft letter of
representation

June 24, 2013

Deloitte LLP
4210 King StE
Kitchener ON N2P 2G5

Dear Sirs:
Subject: Consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit by Deloitte LLP (“Deloitte” or “you”)
of the consolidated financial statements of the City of Guelph (the “City” or “we” or “us”) for the year
ended December 31, 2012, (the “Financial Statements”) for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to
whether the Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows of the City in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards
(“PSAS™).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. An item is

considered material, regardless of its monetary value, if it is probable that its omission from or
misstatement in the Financial Statements would influence the decision of a reasonable person relying on
the Financial Statements.

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities as set out in the terms of the engagement letter between the City

and Deloitte dated November 14, 2012 for the preparation of the Financial Statements in accordance

with PSAS. In particular, the Financial Statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, and

present the financial position of the City as at December 31, 2012 and the results of its operations and

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with PSAS.

2. In preparing the Financial Statements in accordance with PSAS, management makes judgments and
assumptions about the future and uses estimates. The completeness and adequacy of the disclosures
related to estimates are in accordance with PSAS. The City has appropriately disclosed in the

Financial Statements the nature of measurement uncertainties that are material, including all estimates

where it is reasonably possible that the estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the
change could be material to the Financial Statements.

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities. City of Guelph
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Deloitte LLP
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Financial statements (continued)
Significant assumptions used in making estimates are reasonable and appropriately reflect
management’s intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf of the entity. The
measurement methods, including the related assumptions and models, used in determining the
estimates were appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied in accordance with PSAS and
appropriately reflect management's intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf
of the entity.

There are no changes in management’s method of determining significant estimates in the current
year.

3. With regard to the fair value measurements and disclosures of certain assets, liabilities, we believe
that:

a. The measurement methods, including the related assumptions and models, used in determining
fair value were appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied in accordance with PSAS.

b. The completeness and adequacy of the disclosures related to fair values are in accordance with
PSAS.

c. No events have occurred subsequent to December 31, 2012 that require adjustment to the fair
value measurements and disclosures included in the Financial Statements.

d. They appropriately reflect management's intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action
on behalf of the City when relevant to the use of fair value measurements or disclosures.

4. All related party relationships and transactions (including associated amounts receivable and payable)
have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the Financial Statements in accordance with
the requirements of PSAS.

5. We have completed our review of events after December 31, 2012 and up to the date of this letter.

All events subsequent to the date of the Financial Statements and for which PSAS requires adjustment

or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. Accounting estimates and disclosures included in the

financial statements that are impacted by subsequent events have been appropriately adjusted.

The Financial Statements are free of material errors and omissions.

Management has completed its assessment of the ability of the City to continue as a going concern

and in making its assessment did not identify any material uncertainties related to events or conditions

that may cast significant doubt upon the City's ability to continue as a going concern, which would
require disclosure in the Financial Statements. In assessing whether the going concern assumption is
appropriate, management took into account all available information about the future, which is at
least, but is not limited to, twelve months from the balance sheet date, their plans for future action and
the feasibility of these plans.

8. We have disclosed to you all known, actual or possible litigation and claims, whether or not they have
been discussed with our lawyers, whose effects should be considered when preparing the Financial
Statements. As appropriate, these items have been disclosed and accounted for in the Financial
Statements in accordance with PSAS.

o

Information provided
9. We have provided you with:
a. Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
Financial Statements, such as records, documentation and other matters;
b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and,
c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities. City of Guelph 12
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Information provided (continued)

10. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the Financial
Statements.

11. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

12. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the Financial Statements may
be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

13. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of
and that affects the entity and involves:

a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

14. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud,
affecting the entity’s Financial Statements and all knowledge of concerns or allegations of potential
errors in the selection of accounting policies or the recording of transactions affecting the City that
have been communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others, whether
written or oral.

15. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with
laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the Financial Statements.

16. We have disclosed to you all communications from:

a. taxation authorities concerning assessments or reassessments that could have a material effect on
the Financial Statements; and

b. regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with or potential deficiencies in, financial
reporting requirements. We are unaware of any known or probable instances of non-compliance
with the requirements of regulatory or governmental authorities, including their financial
reporting requirements.

17. We have disclosed to you any change in the City’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the current year that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

18. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including guarantees, non-monetary
transactions, transactions for no consideration and participation in a defined benefit plan that shares
risks between group entities.

Independence matters

For purposes of paragraph 19, “Deloitte” shall mean Deloitte LLP and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Limited, its member firms and the affiliates of Deloitte LLP, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited and its
member firms.

19. The City has not caused Deloitte’s independence to be impaired by hiring or promoting a former or
current Deloitte partner or professional employee in an accounting role or financial reporting
oversight role that would cause a violation of the Canadian independence rules or other applicable
independence rules. Prior to the City having any substantive employment conversations with a
former or current Deloitte engagement team member the City has held discussions with Deloitte and
obtained approval from the Audit Committee.

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities. City of Guelph 13
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Work of management’s experts

20. We agree with the work of management’s experts in evaluating the Employee Future Benefits and
have adequately considered the competence and capabilities of the experts in determining amounts
and disclosures used in the Financial Statements and underlying accounting records. We did not give
any, nor cause any, instructions to be given to management’s experts with respect to values or
amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not aware of any matters that have
impacted the independence or objectivity of the experts.

Compliance with contractual agreements

21. We have disclosed to you, and the City has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that
could have a material effect on the Financial Statements in the event of non-compliance, including all
covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

Title to assets

22. The City has satisfactory title to and control over all assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on
such assets. We have disclosed to you and in the Financial Statements all assets that have been
pledged as collateral.

Plans or intentions affecting carrying value/classification of assets and liabilities
23. We have disclosed to you all plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the Financial Statements.

Liabilities and contingencies

24. We have disclosed to you all liabilities, provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets,
including those associated with guarantees, whether written or oral, and they are appropriately
reflected in the Financial Statements.

Loans and receivables

25. The City is responsible for determining and maintaining the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful
notes, loans, and accounts receivable, as well as estimates used to determine such amounts.
Management believes the allowance is adequate to absorb currently estimated bad debts in the
account balance.

Environmental liabilities/contingencies

26. We have considered the effect of environmental matters on the City and have disclosed to you all
liabilities, provisions or contingencies arising from environmental matters. All liabilities, provisions,
contingencies and commitments arising from environmental matters, and the effect of environmental
matters on the carrying values of the relevant assets are recognized, measured and disclosed, as
appropriate, in the Financial Statements.

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities. City of Guelph 14
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Employee future benefits

27,

28.

Employee future benefit costs, assets, and obligations have been properly recorded and adequately
disclosed in the Financial Statements including those arising under defined benefit and defined
contribution plans as well as termination arrangements. We believe that the actuarial assumptions
and methods used to measure defined benefit plan assets, liabilities and costs for financial accounting
purposes are appropriate in the circumstances.

We have disclosed to you any intentions of terminating any of our pension plans, or taking any other
action that could result in an effective termination or reportable event for any of the plans. We have
disclosed to you any occurrences that could result in the termination of any of our pension or multi-
employer plans to which we contribute.

Various matters

29.

The following have been properly recorded and, when appropriate, adequately disclosed and
presented in the Financial Statements:

economic dependence on another party;

losses arising from sale and purchase commitments;

agreements to buy back assets previously sold;

provisions for future removal and site restoration costs;

financial instruments with significant individual or group concentration of credit risk, and related
maximum credit risk exposure;

sales with recourse provisions;

sales incentives, including cash consideration provided to customers and vendor rebates;
arrangements with financial institutions involving compensating balances or other arrangements
involving restriction on cash balances and line-of-credit or similar arrangements;

1. all impaired loans receivable;

oa0 o

s

Froe

J. loans that have been restructured to provide a reduction or deferral of interest or principal

payments because of borrower financial difficulties.

Investments

30.

The City does not hold any investments in Master Asset Vehicle notes (which replaced third party
non-bank asset backed commercial paper).

Long-lived assets

31

With respect to the City’s long-lived assets, we have recognized and recorded the fair value of all
legal obligations associated with the retirement of those related assets.

Yours very truly,

City of Guelph

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities. City of Guelph 15



Appendix 4 — Communication
requirements

In our audit plan, we committed to communicate certain items to the Audit Committee on a regular basis
or as specified events occur. These items are summarized below.

Required communication Comments

1.

Our responsibilities under GAAS.

See our audit plan which was communicated
on November 14, 2012.

2. Our audit strategy and scope, including our approach to auditing financial See our audit plan which was communicated
information of components of the group audit and our planned involvement on November 14, 2012.
in work performed by component auditors.
3. Management judgment and accounting estimates. Management judgments and accounting
estimates are reasonable — see comments on
page 2.
4. Financial statement adjustments. There were no audit adjustments and no
uncorrected misstatements.
5. Uncorrected misstatements and disclosure deficiencies. There were no audit adjustments and no
uncorrected misstatements.
6. Significant accounting policies. See Note 1 to the 2012 consolidated financial
statements.
7. Alternative treatments for accounting policies and practices that have been No alternative significant accounting policies
discussed with management during the current audit period. were noted.
8. Our views about significant qualitative aspects of City of Guelph's Significant accounting practices — see page 2
accounting practices, including accounting policies, accounting estimates of this report.
and financial statement disclosures.
9. Our responsibility for other information in documents containing audited We will review the annual report when
financial statements (e.g., MD&A), any procedures performed, and the provided by management.
results.
10. Disagreements with management. None.
11. Our views about significant matters that were the subject of consultation There were no consultations with other
with other accountants. accountants relating to accounting or auditing
matters affecting the December 31, 2012
‘ consolidated financial statements.
12. Major issues discussed with management prior to our retention. None.
13. Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit. None.
14. Material written communications between management and us. Engagement letter dated November 14, 2012.
15. All relationships between City of Guelph and us that, in our professional See Independence letter — Appendix 2.
judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on independence.
16. A statement that, in our judgment, our engagement team and others in our See Independence letter — Appendix 2.
firm as appropriate, our firm itself and, when applicable, network firms have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.
17. lllegal or possibly illegal acts. No fraud, errors or illegal acts noted.
18. Fraud or possible fraud identified through the audit process. None noted.

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities.

City of Guelph 16



Required communication

Comments

18. Significant transactions inconsistent with normal course of business, None noted.
including related party transactions.
20. Non-compliance with laws and regulations that come to the auditor’s None noted.
attention.
21. Limitations placed on our scope. None.
22. Written representations the auditor is requesting. Draft management’s representations letter —

Appendix 3.

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities.

City of Guelph
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Appendix 5 — Deloitte resources
a click away

At Deloitte, we are committed to excellence in the provision of professional services and advice, always
focusing on client service. To this end, we have developed numerous resources, which contain relevant
and timely information for our clients and are accessible by our clients. Included below is an overview of
these resources. These resources are available through the Deloitte Portal (www.deloitte.com/ca/portal).

Other resources

inadial

freauent
2auenc

Centre for Corporate Governance
www .corpgov.deloitte.ca

Audit Committee members
Board members
CEO/CFO

Internal auditor

Legal counsel

Web site specifically designed to help board
members with their responsibilities.

It provides the latest information on
regulatory and legislative developments,
accounting and financial reporting, board
roles and responsibilities, and best practices.

DeloitteLINK
www .deloitte.com/ca/Deloitte LINK

CFO

V-P Finance

Controller

Financial reporting team

Weekly e-newsletter that helps the finance
team to stay on top of standard-setting
initiatives.

Deloitte Learning Academy
www.deloittelearningacademy.ca/

® & © o o

CFO

V-P Finance

Internal auditor
Controller

Financial reporting team

A range of courses targeted to accounting
professionals which can be selected a la
carte, bundled into a specific learning
program, or delivered as a full start-to-finish
suite. Our current offerings include
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS); Accounting Standards for Private
Enterprises (ASPE); and Public Sector
Standards (PSAS).

Deloitte Update
www.deloitte.com/ca/update

CFO

V-P Finance

Controller

Financial reporting team

Learning webcasts offered throughout the
year featuring Deloitte professionals
discussing critical issues that affect your
business.

Directors’ Series
www.deloitte.com/ca/DirectorsSeries

Audit Committee members
CEO/CFO

Internal auditor

Legal counsel

Live satellite broadcasts to locations across
the country conducted four or five times per
year. They provide Canadian corporate
directors with an opportunity to keep up with
their learning requirements in a time of
frequent change and new demands.

Integrity in the Spotlight

Audit Committee members
CEO/CFO

Internal auditor

Legal counsel

Second edition of a book on Audit
Committee effectiveness, co-authored by
retired Deloitte partner Jim Goodfellow and
Maureen Sabia, chair of Canadian Tire. The
book is a useful tool for discussions with
your Audit Committee.

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities.
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Other resources

Canadian resources - : Description and frequency
On the Agenda e Audit Committee members Bi-monthly e-newsletter that advises
« CEO/CFO directors about recent developments
. affecting their responsibilities, including the
e Internal auditor points of view of Deloitte professionals.
e Legal counsel
Standard-Setting Activities Digest e CFO Monthiy online updates on recent
ww deloitte.com/ca/standard ; developments in standard-setting from a
CORCET RN % A — comprehensive list of standard-setting
 Controller organizations.

o Financial reporting team

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities. City of Guelph 19



www.deloitte.ca

Deloitte, one of Canada's leading professional services firms, provides audit, tax, consulting, and financial advisory services.
Deloitte LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership, is the Canadian member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited.
Deloitte operates in Quebec as Deloitte s.e.n.c.r.l., a Quebec limited liability partnership.

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee, and its network of
member firms, each of which is a legally separate and independent entity. Please see www.deloitte.com/about for a detailed
description of the legal structure of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited and its member firms.

© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities.
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KPMG LLP Telephone  (5619) 747-8800
Chartered Accountants Fax (519) 747-8830
115 King Street South Internet www.kpmg.ca
2nd Floor .

Waterloo ON N2J 5A3

Canada

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Trustees

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Elliott, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at March 31, 2012, the statements of operations and changes in net assets and
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Audi_tors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the- effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. ’



Page 2

Opinion -

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
The Elliott as at March 31, 2012, and the results of its operations, its changes in net assets and its

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

K £
A

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

June 26, 2012
Waterloo, Canada



THE ELLIOTT

Statement of Financial Position

. March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011

2012 2011
Assets
Current assets:
Accounts receivable 3 188,742 3 118,924
Prepaid expenses 69,175 62,561
Inventories 12,318 -
Trust funds held for residents 1,438 1,301
o o : 271,673 182,786
Buildings and equipment (note 3) 20,577,540 22,226,264
Equipment under capital leases 157,878 129,436
$ 21,007,091 $ 22,538,486
Liabilities, Deferred Contributions and Deficit
Current liabilities:
Bank indebtedness 3 48753 $ 401,312
Operating line of credit (note 4) 800,000 580,000
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,006,959 999,808
Deferred revenue 91,902 42 558
Trust funds held for residents ‘ 1,438 1,301
Current portion of long-term debt (note 5) 808,419 631,835
Current portion of obligations under capital leases (note 7) 55,256 39,652
2,812,727 2,696,366
Long-term debt (note 5) 21,703,136 22,358,075
Obligations under capital leases (note 7) 106,281 94,173
Deferred capital contributions (note 6) 603,556 657,035
Fair value of interest rate swap contract 232,244 153,601
Net deficit (4,450,853) (3,420,764)
Commitments (note 8)
$ 21,007,091 $ 22,538,486

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

Trustee

Trustee



THE ELLIOTT

Statement of Operations and Changes in Deficit

© Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011

2012 - 2011
Revenue:
Accommodation:
Basic 7,214,417 6,948,079
. Preferred 337,796 340,875
Suite re-leasing (note 9) 190,795 170,675
Subsidy - Ontario Ministry of Health
and Long-Term Care 3,807,399 3,952,219
Community centre rental 77,095 31,228
Cable television fees 92,424 92,760
Other revenue 282,656 267,055
Donations 34,403 32,830
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (note 6) 53,479 67,999
12,090,464 11,903,720
Expenses:
Wages and salaries 6,103,437 6,184,853
Employee benefits 1,286,289 1,228,840
Supplies 272,117 275,545
Meals and nourishments 673,149 647,745
Repairs and replacements 529,483 624,128
Travel 3,860 3,547
Professional development 18,196 17,546
Computer and software 34,709 88,118
Utilities 572,865 574,298
Insurance 390,547 36,592
Telephone and communications 39,545 38,604
Medical director 22,959 22,246
Professional fees 22,105 47,841
Waste removal 19,517 17,505
Grounds maintenance and landscaping 26,940 24,847
Elevator maintenance 47,655 42 578
Office and general 18,648 18,004
Marketing and promotion 70,940 19,855
Municipal taxes 163,773 163,053
Cable television 88,209 88,171
Other 23,585 5,277
Interest 1,226,978 1,258,670
Accretion of deferred financing costs 3,481 3,481
Amortization of buildings and equipment 1,733,923 1,726,125
Fair value adjustment on interest rate swap 78,643 (12,549)
13,120,553 13,144,920
Deficiency of revenue over expenses (1,030,089) (1,241,200)
(3,420,764)

Deficit, beginning of year

(2,179,564)

Deficit, end of year

$ (4,450,853)

$ (3,420,764)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



THE ELLIOTT

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011

2012 2011
Cash provided by (used in):
Operations: _ :
Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (1,030,089) (1,241,200)
ltems not involving cash:
Amortization of buildings and equipment 1,733,923 1,728,308
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (53,479) (67,999)
Accretion of deferred financing costs 3,481 3,481
Gain on disposal of equipment s - (2,184)
Change in fair value of interest rate swap 78,643 (12,549)
Change in non-cash working capital balances
arising from operating activities:
Accounts receivable (69,818) 74,991
Inventories (12,318) -
Prepaid expenses (6,614) (2,693)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 7,151 170,052
Deferred revenue 49,344 37,594
700,224 687,802
Financing:
Increase (decrease) in operating line of credit 220,000 (1,170,000)
Repayments of long-term debt (481,836) (607,166)
Advance of long-term debt - 750,000
Principal repayments on capital leases (37,176) (28,070)
(299,012) (1,055,236)
Investments:
Purchase of buildings and equipment (48,653) (36,322)
Proceeds on disposal - 2,184
(48,653) (34,138)
Decrease (increase) in bank indebtedness 352,559 (401,572)
Cash (bank indebtedness), beginning of year (401,312) 260

Bank indebtedness, end of year 3 (48,753)

(401,312)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2012

The Elliott is incorporated under the laws of the Province of Ontario and its principal business activity is
the provision of sheltered care and services for seniors.

1. Significant accounting policies:

(a)

(b)

(©)

Basis of presentation:

These financial statements have been prepared 'in accordance with Canadian generally

accepted accounting principles and they include the operations of:

Long-term care residence - reflects the activities associated with the provision of care in the
full nursing arrangements of the long-term care facility.

Life lease suites - reflects the activities associated with the operation of the life lease suites.

Retirement suites - reflects the activities associated with the operation of the retirement
facility.

Revenue recognition:

The Eliiott follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions which include donations
and government grants.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the
amount o be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are recognized. Contributions restricted for the purchase of buildings and
equipment are deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a rate
corresponding with the amortization rate of the related buildings and equipment.

Revenue from suite re-leasing, preferred accommodation, interest, as well as income from
parking and other ancillary operations, is recognized when the goods are soid or the service
is provided. ' '

Inventory:

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.



THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

Year ended March 31, 2012

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(d)

(e)

)

(9

(h)

Buildings and equipment:

Purchased buildings and equipment are recorded at cost. Contributed buildings and
equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution. Amortization is recorded
over the estimated useful lives of the assets on a straight-line basis at various useful lives
between 5 and 40 years. L s ‘

Financing costs:

Financing costs are netted against the related financial liability and accreted to expense
using the effective interest rate method over the term of the liability.

Contributed services:

A substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount of their time each year.
Because of the difficulty of determining the fair value, contributed services are not recognized
in the financial statements.

Financial instruments:

The Elliott has classified cash, bank indebtedness, operating line of credit and its derivative
instruments as held-for-trading which are measured at fair value with changes in the fair
value reported in earnings.

Accounts receivable are classified as loans and receivables, which are measured at
amortized cost. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and long-term debt are classified as
other financial liabilities, which are measured at amortized cost.

Derivative financial instruments:

Derivative financial instruments are utilized by The Elliott in the management of its interest
rate exposures. The Elliott's policy is not to utilize derivative financial instruments for trading
or speculative purposes. The Elliott enters into interest rate swaps in order to reduce the
impact of fluctuating interest rates on one of its long-term debts. The swap agreement
requires periodic exchange of payments without the exchange of the notional principal
amount on which the payments are based. Interest expense on the debt is adjusted to
include the payments made or received under the interest rate swaps.



THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

Year ended March 31,2012

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

() Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management fo make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions
include the carrying amount of buildings and equipment, accounts payable and accrued

liabilities and valuation allowances for receivables.

estimates.

Future accounting standards:

Actual results could differ from those

The Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) and the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) have
issued new accounting standards for private not-for-profit organizations (other NPOs) and
Government not-for-profit organizations (Government NPOs), respectively. Management has

assessed that The Elliott is a Government NPO.

These standards are effective for fiscal years commencing on or after January 1, 2012. The
Elliott is currently in the process of evaluating the potential impact of adopting these changes for

the year ending March 31, 2013.

Buildings and equipment:

2012 2011

Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost  amottization value value

Buildings , $ 34,571,394 $ 14,286,958 $ 20,284,436 $ 21,867,185
Machinery and equipment 2,421,941 2,177,490 244,451 359,079
Vehicles 32,250 32,250 - -
Construction in progress 48,653 - 48,653 -
37,074,238 16,496,698 20,577,540- 22,226,264

Equipment under capital leases 226,783 68,905 157,878 129,436
$ 37,301,021 $ 16,565603 $ 20,735418 $ 22,355700




THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

Year ended March 31, 2012

3. Buildings and equipment (continued):
The above buiidings and equipment do not include those assets related to the life lease suites
building and equipment other than the cost of the security system and common area renovations.
The terms and conditions of suite-leasing transfer the responsibility and stewardship of the
individual suites to the residents occupying the suites.

4. Operating line of credit:

The operating line of credit bears interest at bank prime.

5. Long-term debt:

2012 2011
Mortgage held by the City of Guelph, bearing interest at 5.06%,
payabie in monthly installments of $112,777 principal and
interest, maturing December 25, 2037 $ 19,458,060 $ 19,816,896
Term loan, bearing interest at bank prime, payable in annual
installments of $150,000 plus interest, repayable in full by
March 31, 2015 600,000 600,000
Banker’s acceptance, with interest of 4.83% per annum fixed
through a swap transaction, plus a stamping fee of 1.25% for
a total of 6.08%, payable in installments of interest and
principal, maturing June 25, 2015 with an option to refinance
for an additional ten years 2,544,000 2,667,000
22,602,060 23,083,896
Current portion of long-term debt ] 808,419 631,835
‘ » 21,793,641 22,452,061
Transaction costs : ‘ 90,505 93,986

$ 21,703,136 $ 22,358,075




THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

Year ended March 31, 2012

5. Long-term debt (continued):

Principal repayments are due as follows:

2013 $ 808,419
2014 684,966

- 2015 c oo Co 714,525
2016 2,567,149
2017 461,892
Thereafter 17,365,109
$ 22,602,060

Interest expense on long-term debt for the year amounted to $1,142,807 (2011 - $1,169,574).

6. Deferred capital contributions:

Deferred contributions represent the unamortized amounts of donations and grants received for
the purchase of buildings and equipment. The amortization of contributions is recorded as
revenue in the statement of operations:

2012 2011

Balance, beginning of year $ 657,035 $ 725,034
Less amounts amortized to revenue during the year (53,479) (67,999)

$ 603,556 § 657,035




THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

Year ended March 31, 2012

7. Obligations under capital leases:

The Elliott. has financed various equipment purchases by entering into a capital lease
arrangement. Capital lease repayments are due as follows:

2012 2011
2012 $ - $ 39,5562
2013 ' o © 55256 39,552
2014 55,256 39,552
2015 55,256 39,552
2016 55,256 -
2017 3,840 -
Total minimum lease payments 224 864 158,208
Less amount representing interest at 8.5% 63,327 24,483
Present value of net minimum capital lease payments 161,537 133,725
Current portion of obligations under capital leases 55,256 39,552

$ 106,281 $ 94,173

Interest of $13,427 (2011 - $11,482) relating to the capital lease obligations has been included in
interest expense.

8. Commitments:

The Eliiott is committed to minimum annual leases payment under outstanding operating leases

as follows:

2013 ) ' 3 5731
2014 5,731
2015 : . . 5,512
2016 : 1,831




THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

Year ended March 31, 2012

9. Suite re-leasing fees:

The Elliott provides a service coordinating the re-leasing of the life lease suites. A fee is charged -
for this service at 10% of the selling price of the re-leased units.

2012 2011
" Suite re-leasing revenue o $ 2,000,050 $ 1,713,600
Suite re-leasing costs 1,809,255 1,542,925

$ 190,795 § 170,675

10. Supplemental cash flow information:

2012 2011

Cash paid for interest $ 1,189,426 $ 1,220,942
Non-cash investing and financing activities: v

Acquisition of equipment through capital leases 64,988 161,795

11. Financial instruments:
(a) Fairvalue:
The carrying values of accounts receivable, bank indebtedness, operating line of credit and
accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair value due to the relatively
short periods to maturity of these items.
- The carrying value of the mortgage approximates the fair value as the terms and conditions
of the borrowing arrangement are comparable to current market terms and conditions for

similar items.

The fair value of the interest rate swap contracts is estimated by obtaining quotes from The
Elliott's bank for the same or similar instruments.
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THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

Year ended March 31, 2012

11. Financial instruments (continued):

(b) Associated risks:

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk refers to the adverse consequences of interest rate changes on The
Elliott’s cash flows, financial position and income. ' '

The Elliott uses variable interest rate loans to partially fund its operations. To manage
its exposure to fluctuating interest rates, The Elliott enters into interest rate swap
contracts to fix its interest rates for specific periods. As at March 31, 2012, The Elliott
has entered into an interest rate swap contract to fix its interest rates on $2,544,000
(2011 - $2,667,000) of its potential fluctuating rate loans. The Elliott's abligation as at
March 31, 2012, with relation to this contract, is $232,244 (2011 - $153,601).

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The Elliott is
exposed to credit risk through its collection of patient and resident receivables. The
Elliott is not exposed to a concentration of credit risk from its accounts receivable due to
the number and diversity of patient and resident accounts.

12. Net asset management:

The main objective of The Elliott when managing its net assets is to safeguard its ability to
continue as a gomg concern, so that it can continue to prov1de sheltered care and services for

seniors.

The Elliott sets the sufficiency of net assets to maintain the service needs of the community. It
makes adjustments to its net assets, through appropriation to or from internally restricted funds, to
respond to potential changes in economic or operating conditions.

In order to maintain a sufficient net asset structure, management looks forward to future needs
and will make the necessary adjustments to its working capital to meet these needs.

The long-term debt agreement requires The Elliott to comply with certain financial and non-
financial covenants. The Elliott is in compliance with each of these covenants.
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cutting through complexity ™

AUDIT

The Elliott

Audit Findings Report
For the year ended March 31, 2012

KPMG LLP, Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants




Dear Trustees,

We have prepared this audit findings report to assist you with your review of the financial statements
and the carrying out your Audit Committee responsibilities. We are here to help. We encourage you
to ask us for more information on.any of the matters covered.in this report—and beyond.

Audit quality

The quality of an audit and the resulting financial statements are receiving an increased level of
scrutiny around the world. Audit quality is at the core of everything we do at KPMG, and we believe
that it is not just about providing the right audit opinion, but also the steps we take to provide that
audit opinion. One component of our efforts in this area is the development and implementation of
the KPMG Audit Quality Framework to help ensure that every partner and professional concentrates
on the fundamental skills and behaviours required to deliver an appropriate and independent audit
opinion. We invite you to review “"KPMG's Audit Quality Framework”, summarized in the appendices
of this report.

Reaching out to audit committees

KPMG's Audit Committee Institute holds Audit Committee Roundtables across the country twice
yearly. You are cordially invited to attend. For information and registration, please visit
www.kpmg.ca/auditcommittee/roundtables.html.

We appreciate the assistance of management and staff in conducting our audit. We hope this audit
findings report is of assistance to you as you carry out your agenda, and we look forward to
discussing our findings and answering your questions at the upcoming Audit Committee meeting.

Yours sincerely,

Thomas E. Mennill, CA
Partner
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Executive summary

Overview

The purpose' of this Audit Findings Report is to assist you, as a member of the Audit Committee,
in your review of the financial statements of The Elliott for the year ended March 31, 2012.

Status

As of the date of this report, we have completed the audit of the financial statements, with the
exception of certain remaining procedures which include:

° o‘btéining legal confirmations from external counsel

e receipt of signed management representation letter

e completing our discussions with the Audit Committee

e Obtaining evidence of the Board's approval of the financial statements.

Please refer to the Appendices for our draft audit report. We will update you on any significant
matters arising from the completion of the audit, including completion of the above procedures.
Our audit report will be dated upon completion of any remaining procedures.

! This Audit Findings Report should not be used for any other purpose or by anyone other than the Audit Committee.
KPMG shall have no responsibility or liability for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as this Audit
Findings Report has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any third party or for any
other purpose.



Audit planning

What changed from last year

We have set out below a summary of changes that have been taken into consideration in planning
the audit for the current period:

e Implementation of the new accounting system effective August 1, 2011.

e Discussions around the refinancing of long-term debt with the City of Guelph.

Latory environment

e There are no significant changes in accounting and auditing standard changes affecting the
current year audit for The Elliott.

e Effective for the fiscal year beginning April1, 2012, The Elliott will have to adopt the financial
reporting framework under public sector accounting standards. As part of the adoption, The
Elliott will need to assess the impact of adopting these new standards.

KPMG is available to provide support and assist management with the transition to the new
accounting standards.

Annual inquiries related to risks of fraud:

Professional standards require that we ask you questions in connection with your oversight of
management’s process for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud:

e What are your views about fraud risks in the entity?

e How do you provide effective oversight of programs and controls to prevent, detect and deter
fraud, including oversight over internal controls management has established to mitigate fraud
risks?

e Are you aware of, or have you identified any instances of, actual, suspected or alleged fraud,
including misconduct or unethical behaviour related to financial reporting or misappropriation of
assets? If so, have the instances been appropriately addressed and how have they been
addressed?



Scope of the audit

The purpose of an audit is to enhance the degree of confidence of the users of the financial
statements through the expression of an opinion on whether the financial statements fairly
presehts, in all material respecté, the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of The
Elliott in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (CICA Part V - Pre-
changeover Accounting Standards).

In planning our audit, we have considered the level of audit work required to support our opinion,
including each of the following matters:

Qur res

e Our responsibilities in carrying out our audit, as well as management’s responsibilities, are set
out in the engagement letter included in the appendices to this report.

e We determine materiality in order to plan and perform the audit and to evaluate the effects of
identified misstatements on the audit and of any uncorrected misstatements on the financial
statements.

e For the current period, materiality of $210,000 (2011 - $226,000) has been determined.



As part of our audit planning, we identified significant financial reporting risks that, by their nature,
require special audit consideration. By focusing on these risks, we are able to target our procedures
and deliver a high quality audit that is both efficient and effective. The financial reportlng risks
identified durmg our audit planning are listed below:

Inherent risks

Planned audit. approach

Significant Selected controls
accounts Risk Risk Substantive | Substantive
Relevant Evaluat Test of .
and L of of vaiuate ES30 analytical tests of
2 sse - '
disclosures 2 s error | fraud design and operating procedures detail
implementation | effectiveness
Revenue & | gyistence
accounts Low .| . Yes Yes No Yes . Yes
receivable | Accuracy
Expenses & Completeness
Low No Yes No No Yes
accruals Accuracy
Resident
Accuracy Low No Yes Yes No Yes

trust funds




Significant audit,
accounting and
reporting matters

Matters to discuss

Included in this rebort are matters we have highlighted for discussion at the upcoming Audit
Committee meeting. We look forward to discussing these matters and our findings with you.

Other matters

We have highlighted below other significant matters that we would like to bring to your attention:

- System Conversion

J . During the year, The Elliott successfully impléménted the Managemenf Ihférmation System
i Solution, Microsoft Dynamics GP. With this implementation, The Elliott is fully compliant with ;

? the Ministry of Health and Long-term Care (MOHLTC) reporting requirements.

e This conversion involved moving their general ledger processing system from AccPac to
Microsoft Dynamics Great Plains.

' @ The balances were transferred from AccPac to Microsoft Dynamics Great Plains as of the
close on July 31, 2011. During August, both systems were run in parallel to ensure that there
any issues were identified and addressed prior to going live with the new system on
September 1, 2011.

e Atthe end of August, management completed reconciliations between AccPac and Great
Plains to ensure that there were no issues.

KPMG comments
e KPMG reviewed management’s system conversion process.

e Testing was completed to ensure that the data was'accurately transferred and recorded in the |
Microsoft Dynamics Great Plains system at both July 31, 2011 and August 31, 2011.

e [t was noted that the account numbers were changed slightly, as the new account numbers
for LTC are now consistent with the account numbers used by the MOHLTC, which will allow
The Elliott to transfer their data to the MOHLTC for reporting in a much more efficient fashion.
KPMG verified that the accounts were appropriately mapped to be consistent with the prior
year. : .

Misstatements

e No misstatements have been identified.

ngnificant aefic>iehéie5 e
e No significant deficiencies have been identified.




e When preparing financial statements, management shall make an assessment of an entity's
" ability to continue as a going concern. ‘

¢ The Financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the entity is a going
concern, meaning it will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to
realize assets and discharge liabilities in the normal course of operations.

e The Elliott has incurred a $1 million loss in the current year, which has increased the
accumulated deficit to $4.5 million at March 31, 2012,

e During the year, the positive cash flows from operations were partially offset by the negative
cash flows from financing due to debt repayments. The Elliott did end the year with net
posmve cash flows of $353 000.

KPMG comments

e KPMG's responsibility is to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the
appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern assumption in the preparation of
the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the
entity's ability to continue as a going concern.

e KPMG obtained management's representation of the ability of The Elliott to continue as a
going concern.

¢ Based on our audit procedures performed we concur with management's assessment.

¢ The going concern assessment will continue to be monitored each year:

Misstatements

e No misstatements have been identified.

Significant deficiencies

e No significant deficiencies have been identified.




Significant
qualitative aspects of
accounting practices

The following are the significant qualitative aspects of a'ccou-nting practices that we plan to discuss
with you:

; Significant - e Significant accodﬁ{ihﬂgﬁﬁﬁolicies are disclosed in Note 1 of the '
accounting policies | financial statements.

¢ No changes in accounting policies were made during 2012.

. » The Elliott will be required to adopt public sector accounting
standards for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2013.

Significant . ¢ Management's process for identification and making accounting
accounting | estimates are consistent with prior year.
estimates :

- o No significant estimates involved with the financial statements.

| « The potential impact of measurement uncertainty on the financial
statements has been disclosed in the financial statements.

Significant e No significant changes in disclosures from prior year were required
disclosures under Canadian generally accepted accounting policies in the
current year.

e Management has included disclosures relating to future account

\ pronouncements in Note 2 to the financial statements. There is no

| current period impact as these standards are effective for fiscal
years commencing on or after January 1, 2012. The new standards
will apply to The Elliott for the year ending March 31, 2013. |




Misstatements

Identification of misstatements

Misstatements identified during the audit have been categorized as follows:

e uncorrected misstatements, including disclosures

e corrected misstatements, including disclosures.

Uncorrected misstatements

We have not identified misstatements that remain uncorrected as at March 31, 2012.

Cori'ected misstateménfs

The corrected audit misstatements related to reclassification adjustments between current and
long-term liabilities and are included in the letter of representation included in the appendices of
this report.



Control deficiencies

Background and professional standards

As your auditors, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting (ICFR) relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. Our
understanding of ICFR was for the limited purpose described above and was not designed to
identify all control deficiencies that might be significant deficiencies and therefore, there can be no
assurance that all significant deficiencies and other control deficiencies have been identified.

Our awareness of control deficiencies varies with each audit and is influenced by the nature,
timing, and extent of audit procedures performed, as well as other factors.

Identification

We did not identify any control deficiencies that we determined to be significant deficiencies in
ICFR.

Definitions
Terminology Definition
Deficiency in internal A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation |
control of a control does not allow management or employees, in the ‘

normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent
or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A deficiency in design
- exists when: (a) a control necessary to meet the control objective
s missing; or (b) an existing control is not properly designed so
that, even if the control operates as designed, the control objective |
- would not be met. A deficiency in operation exists when a properly |
designed control does not operate as designed or the person
“performing the control does not possess the necessary authority
| or competence to perform the control effectively.
Significant deficiency in | A significant deficiency in internal control is a deficiency or
internal control combination of deficiencies in internal control that, in the auditor’s
' professional judgment, is less severe than a material weakness,
yet is of sufficient importance to merit the attention of those
charged with governance.
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Independence letter

KPMG LLP Telephone  (519) 747-8800
Chartered Accountants Fax (519) 747-8830
115 King Street South Internet www.kpmg.ca
2" Floor

Waterloo ON N2J 5A3

PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL

Audit Committee

The Elliott

170 Melcalfe Street
Guelph, ON N1E 4Y3

June 5, 2012

Dear Members:

Professional standards specify that we communicate to you in writing, at least annually, all
relationships between The Elliott (the “Entity”) (and its related entities) and our firm, that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.

In determining which relationships to report, we are required to consider relevant rules and related
interpretations prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario and any applicable
legislation or regulation, covering such matters as:

a) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement
b) other relationships such as:
— holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client

— holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to
exert significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client

— personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or
retired partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client

— economic dependence on a client.

We have prepared the following comments to facilitate our discussion with you regarding
independence matters arising since our last letter dated June 22, 2011.

12



PROVISION OF SERVICES

The following summarizes the professional services rendered by us to the Entity (and its related
entities) up to the date of this letter:

Description of Service

Audit

e Audit of the Entity’s financial statements

¢ Audit of the 2010 Long-Term Care Report

OTHER RELATIONSHIPS

~ We are not aware of any other relationships betweern our firm and the Entity (and its related entities)
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence up to the date of this letter.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

We confirm that we are independent with respect to the Entity (and its related entities) within the
meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct/Code of Ethics of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontario as of the date of this letter.

OTHER MATTERS

This letter is confidential and intended solely for use by those charged with governance in carrying
out and discharging their responsibilities and should not be used for any other purposes.

KPMG shall have no responsibility for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as
this letter has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any third
party or for any other purpose.

Yours very truly,

K& 24P
e

Chartered Accountarits, Licensed Public Accountants

T™M/kh
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Management representation letter

KPMG LLP

115 King Street South
2" Floor

Waterloo, ON N2J 5A3

June 26, 2012

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We are writing at your request to confirm our understanding that your audit was for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the financial statements (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements™)
of The Elliott (“the Entity”) as at and for the period ended March 31, 2012.

We confirm that the representations we make in this letter are in accordance with the definitions as
set out in Attachment I to this letter.

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

GENERAL:

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter
dated March 12, 2012, for:

a) the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
b) providing you with all relevant information and access

¢) such internal control as management determined is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error

d) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are
reflected in the financial statements.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING:

2)  We have communicated to you all deficiencies in the design and implementation or
maintenance of internal control over financial reporting of which management is aware.

FRAUD & NON-COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS:
3)  We have disclosed to you:

a) the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud.

14



b) all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects
the Entity and involves: management, employees who have significant roles in internal
control, or others, where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial
statements. ‘

¢) all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the
Entity’s financial statements, communicated by employees, former employees, or others.

d) all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and
regulations, including all aspects of contractual agreements, whose effects should be
considered when preparing financial statements.

e) all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered
when preparing the financial statements.

COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES:

4

There are no:

a) other liabilities that are required to be recognized and no other contingent assets or
contingent liabilities that are required to be disclosed in the financial statements in
accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, including liabilities or
contingent liabilities arising from illegal acts or possible illegal acts, or possible
violations of human rights legislation.

b) other environmental matters that may have an impact on the financial statements

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

5)

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the relevant
financial reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements
have been adjusted or disclosed.

RELATED PARTIES:

6)

We have disclosed to you the identity of the Entity’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware and all related party relationships and
transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framework.

ESTIMATES:

7

Measurement methods and significant assumptions used by us in making accounting
estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

NON-SEC REGISTRANTS OR NON-REPORTING ISSUERS:

8)

We confirm that the Entity is not a Canadian reporting issuer (as defined under any
applicable Canadian securities act) and is not a United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) Issuer (as defined by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002). We also
confirm that the financial statements of the Entity will not be included in the consolidated
financial statements of a Canadian reporting issuer audited by KPMG or an SEC Issuer
audited by any member of the KPMG organization.

15



MISSTATEMENTS:

9)  We approve the corrected misstatements identified by you during the audit described in
Attachment II.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
10)  The accounting policies selected and applied are appropriate in the circumstances.

11)  There have been no changes in, or newly adopted, accounting policies that have not been
disclosed to you and appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

ASSETS & LIABILITIES —~ GENERAL: .

12) We have no knowledge of material unrecorded assets or liabilities or contingent assets or
liabilities (such as claims related to patent infringements, unfulfilled contracts, etc., whose
values depend on fulfillment of conditions regarded as uncertain or receivables sold or
discounted, endorsements or guarantees, additional taxes for prior years, repurchase
agreements, sales subject to renegotiation or price re-determination, etc.) that have not been

disclosed to you.

13) We have no knowledge of shortages that have been discovered and not disclosed to you (such
as shortages in inventory, cash, negotiable instruments, etc.).

14) We have no knowledge of arrangements with financial institutions involving restrictions on
cash balances and lines of credit or similar arrangements and not disclosed to you.

15) We have no knowledge of side agreements (contractual or otherwise) with any parties that
have not been disclosed to you.

RECEIVABLES:

16) Receivables reported in the financial statements represent valid claims against customers and
other debtors for sales or other charges arising on or before the balance sheet date.
Receivables have been appropriately reduced to their net realizable value.

INVENTORIES:

17) No inventory is stated at an amount in excess of net realizable value.

ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE:

18) We have no knowledge of economic dependence to be disclosed in the financial statements.

REVENUES:

19)  All sales transactions entered into by the Entity are final and there are no side agreements
(contractual or otherwise) with customers.

16



FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, OFF-BALANCE-SHEET ACTIVITIES, HEDGING AND GUARANTEES:

20)

21)

22)

23)

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Entity is contingently liable, including

.guarantee contracts and indemnification agreements, have been recorded and/or dlsclosed in
accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework.

The following information about ﬁnancxal instruments has been properly disclosed in the
financial statements:

a) extent, nature, and terms of financial instruments, both recognized and unrecognized;

b) the amount of credit risk of financial instruments, both recognized and unrecognized, and
information about the collateral supporting such financial instruments; and

¢) significant concentrations of credit risk arising from all financial instruments, both
recognized and unrecognized, and information about the collateral supporting such
financial instruments,

All financial assets and liabilities outstanding as of the balance sheet date have been reviewed
and correctly classified or designated as either: held-for-trading, held-to-maturity, loans and
receivables or available-for-sale financial assets or other financial liabilities in accordance
with the relevant financial reporting framework, and have been appropriately recorded at their
fair value, amortized cost or cost based on their classification or designation.

All financial and non-financial derivative instruments, including both freestanding and
embedded derivatives, have been appropriately identified and recorded at their fair value in
accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework.

GOING CONCERN:

24)

Our assessment that the Entity will continue as a going concern has taken into account all
available information about the future, which is at least, but not limited to, twelve months
from the balance sheet date.

Yours very truly,

Mr. Trevor Lee, Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Diana Hillier, Director of Finance

cc: Audit Committee
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ATTACHMENT I~ DEFINITIONS

MATERIALITY

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the
aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of the financial statements. Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding
circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both.

FRAUD & ERROR

Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of amounts or
disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement users.

Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets. It is often accompanied by false or
misleading records or documents in order to conceal the fact that the assets are missing or have been
pledged without proper authorization.

An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission of an
amount or a disclosure.

RELATED PARTIES

In accordance with the CICA Part V - Pre-Changeover Accounting Standards, Section 3840, related
party is defined as:

* Related parties exist when one party has the ability to exercise, directly or indirectly, control,
joint control or significant influence over the other. Two or more parties are related when they are
subject to common control, joint control or common significant influence. Related parties also
include management and immediate family members. :

In accordance with CICA Part V - Pre-Changeover Accounting Standards, Section 3840, a related
party transaction is defined as:

e A related party transaction is a transfer of economic resources or obligations between related
parties, or the provision of services by one party to a related party, regardless of whether any
consideration is exchanged. The parties to the transaction are related prior to the transaction.
When the relationship arises as a result of the transaction, the transaction is not one between
related parties.



Attachment Il — Summary of Corrected Audit Misstatements Schedule

| Income

e  Financial ositioni -
| effect . e

e S i L

| Description

Assets

! (Debtea“se)

Liabilites  Equity

| Increase  (Decrease)  (Decrease)  (Decrease)
- _Increase = Increase Increase

Adjustment to correct
allocation of long-term debt -
between current and long-

term.
Current portion $26,600
Long-term portion ($26,600)

Adjustment to correct
allocation of capital lease
obligation between current

and long-term.
Current portion 5 $15,704
Long-term portion | {($15,704)

Total misstatements $ - $ - $ - $ -




KPMG’s Audit Quality
Framework

Audit quality, and the respective roles of the auditor and
audit committee, is fundamental to the integrity of
financial reporting in our capital markets.

This is why audit quality is at the core of everything we do
at KPMG. And we believe that it is not just about reaching
the right opinion, but how we reach that opinion.

To help ensure that every partner and employee
concentrates on the fundamental skills and behaviours
required to deliver an appropriate and independent
opinion, we have developed our global Audit Quality
Framework.

The framework comprises seven key drivers of audit
quality.

The seven key drivers of audit quality

Driver . What it does

Tone at the top
‘ - our values and therefore non-
' negotiable

‘ Allows the right behaviours to permeate
i across our entire organization and each

- of our engagements

- Audit quality is part of our culture and

/
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. What it means to you

| Association witfnw Ethics‘above all

' the right clients

? - and conflict-of-interest issues

Clear star;aéﬂras
and robust audit

A solid rule book

' tools ‘
| that help ensure our work meets
applicable professional standards,
regulatory requirements, and KPMG's
 standards of quality :
' Recruitment,  People who add value

development and | :
| 3 * Helps us attract and retain the best
assignment of i
| appropriately
- qualified
| personnel

| developing their talents

' their specific skill sets

J Eliminates any potential independence

-‘ ' Rigorous internal policies and guidance

people and reinforces the importance of

Assigns Partners’ portfolios based on

Assures you that:

Provides you with:

Our culture supports our
promise to you of excellent
client service and a high
quality audit—consistently

You're receiving an
independent, transparent,
audit opinion

You're receiving an efficient
and high quality audit that will
help you maintain investor
confidence in your financial
statements.

An engagement team
handpicked for your business
needs — a team with relevant
professional and industry .
experience

An audit engagement team
whose qualifications evolve
as your business grows and
changes




Driver

| Commitment to
technical
excellence and
quality service
delivery

What it does ‘

The right tools for the right job

" Promotes technical excellence and
quality service delivery through training .
and accreditation, developing business
understanding and industry knowledge,

development of specialist networks, and
effective consultation processes

Perforrﬁéﬁée of
effective and
efficient audits

Commitment to
continuous
| improvement

' We understand that how an auditis |

' conducted is as important as the final
result.

A code of conduct, audit delivery tools,
and internal policies and procedures that
help ensure the work performed by
engagement personnel meets applicable
professional standards, regulatory
requirements, and our standards of
quality
‘Comprehensive and effective
monitoring
We solicit our clients regularly for
feedback. Our robust internal quality |
review program ensures the work of
each partner is reviewed every three
years. Additionally, our procedures and a
sample of our audits of listed clients are
reviewed by the Canadian Public
Accountability Board (CPAB), the
independent regulator of the
accountancy profession in Canada. The
Public Accountability Oversight Board
(PCAOB) in the US also conducts an
annual inspection of a sample of our
audits of SEC registrants. Finally, a
sample of other audits and reviews is
undertaken annually by the various
provincial institutes in Canada. We
consider the recommendations that
come from these reviews and
implement actions to strengthen our
policies and procedures, as appropriate.

What it means to you

e An audit opinion that
continues to meet your
needs as a participant in the
capital markets :

investment in technical support, | Assists you with:

e Assessing the effectiveness
and efficiency of the audit

e Performing your governance
role with confidence.




The regulatory landscape is changing

Uncertain economic forecasts and a changing regulatory environment define today's world; reliable
financial information and high-quality audits have never been more essential.

We believe that high quality audits contribute directly to market confidence and we share your objectives
of credible and transparent financial reporting. ‘ ,

Our Audit Quality Framework is pa‘rticularly relevant to Audit Committees, and we see our role in being
transparent to you as a key mechanism to support you in the execution of your responsibilities.

Our commitment to quality

The independence, judgment and professional skepticism of your auditors add value to your financial
statements, and we believe it is important to be transparent about the processes we follow to
develop a KPMG audit report. We want you to have absolute confidence in us and in the quality of
your audit.

Our own professional standards dictate technical requirements for reaching and communicating an
audit opinion. And we live and abide by these requirements. We invest heavily in our quality, and the
Audit Quality Framework helps ensure these investments are the right ones—that they help us
continuously drive and maximize our quality improvements. But we feel it is also important that we
communicate to you how we view and implement audit quality. The seven key drivers outlined here,
combined with the commitment of each individual in KPMG, are meant to do just that.

KPMG member firms across the world use this audit quality framework to describe, focus on and
enhance audit quality for the benefit of our clients and in support of the efficacy of our capital
markets.

Itis our hope that sharing our vision of what audit quality means is a significant step in building
confidence in the value of our audits.

Audit quality is fundamental to the way we work - it is non-negotiable.



Other current developments

Overview of Accounting Standard Changes for Not-for-Profit Organizations

In December 2010, -the Accounting Standards Board of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants (“AcSB") and the Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB") released the accounting
standards impacting the future financial reporting framework for not-for-profit organizations. These
standards were ‘released as a result of 3 joint, comprehensive standard setting process by both
- Boards. These standards are effective for years beginning on or after January 1, 2012. Organizations
have an option to early adopt these new Standards.

The PSAB is responsible for the accounting standards used by not-for- profit organizations that are
controlled by a government (referred to as “government not-for-profit organizations”). The AcSB is
responsible for the accounting standards used by not-for- profit organizations that are not under the
control ‘of a government (referred to as “other not-for-profit organizations”). Not-for-profit
organizations will need to assess whether they are a government not-for-profit organization or
another not-for-profit organization to ensure that they are reporting under the appropriate financial
reporting framework. o . :

Government Not-For-Profit Organizations — Accounting Standard Options

Choice of:

e Public Sector Accounting (PSA) Handbook supplemented by standards unique to not-for-profit
organizations (the 4200 series — the former 4400 series), or

e Public Sector Accounting Handbook

Transitional Guidance:

Time 2adontion By cayverim dmd mee o oo o bt ne
2 a0t on i B { anizat

e  General approach is retrospective application at transition date unless exempted through either
optional elections or mandatory exceptions.

e Estimates made at transition must be consistent with the historical estimates. Hindsight cannot
be used.

Frenvy ared ienlne

e The first financial statements prepared under the new accounting standards must contain:

— A statement of financial position with three columns—current year, comparative year
and the transition date (beginning of comparative year)

— Anote providing a reconciliation from the previously-reported amounts for opening net
assets, excess of revenues over expenses and cash flows (if significant).

e Disclosure is required detailing any exemptions used



s _ The significant changes are summarized in the chart below:

Financial statement
captions

Impact under PSA - GNPO

Buildings and
Equipment

On transition: can elect to measure items of property, plant and
equipment (PP&E) at fair value on date of transition and use that as
deemed cost going forward. The Elliott is able to make this election
on any item or combination of items. This election is available only
on the date of transition. The Elliott will be required to obtain
appraisals to substantiate the fair value of assets for which the
election is taken.

After transition: if election is taken, will result in a higher accounting
value of PP&E on the statement of financial position, with the offset
to increase net assets. If the election is taken on depreciable assets
(building, equipment), it will result in higher depreciation expense in
future years.

Employee future
benefits

Benefits that vest or accumulate:

e Are recorded as a liability and expensed in the period in which
employees render services to the government, assuming
payment of benefits is probable and the amounts can be
reasonably estimated.

Examples are:

— sick days that are paid out when the employee
terminates

— sabbaticals in which the leave is granted to provide
unrestricted time off for past service.

Benefits that accumulate but do not vest:

e Normally paid only upon an illness or injury-related absence.

e Such benefits are obligations and would be recognized by
incorporating a probability of occurrence.

Benefits that do not vest or accumulate;

s  The expected cost of providing the benefits is recognized
immediately in the period when the event that obligates the
government occurs.

Examples include:
— workers compensation claims and
—~ . maternity leave top up payments

Joint defined benefit plans:
e Account for the specific portion of the plan in accordance with the
terms of the plan.
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De I o i tte & Deloitte LLP

4210 King Street East
Kitchener ON N2P 2G5
Canada

Tel: 519-650-7600
Fax: 519-650-7601
www.deloitte.ca

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of the Board of Health,
Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health,
which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2012, and the statements of operations and surplus,
cash flows and changes in net financial assets for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health as at December 31, 2012, and the results of its operations, the
changes in its net financial assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian
Public Sector Accounting Standards.

Other Matter

Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention to Schedule 4 of the financial statements. This schedule
is unaudited and accordingly we do not express an opinion on this schedule.

T lostte LLF

Chartered Professional Accountants, Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
May 1, 2013
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Statement of operations and surplus
Total mandatory and related programs

year ended December 31, 2012

Budget Actual Actual
2012 2012 2011
(Note 8)
$ $ $
Municipal and provincial funding
Province of Ontario - MOHLTC 7,806,659 7,787,845 7,879,469
Province of Ontario - Public Health Division 5,592,676 5,592,676 5,483,015
City of Guelph 3,065,740 3,065,741 2,590,516
County of Wellington 2,272,174 2,272,174 1,839,155
County of Dufferin 1,444,696 1,444,696 1,177,507
One Time Grants - MOHLTC 431,512 2,133,317 518,881
20,613,457 22,296,449 19,488,543
Other revenue
Interest 5,000 30,667 30,186
Total revenue (Schedule 2) 20,618,457 22,327,116 19,518,729
Expenses
Salaries and wages 12,013,677 11,581,511 11,256,077
Benefits 3,251,564 2,964,038 2,804,636
Staff and volunteer training and recognition 144,854 115,122 97,261
Board of Health 24,800 27,673 21,015
Travel 326,975 300,416 313,226
Building occupancy 1,121,504 1,096,153 2,003,965
Office expenses, printing and postage 135,915 139,307 131,921
Purchased program services 1,280,324 1,005,785 1,489,068
Program materials and supplies 518,582 799,769 831,806
Office equipment 44,412 61,920 55,142
Information and IT equipment 213,169 245,402 246,377
Communication costs 175,519 163,221 152,619
One time and capital projects 1,756,062 3,212,228 692,902
Amortization - 679,634 632,468
Capital purchases (included in expenses above) - (2,965,824) (2,274,191)
Total net operating costs (Schedule 2) 21,007,357 19,426,355 18,454,292
Expenditure recoveries (Schedule 1) (388,900) {710,760) (435,545)
Total net expenditures after expenditure recoveries (Schedule 2) 20,618,457 18,715,595 18,018,747
Excess of revenue over expenses - 3,611,521 1,499,982
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year - 4,449,990 2,930,274
Net interest and transfers in reserves - 20,081 19,734
Accumulated surplus, end of year (Note 5) - 8,081,592 4,449,990

Approved by the Board of Health on May 1, 2013

Director

Director

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Statement of changes in net financial assets
year ended December 31, 2012

2012 2011

$ $

Excess of revenue over expenses 3,611,521 1,499,982
Amortization of tangible capital assets 679,634 632,468
Change in prepaid expenses (202,995} (31,532)
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (2,965,824) (2,274,191)
Other (transfer to reserve) 20,081 19,734
Increase (decrease) in net financial assets 1,142,417 (153,539)
Net financial assets, beginning of year 1,549,749 1,703,288
Net financial assets, end of year 2,692,166 1,549,749

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Balance sheet

as at December 31, 2012
2012 2011
$ $
Assets
Current assets
Cash 3,714,171 4,194,670
Accounts receivable 467,951 279,891
Due from Province of Ontario 1,978,092 81,303
6,160,214 4,555,864
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 1,858,480 1,489,062
Employee benefits payable (Note 6) 1,203,984 1,213,187
Deferred revenue 323,033 165,509
Trust liability (Note 3) 23,216 126,450
Due to programs (Note 4) 59,335 11,907
3,468,048 3,006,115
Net financial assets 2,692,166 1,549,749
Non financial assets
Tangible capital assets (Schedule 3) 5,094,330 2,808,140
Prepaid expenses 285,096 92,101
5,389,426 2,900,241
Accumulated surplus {(Note 5) 8,081,592 4,449,990

Approved by the Board of Health on May 1, 2013

Director

Director

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Statement of cash flows
year ended December 31, 2012

2012 2011
$ $
Operating activities
Excess of revenue over expenditures 3,611,521 1,499,982
Non cash charges to operations
Amortization 679,634 632,468
Net change in non-cash working capital items related to operations (1,805,830) 632,021
2,485,325 2,764,471
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (2,965,824) (2,274,191)
Net (decrease) increase in cash (480,499) 490,280
Cash, beginning of year 4,194,670 3,704,390
3,714,171 4,194,670

Cash, end of year

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2012

1. Description of business

The Board of Health for the Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Health Unit (“Public Health”) has been created
by statute under the Health Protection and Promotion Act (HPPA) and is by statute an autonomous
Board of Health. The Board of Health is comprised of municipal members representing each of the
obligated municipalities of the County of Wellington (3), the County of Dufferin (2) and the City of Guelph
(3) and 7 Provincial appointees. As stated in the agency’s Mission statement, Public Health works to
improve the health of communities and individuals in Wellington, Dufferin and Guelph through

promotion, protection and prevention.

Public Health operates health programs in accordance with the mandatory and related programs as set
out by the Province of Ontario. They also deliver several additional initiatives within Wellington, Dufferin
and Guelph including; Healthy Babies Healthy Children, Preschool Speech and Language, Healthy
Communities, Smoke Free Ontario and Canadian Prenatal Nutrition Program.

2. Significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards, and reflect the following policies:

Basis of accounting

a) The operations reported in the financial statements reflect only the programs funded by the Counties
of Wellington and Dufferin, the City of Guelph and the Ontario Ministry of Health and Long Term
Care. For programs funded by other entities, revenues and expenditures are netted and disclosed
separately on the balance sheet. These programs include Smoke Free Ontario, Healthy
Communities, CPNP, Preschool Speech and Language and Healthy Babies Healthy Children
Program.

b) The operations of Public Health general programs are funded by the Counties of Wellington and
Dufferin, the City of Guelph and the Ontario Ministry of Health and Long Term Care. Each year the
amount of expenditure is based upon budgeted approvals and is funded accordingly. Funding
amounts not received at year-end are recorded as receivable. Funding amounts in excess of actual
expenditures incurred during the year are recorded as payable or as deferred revenue depending on
the terms of the funding agreement.

Revenue and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting except as noted in these
financial statements.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Significant
estimates used within these financial statements include accrued liabilities and employee benefits
payable. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Revenue recognition

Public Health recognizes revenue from municipal funding sources when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists. Revenue generated through various programs is recognized when cash is received.
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2012

2, Significant accounting policies (continued)
Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly attributable to
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of the
tangible capital assets is amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 30 years
Leasehold improvements Term of lease
Equipment 5 years
Technology and communications 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years

One-half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal.

3. Trust liability

Public Health periodically receives funding advances from various sources for certain programs or
portions of programs. Public Health does not run these programs and operates solely as a bank account
for these programs.

2012 2011

$ $

County of Dufferin - SSILCC - 82,062
Teen Dental - NCB (Wellington) - 14,000
In motion 2,282 7,493
Growing Great Kids 2,306 3,620
F&CS - Nobody's Perfect 3,211 3,211
infection Connection Workshop 3,145 3,145
Hearing (Wee Talk) 1,955 2,255
Reduce Tanning (Odette Cancer Centre) 1,611 2,180
CINOT Pilot - 1,610
Children’s Report Card 4,900 1,400
CCO (Nutrition & Phys. Act Prog) 1,397 1,397
SNAC - 1,336
Teen Dental - NCB (Duiferin) - 887
Due to Community Food Advisors - 784
ASRTS 1,582 557
Mennonite Community Donations 715 400
Shirley’s Garden 112 112
Staff Social Fund - 1

23,216 126,450
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Notes to the financial statements

December 31, 2012
4, Due to programs
2012 2011
$ $
Due to CPNP 25,162 10,072
Due to Preschool Speech and Language 17,666 7,485
Due from Healthy Communities - (5,650)
Due from Poverty Elimination Task Force (2,574) -
Due to LDCP (Social Media Project) 19,081 -
59,335 11,907
5. Accumulated surplus and reserves
Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves as follows:
2012 2011
$ $
Surplus
Invested in tangible capital assets 5,094,330 2,808,140
Reserves for capital improvements 2,987,262 1,641,850
8,081,592 4,449,990
This reserve was established by the Board to offset the costs of future capital improvements.
2012 2011
$ $
Balance, beginning of year 1,641,850 1,763,857
Interest earned on reserve 20,081 19,734
Transfer and tangible capital asset reconciliation 1,325,331 (141,741)
Balance, end of year 2,987,262 1,641,850

The reserve for capital improvement is made up of three separate reserves. In 2007 the Board decided
to divide the reserve for capital improvement as follows into 3 separate reserve funds: one for
technology, one for facilities, and one for contingencies. In the current year the balances are: reserve
fund - technology in the amount of $270,712 (2011 - $267,552), reserve fund - facilities in the amount of
$2,307,171 (2011 - $969,699), and reserve for contingencies in the amount of $409,379 (2011 -

$404,599).

6. Employee benefits payable

2012 2011

$ $

Sick leave benefits payable 41,106 55,939
Vacation time payable 1,111,456 1,105,502
Compensation time payable 51,422 51,746
1,203,984 1,213,187
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health
Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2012

6. Employee benefits payable (continued)
Sick leave benefits payable

Under the sick leave benefit plan, unused sick leave can accumulate and employees may become
entitled to a cash payment based on the salary in effect when they leave Public Health's employment.
This plan applies to employees hired prior to January 1, 1982. The balance is reviewed at each year-end
using new salary rates.

The liability for these accumulated days, to the extent that they have vested and could be taken in cash
by an employee upon termination, amounted to $41,106 (2011 - $55,939) at the end of the year.

Vacation time payable

The provisions of the employee’s vacation plan allow the accumulation of vacation credits for use in
future periods. The approximate value of the credits as at December 31, 2012 is $1,111,456 (2011 -
$1,105,502).

Compensation time payable

Hours earned by employees that are not paid or taken are compensation time. Upon termination of
employment, any hours of compensation time that an employee has earned, but not taken, is payable at
their wage rate. The approximate value of the time as at December 31, 2012 is $51,422 (2011 -
$51,746).

7. Pension agreements

Public Health makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (“OMERS"),
which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of approximately 181 (2011 - 174) members of its staff.

The plan is a defined benefit plan that specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by
the employees based upon length of service and rates of pay.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2012 was $1,159,173 (2011 - $981,884).

8. Budget figures

The budgeted figures, which are presented for comparison purposes, are unaudited.

9. Commitments and contingencies

Public Health has leased premises under a variety of leases of which the longest expires on March 31,
2062. The minimum lease payments over the next five years are as follows:

$

2013 755,475
2014 466,960
2015 339,851
2016 357,337
2017 326,523
2,246,146

In the normal course of business, Public Health is involved in various claims. Though the outcome of
these various pending claims as at December 31, 2012 cannot be determined with certainty, Public
Health believes that their outcome will have no significant adverse impact on its financial position,
operating results or cash flows.
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2012

10. Credit facility

At December 31, 2012 Public Health has an unsecured line of credit of $1,500,000 (2011- $500,000)
bearing interest at bank prime rate of 3.00% (2011 - 3.00%), of which all remained unused at year-end.

11.  Financing agreement

On December 19, 2012, Public Health entered into a Financing Agreement with the three obligated
municipalities to finance the cost of building two new facilities at Chancellors Way, Guelph, and
Broadway, Orangeville. The Financing Agreement allows for quarterly advances of capital by the
obligated municipalities to Public Health beginning in January 2013, until the completion of the new
facilities. The total amount of the advance will not exceed $24,400,000. Interest will be calculated
annually, commencing on the 1% day of the month following the date of substantial completion of both
facilities. The interest rate will be 3.34% per annum, and the term and amortization of the loan will be
twenty years. Repayment will commence thirty days following certification by the project’s architect of
substantial completion of both facilities. The whole or any part of the capital financing under this
agreement may be prepaid at any time or times without penalty or bonus.

12. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Schedule of expenditure recoveries - Schedule 1

year ended December 31, 2012

Budget Actual Actual

2012 2012 2011

$ $ $

Contraceptive sales 75,000 68,310 73,309
File searches 1,000 1,425 2,180
Food safety courses 14,000 7,913 11,977
Guelph sexuality conference - 19,000 10,000
HPV vaccinations 22,950 29,597 23,367
Meningococcal immunizations 15,300 20,852 16,184
Other 1,650 4,323 8,160
Prenatal and breastfeeding fees 38,000 42,238 33,312
TB skin tests 4,000 5,719 5,300
Vaccines (Gardasil) 10,000 21,000 16,180
Travel clinic fees 158,500 351,698 171,395
Universal influenza immunizations 48,500 43,185 64,181
Infection Control Week - 8,000 -
Panorama Funding - 12,425 -
OLIS (e-health) - 63,880 -
Healthy Smiles Ontario {(County of Wellington funding) - 11,195 -
388,900 710,760 435,545

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Schedule of revenue and expenditures breakdown by programs - Schedule 2
year ended December 31, 2012

Total d y and related programs (cost shared & 100% MOHLTC)

Cost shared 100% Total
Cost- Small 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% Public mandatory
Cost Cost Cost shared drinking 100% 100% Enhanced Healthy 100% Enhanced Chief  Infection heaith and
shared shared shared CINOT water 100%  Provincial Needle food smiles  Infection 160% safe nursing control nurses related
mandatory  one time VBD i 3 icipal  One Time exchange safety Ontario control  Bed bugs water officer nurse  initiative programs
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Revenue
Shared funding: provincial
Province of Ontario - MOHLTC 6,181,378 - 148,919 52,226 40,600 - - 17,252 40,273 549,082 333,349 26,498 21,559 116,699 86,569 173,441 7,787,845
Province of Ontario - Public Health Division 5,592,676 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 5,592,676
Grant - One Time - MOHLTC - 2,102,247 - - - - 31,070 - - - - - - - - - 2,133,317
Sub-total provinciat funding 11,774,054 2,102,247 148,919 52,226 40,600 - 31,070 17,252 40,273 549,082 333,349 26,498 21,559 116,699 86,569 173,441 15,513,838
Shared funding: municipal
Grant - cost-shared -Guelph 1,773,958 316,739 22,436 10,708 6,117 935,783 - - - - - - - - - - 3,065,741
Grant - cost-shared - Wellington 1,314,769 234,751 16,629 7,936 4,534 693,555 - - - - - - - - - - 2,272,174
Grant - cost-shared - Dufferin 835,958 149,260 40,573 5,046 2,883 440,876 - - - - - - - - - - 1,444,696
Sub-total municipal funding 3,924,685 700,750 49,638 23,690 13,534 2,070,314 - - - - - - - - - - 6,782,611
Total cost-shared funding 15,698,739 2,802,997 198,557 75,916 54,134 2,070,314 31,070 17,252 40,273 549,082 333,349 26,498 21,559 116,699 86,569 173,441 22,296,449
General revenue
Interest income 30,667 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 30,667
Total revenue 15,729,406 2,802,997 198,557 75,916 54,134 2,070,314 31,070 17,052 40,273 549,082 333,349 26,498 279,559 116,699 86,569 173,441 22,327,116
Expenses
Employee costs
Employee salaries and wages 10,610,625 - 53,543 . 44,263 - - . 26,537 288,744 243,187 - 11,373 94,112 69,255 139,872 11,581,511
Employee benefits 2,707,759 - 13,386 - 9,871 - - - 6,634 83,005 67,070 - 2,843 22,587 17,314 33,569 2,964,038
Total salaries, wages and benefits 13,318,384 - 66,929 - 54,134 - - - 33,171 371,749 310,257 - 14,216 116,699 86,569 173,441 14,545,549
Operating costs
Staff training 107,612 - 1,578 - - - - - - - 3,310 - 2,625 - - - 115,122
Board / volunteer training and recognition 27,673 - - - - . - - - - - - - - - . 27,673
Travel 290,801 - - - - - - - - 5,501 4,114 - - - - - 300,416
Building occupancy 1,095,653 - - - " - " - - 500 - - - - - - 1,096,153
Office expenses, printing, postage 127,811 - 38 - - - - - 7,077 1,505 19 - 2,857 - - - 138,307
Professional and purchased services 679,165 - 81,287 69,635 - - - - - 151,131 509 23,384 674 - - - 1,005,785
Program materials and supplies 731,348 - 4,000 - - . - 17,252 25 29,032 13,811 3,114 1,187 - - - 799,769
Office equipment 61,059 . - - - - - - - 861 - - - - . - 61,920
tnformation and IT equipment 200,674 - 44,728 - . . - . - - - - - - - . 245,402
Communication costs 161,892 - - - - - . - - - 1,329 - - - - - 163,221
One-time and capital projects 378,165 2,802,993 - - - - 31,070 - - - - - - - - - 3,212,228
Amortization 342,668 286,200 - - 4,722 - 1,357 - - 44,687 - - - - - - 679,634
Capital purchases {517,121} (2,424,456) - - - - (19,456) - - (4,791) - - - - - - {2,965,824)
Total net operating costs 3,687,400 664,737 131,628 69,635 4,722 - 12,971 17,252 7,102 228,426 23,092 26,498 7,343 - - - 4,880,806
Total expenditures 17,005,784 664,737 198,557 69,635 58,856 - 12,871 17,252 40,273 600,175 333,349 26,498 21,559 116,698 86,569 173,441 19,426,355
Expenditure recoveries {699,565) - - - - - - - - {11,195) - - - - - - {710,760}
Total net expenditures after expenditlre recoveries 186,306,219 664,737 198,557 69,635 58,856 - 12,971 17,252 40,273 558,980 333,349 26,498 71,559 116,699 86,560 173,441 18,715,595
Excess ) of over expendi for the year
{576,813) 2,138,260 - 6,281 {4,722) 2,070,314 18,099 - - (39,898) - - - - - - 3,611,521

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Schedule of tangible capital assets - Schedule 3
year ended December 31, 2012

Leasehold Technology and Furniture Totals Totals
Land Buildings  improvements Equipment communication and fixtures 2012 2011
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Cost
Balance, beginning of year 1,004,153 420,764 176,296 408,343 2,346,602 245,920 4,602,078 2,327,887
Add: additions during the year 1,312,839 814,351 324,561 412,366 101,707 2,965,824 2,274,191
Balance, end of year 1,004,153 1,733,603 990,647 732,904 2,758,968 347,627 7,567,902 4,602,078
Accumulated amortization
Balance, beginning of year - 7,013 10,090 163,606 1,400,927 212,302 1,793,938 1,161,470
Add: additions during the year - - 132,404 82,105 434,710 30,415 679,634 632,468
Balance, end of year - 7,013 142,494 245,711 1,835,637 242,717 2,473,572 1,793,938
Net book value of tangible capital
assets 1,004,153 1,726,590 848,153 487,193 923,331 104,910 5,094,330 2,808,140

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Schedule of one time funds - Schedule 4

year ended December 31, 2012
(Unaudited)

Provincial Actual spent Actual spent Provincial Provincial Municipal Municipal Transferto Amountto
Description Funding Period funding 2011 2012 portion portion 2013 return
$ $ $ % $ % $ $ 3$
One time funding
Panorama Phase 1 Readiness April 1, 2011 to March 31, 2012 3,884 3,884 - 100% 3,884 0% - - -
Panorama Phase 2 April 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013 50,173 - 12,425 100% 12,425 0% - 37,748 -
Bed Bugs April 1, 2011 fo March 31, 2012 91,231 64,733 26,498 100% 91,231 0% - - -
Annual Guelph Sexuality Conference January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 12,000 - 12,000 100% 12,000 0% - - -
Integration of Pharmacists into 2012/2013 UIIP  January 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013 1,788 - 1,788 100% 1,788 0% - - -
Purpose Built Vaccine Refrigerators January 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013 30,827 - 29,282 100% 29,282 0% - - 1,545
PHIMS - Phase 2 (Total $220,000) January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011 149,271 199,028 - 75% 149,271 25% 49,757 - -
PHIMS - Phase 2 Approved carryover to March 31, 2012 70,729 - 86,974 75% 65,231 25% 21,744 - 5,499
ECMA (Total $184,688) January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011 116,406 155,208 - 75% 116,406 25% 38,802 - -
ECMA Approved carryover to March 31, 2012 68,282 - 60,257 75% 45,193 25% 15,064 - 23,089
Architectural Fees for New Orangeville Facility ~ January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 292,500 - 116,461 75% 87,346 25% 29,115 - 205,154
Attendance Management System January 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013 72,675 - 96,900 75% 72,675 25% 24,225 - -
Guelph New Location January 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013 974,403 - 1,041,982 75% 781,487 25% 260,496 192,917 -
Imperial Site Renovation January 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013 90,750 - 118,168 75% 88,626 25% 29,542 2,124 -
New Orangeville Location January 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013 310,463 . 359,828 75% 269,871 25% 89,957 40,592 -
Shelldale Site Renovation January 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013 438,319 - 584,425 75% 438,319 25% 146,106 - -
Woolwich Site Renovation January 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013 253,500 - 338,000 75% 253,500 25% 84,500 - -
Public Health Awareness Initiatives
Infection Prevention and Control Week January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 8,000 - 8,000 100% 8,000 0% - - -
STl Week January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 7,000 - 7,000 100% 7,000 0% - - -
World TB Day January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 2,000 - 1,319 100% 1,319 0% - ~ 681

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.
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Deloitte LLP

1005 Skyview Drive
Suite 200

Burlington ON L7P 5B1
Canada

Fas Tel: 905-315-6770
/" ™\ Fax: 905-315-6700
P wyww.deloitte.ca

0 h \\ ™ .
Independent Auditor’s Report s NN
Ve \‘3 \\\ \\
/ S N S
To the Members of / S
Downtown Guelph Business Association \\ (‘\& / \

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dowr\town Gueiph Business Association,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 3 31, 20 1}\and the statements of
operations, changes in net financial assets and-6f-cash flows for the year it 1‘@11 enasd and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other ¢ explanator;q\formatlon AN \
S, Ve
‘\ . e
Management's Responsibility for the Fmanclal Siatements o

",

N
Management is responsible for the preparation and, falr presentatlon of" these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian publi¢ sector accountmg ‘standards, and-for sush internal control as

management determines 1sfﬁ/cessary\to enable the preparatmn of finaiiéial statements that are free from
material misstatement, Wnether due to ﬁaud or error.

P &‘ *, A

g @ \‘
Auditor’s Responsnbmty \\_\ / |
"~ e B

. .

‘x S

Our responsibility is to express\ an OmeOTI on these fmanmal statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordante with { Lgnaman generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require t];dt we CDmply with ethlczﬁ *equlren ents afit 'f)lan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurarce about Whetn;g\ the financial § smtememﬂ/are free from material misstatement.

. \\ \X Vs
An audit involyves peﬁormméxgrocedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the ﬁnamaal statementsThe procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the nsks of 1 matenag misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those, \EISk as»essments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to de&gn audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, buit. not for the’purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audii\also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accountmg estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Downtown Guelph Business Association as at December 31, 2012 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector ac/c/py\nting standards.

e ~

Other Matter 4 >

. . _y S e
Budget figures are provided for comparative purposes and have not beeg’ subject to audit procedures.
Accordingly, we do not express any opinion on the budget figures. N //\ O

Y \\\ ‘7‘\‘,\
o, S,
P “ \\“«\ \\
4 - \‘\,\ \\\
V/f S f//} \\\\ ;

Chartered Professional Accountants, Chartered Accountadts .~ ~ N
Licensed Public Accountants "\\ . yd \\\
DATE /
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Downtown Guelph Business Association
Statement of financial position

as at December 31, 2012
2012 2011
N $ $
i
rd
Financial assets i \\,
Cash and cash equivalents S 27,764 107,644
Investments (Note 8) e < - 42,016
Accounts receivable <f 5N57 47,816
w7 N 13,921 197,476
Y AN ~
Liabilities N \\\ .
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities // \\ 46,441 E'&Q%
Unclaimed gift certificates e / 17,695 \ 16,%;:’55
V 64,136 39,598
NS N
Net financial assets . e / 9,785 57,878
w‘\\ f/
Non-financial assets e .
Prepaid expenses s N "\ 7,637 7,962
Tangible capital assets, net (Schedule A) S T . \ 24,512 29,819
Accumulated surplus {(Note 5) T . 41,934 95,659
s, N o \“\9/ ;

Approved by the Board

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Downtown Guelph Business Association

Statement of operations
year ended December 31, 2012

Budget Actual Actual
2012 2012 2011
$//f \\\ $ $
N
Revenues / yd
City of Guelph {
Tax levies 299,000 416,914 412,000
Carden Street promotion s\ el 164,950
Other 5000 26,937 . 37,994
Co-op advertising revenue AN - 32:39\4 AN
Grants & Sponsorships // \»\} - 136,800\\ ?’4\,\667
Partner contribution / / - - . 25,659
Events income i / 29,00 7,584  “41/500
Interest and other income . . ,/ - 15,302 3,645
o /433,000 637,931 730,415
\%\ '//
Expenses . AN
Wages and benefits i~ 217,000 216,474 202,184
Bookkeeping services e \\\ \4\,900 \\t 5,734 4,550
Advertising e 65775 213912 153574
Carden Street promotion N - -~ - 164,935
Rink contribution A ”‘\"\K T 40,000 40,000 40,000
Revitalization NS 53,500 20,478 34,347
Rent NNV 33,000 29,032 28,415
Special events AN /4,500 68,821 62,074
Consultant - planner \K e " 5,000 47,669 8,135
Member communication N AN 2,000 2,208 3,570
Equipment rental ™ N AN > 4,000 1,735 2,466
Telephone and fax ™. ) ] N 5,500 5,041 3,446
Training and development “ T 4,500 7,017 1,770
Miscellaneous T 3,700 5,461 1,868
Office supplies AN S 4,000 6,688 2,558
Legal and-prefessional ‘\\ e 4,000 3,358 3,300
Office’and administration AN . 7,500 3,613 5,934
Posfage A 2,500 4,384 3,606
Cffice repaifs and-maintenance o 2,000 2,354 3,212
Bark charges . N\ 500 238 542
Insurafieg . N 25 272 24
Amortizaticn - 7,167 3,499
N } 473,000 691,656 734,009
\\ ;
Annual deficit . yd (40,000)  (53,725) (3,594)
Opening accumulated surplus 95,659 95,659 99,253
Ending accumulated surpliis 55,659 41,934 95,659

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Downtown Guelph Business Association

Statement of changes in net financial assets
year ended December 31, 2012

2012 2011
‘, $ $
//‘\"\2
Annual deficit 7 (53,725) (3,594)
Use of prepaid expense // /325 5,080
Acquisition of tangible capital assets yd {11860) (33,318)
Amortization of tangible capital assets éf . 7,167 3,499
Change in net financial assets S \(48,093) (28,333)
Net financial assets, beginning of year N\ 57,878 .. 86,211
Net financial assets, end of year AN 9,785 57,878
A o AN
/ J \&\ \>
yd e
AN S
\\, \\» // \t\\
., o 7
. ) /
/m\\ \\\ \\\
{' \‘% \\ \a\
\7\\\ Ry \\& y
. "‘r;?\ “\\\ e
N \\\ \\“\\ T -
\ -, P N,
\\ N \‘:y
f/” AAAAA - T \\\ f/ f“\\’\&/{f
f/f ‘\\ \’a \
/ P Y \ !
L <\ N ‘\E * g yd
AN VAR N
\\ ,,,,,, \M‘”\«
\\ & “ \\N\ ) o
- . . M\“‘“w% s
g o A\\ \“\ e
’ ) \\ \\\ \%\\
< . AN \
A AN (‘j\\ \\\\ \\\ \/
\\\ \\\\ \\\ AN .
e ™ %
., \\ \\\\f Vi ‘;
.
. /
N f/
N4

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Downtown Guelph Business Association

Statement of cash flows
year ended December 31, 2012

2012 2011
$ $
/r\‘«\
Operating activities , / \\\;
Annual deficit / (53,725) (3,594)
ltem not affecting cash - amortization yd 167 3,499
Changes in non-cash working capital components Q \
Accounts receivable N /\%(3,34'&\ (27,959)
Prepaid expenses ~ ~325 ~_ 5,080
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities /\\ (76:3‘32) \‘\80,391
Gift certificates AN 1,040 000
/ (125,036) ™. 58,4417
i AN &
{ f/ s o
Investing activities N S \\
Purchase of tangible capital assets S ~ S/ (1,860) (33,318)
Decrease in investment \‘\ ’ / 42,016 -
e N 40,156 (33,318)
AN N \\
Change in cash and cash equivalents AN AN . (84,880) 25,099
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year T . 107,644 82,545
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ‘\ . T ™ S 22,764 107,644
\\ -, ”;\\“\,_» e .
:\&\ A\;:‘) ‘\\‘\
\\\ 5 ) . h\\t}
— N, y ,./f
/’ \\ \
é/’“‘%w \\'\ S \\
‘5: R‘\; é \3\ y
. N/ L
«.\\\ \1: \\\\\\\\\\\\ j/?
***** — N \\ - » 7
ye : . ;
f"/ e \‘*«,
/ ., AN
ya 4 e \‘\“ ﬁ/ g
V ‘H\\ A ~ . \\ N
x\ ‘»\.\ i\
‘&\L\‘L 3 ,%1
o \j/ !
.f//y

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Downtown Guelph Business Association

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2012

1. Description of the business 7 .

The Downtown Guelph Business Association (the “Association”) was credted by the(uty of Guelph, to
promote the downtown businesses to the public in order to allow the downtown aréa to thrive. The
Association acts on behalf of its members, who are the various busm\sses that are located in the

downtown area of Guelph. S \
\\f 4\\
.
2, Accounting policies /\ \\
The financial statements have been prepared by managernent in occordance with Canadian pubhc\%
sector accounting standards established by the Public Sector Aceountmg Board of the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants, and reflect the fol\dwmg policies: A v
Cash and cash equivalents \\ /’( b \f
Z
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term lnve§tments wntp “maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition. N .
“ o
Investments A -, <.
a4 m\\\ \\ \“‘\
Investments are accounted for at cost, . .
\\ V\x %\ 7
Tangible capital assets N S N

Tangible capital assets are recorded at co\s*xwhlc.\indgdes\é\ﬂ“ﬂmounts that are directly attributable to
acquisition, construction, development or betcgrmer.i;\of the asset. n,ngible capital assets received as
contributions are recorded at their fair value at uhe daté of recelpt The tost, less residual value, of the
tangible capital assets L,'ah.ortlzed ona stra;ght—me basis over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Furniture and fi xtur@s \\ \‘\ 5\vears
Computer equn“ent N \X \ 3 years
Y
One half of the a'mual an*ortlzauon is apphed to assets errznased within the year.
. ™, z s
Gift certificates \\\ T
The Association issues gn‘* cemflcc.tes“ hx;gughout thc2 community, which are recorded as a liability until
redeemed “\\ \\\ m‘“\\! S
(‘lfts in kmd S Ny N
™ S
Donated ool d Q s and facilities\a\[\e/ngt reported in these financial statements.

Revenue recogn,f/on ‘:"\

oy
Revenues are, reporfnd on the accrual basis of accounting which recognizes revenues as they become
avallabac and m\easurable Expendxtures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting which
recogmzes\expend.\ufes as they are incurred and measurable as a result of a receipt of goods or
services and Lhe creation of a 'legal obligation to pay.

Use of estlmates A 4
The preparation of th%“ﬁ/nancial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported periods. Significant
estimates used within these financial statements include the liability for unclaimed gift certificates. Actual
results could differ from those estimates and assumptions.
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Downtown Guelph Business Association
Notes to the financial statements

December 31, 2012
/”\\
3. Commitments v N
/ S,
The Association is committed to payments for premises and certain ofﬂcp equlpmen and other financial
commitments over the next three years as follows: // <0
AN
\\ jf.f\x, \\x\‘ $
AN AN
o N e
) N, T
2015 pd D S 19488
e 472344
a\,{\k\yz A %‘\a‘\j j‘ .
4, Reserve for contingency \“\ /
This reserve, which was established by the Association to offsenfuture changes within the property tax
allocation from the City of Guelph and to.meet the Association’s Commxtme“*ts amounted to $17,422
(2011 - $65,840) at the end of the yean \'“\ S “\\
e, . \X\
5. Accumulated surplus \ &«\“»\* \\\ /
N ‘;;:\\ . v
NN 2012 2011
R AN T w\\\
Y — $ $
\'z A ,«“V/ g
Consists of /‘M T AN oS
Reserve (Note 4), 17,422 65,840
Investment in ;;nglb!e capual asseta N 24,512 29,819
Lo 41,934 95,659
x,,\\ \\\ /f F—— — ’
6.  Investments \\ . nwv\%
Excgss.cash not needed in the regula. operataons Of the Association was invested in one year cashable
gwaranteed investment certificates (GIC’s). The GIC's had an annual interest rate of 0.85% and 0. 75%
,and matured on l\/'arch 12,2012 and Octobe,r 19, 2012, respectively.
/ A \‘a \/,,\ ’;/
7. . Flnanc'al |nstmments e
Cred/t sk \ \
The As‘sgonatlonlq\pnnupal fi nanmal assets are cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and
investmerits, whicharé subject to credit risk. The carrying amount of financial assets on the balance
sheet represe'us the Assomauon s maximum credit exposure at the balance sheet date.
The Assocuatlon 5 eredit Tlok is primarily attributable to its receivables, as the investments consist of
GIC’s guaranteed by'a ghartered bank. The credit risk on receivables is limited as the amounts owing
are from other city government entities.
Fair value
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, investments, and accounts payable
and accrued liabilities is approximately equal to their carrying values due to their short-term maturity.
8. Comparative figures

Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.
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Downtown Guelph Business Association
Schedule of tangible capital assets - Schedule A

year ended December 31, 2012

Computer Furniture
equipment and fixtures v 2012 2011
$ $ $ $
e N
>

Cost / e
Beginning of year 2,512 *3/0,807 {33,319 -
Add: additions during the year 1,504 < 356 *1.860 33,318
End of year N . 35179 33,318

~ \\

Accumulated amortization /\\ ‘\\ N
Beginning of year 419 ™~ 3,081 3,5013\\ \ -
Add: amortization during the year °'§/8 6,179 7,467 . 3,489
End of year , 10,667 -3,499

. 7N
Net book value \“\ \/ ; 24,512 29,819
BN e
S <
X \\ .
P /f T "\\ \ﬁ\ N “
{\\\ \\ h I \y\\s ’:}
b . - e
\\% \\\ § \\\\
AN \%ﬂ “\\ N\\\
\\\ ) AV d x\“‘/‘;
o ~ // \“\w,’
< \\ \/
e \\ \\

Vs . 5 '\ \\
) s x\\ . S
SO S "a N

2\.\\ ) : %u‘m\\ o
N <: \%”w& /j
e, AN \‘\ x\\ <
S, o \\' \% —y
T \\\ \‘
Ve N . 2
4 ST ™. o
~ AN N A
p . m\\& . h 5,
F\”\\ A . \\‘:‘: \\,
AN
“« "
N ;
\\
o

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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2012 Performance Measures Report Card

Ty i s

Legend

¢ Positive: ( Caution: in the right range @ Negative: take o= Positive change
stay the but may be moving in the corrective action
course wrong direction = Negative change

Financial Indicators

2012 finding

Change from
2011 to 2012

2011 finding

Financial Position per Capita

Operating Surplus Ratio

Receivables as % of taxes levied

Net financial assets

Net financial asset as % of own
revenues

Liquid assets to total reserves

Debt to Total Reserve ratio

Debt Outstanding per $100k of
Unweighted Tax Assessment

Debt interest as a % of own
source of revenues

Tax-based Reserves & Reserve
Funds

Operating reserves as % of own
source of revenue

Capital reserve contributions as %
of asset value

Capital reserve contributions to
depreciation

Enterprise Reserve & Reserve
Funds

Operating reserves as % of own
source of revenue

Capital reserve contributions as %
of asset value
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Financial Position per Capita: This term refers to the remaining assets in excess of all liabilities
compared to net surplus on a per capita basis. Positive balances indicate the City’s margin of safety it
possesses to cover debt obligations and to have funds set aside for future sustainability. The City aims
to be above the average per capita ratio as reported by the consulting firm BMA in the prior year. The
City’s ratio has increased the past 3 years while the BMA reported municipal average has declined;
indicating the City has maintained a very balanced approached to managing liabilities over the long-

term.

Operating Surplus Ratio: This ratio provides perspective on how much of the City’s own source of
revenues were left after normal operations that could be used to fund reserves, repay debt and invest in
capital projects. There was a slight negative trend from 2011 but the City was still above the targeted
5% ratio.

Receivables as % of taxes levied: Uncollected property taxes as a percentage of total taxes charged is a
strong indication of the strength of the local economy and the ability of the community to pay their
annual tax billings. The City continues to be well ahead of the average reported by consulting firm BMA
of 6% in 2011 showing the City has great economic health and strong internal controls over tax

collection.

Net financial assets: This ratio is an indicator of the City’s ability to repay liabilities at a point in time and
is a useful trending tool. The positive trending in 2012 indicates that the City created financial assets at
a faster pace than it entered into liabilities. Movement of this ratio depends on the balance of financial
assets compared to liabilities; cash and investment holdings play a significant role in this ratio.

Net financial asset as % of own revenues: Similar to the ratio as described above, this indicator is
annualized by comparing the net financial asset position to current revenue and provides an additional
level of understanding useful for trending analysis and financial monitoring. In 2012, the negative trend
on this ratio warns that the City’s operating expenditures are increasing at a faster pace than net assets.
The City should consider this when building the 2014 budget to ensure revenues continue to match
expenditures and reliance on reserves to fund operating expenditures is diminished.

Liquid assets to total reserves: As reserves are a critical component of the City’s long-term
sustainability, there is an expectation that the amounts that are set aside in reserves are liquid and
available for use when required. This ratio compares the cash and investment balances to the reserve
and reserve fund balances and a ratio of less than 1 would suggest asset levels need to be monitored
closely. The City is proud that is has met this target in 2012 and continues to have a balanced
approached to managing the cash and investment position considering the City’s current liabilities as

well as its reserve and reserve funds.

Debt to Total Reserve ratio: This indicator provides a measure for financial prudence by comparing total
debt to the total reserve balances. Generally, the benchmark suggested for this ratio is 1:1 or in other
words, debt should not exceed total reserve and reserve fund balances. At the end of 2012, the City has
met this standard and there was a significant strengthening of this ratio year over year. It should be
noted that planned debt issuances are not included in this calculation even though they have been



approved in the capital budget. The positive result on this ratio is a strong indicator for assessing long-
term sustainability and the ability to meet the City’s debt obligations.

Debt Outstanding per $100,000 of Unweighted Tax Assessment: This ratio shows total debt compared
to the value of the unweighted tax assessment base and provides a fair basis to compare the City of
Guelph debt to other municipalities. The target for this ratio is set at the average municipal rate as
reported by BMA in the previous year. During 2012 the City is still outside this range, but has improved
considerably over 2011 due to there being no debt issuance in 2012. it should be noted that this
indicator does not reflect the City’s ability to pay its debt obligations, but is merely a comparison to
other municipalities on its debt load.

Debt interest as a % of own source revenues: This ratio indicates the extent to which the City’s own
source revenues are committed to debt charges and again is a useful tool when comparing to other
municipalities. Debt charges continue to be less than 2% of own source of revenues and fall within a
normal level compared to other municipalities.

Operating reserves as % of own source of revenue: This indicator analyzes the health of the operating
reserves by focusing specifically on the stabilization and contingency reserves compared to own
revenues. The benchmark changed in 2011 to be 5%-10% rather than the 8% — 10% based on a review
of what other municipalities and the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) suggests.
Additionally, the City believes that 5% is more affordable and provides sufficient funds for an emergency
situation. In 2012, the City has split the presentation of these ratios to show the tax-based vs.
enterprise ratios as this provides better information for planning purposes.

Tax Supported: During 2012, there was a slight betterment year over year on the tax-supported
ratio although the balance is still approximately half of what is targeted. Given that it is still
considerably under the target position and would not be sufficient to manage the impact of a
significant emergency situation, staff are highlighting this as a ratio that needs attention and
corrective action.

Enterprise: The enterprise contingency funds have met targeted levels in 2012 .

Capital reserve fund contributions as % of asset value and % of depreciation: These two ratios provide
insight on the level of reserve funding for future capital purposes compared to the total value of
depreciable assets and to the current rate of depreciation. As a rule, the City should be at a minimum
funding the capital reserves at the same amount as the annual depreciation expense and as a
benchmark capital reserve contributions should approximately 2 to 3% of total asset value. These target
rates will prevent sudden tax rate spikes by spreading the cost of infrastructure replacement over many
years and provides prudent contingency capital funds for significant unexpected infrastructure
expenses.

Tax Supported: During 2012, the tax-supported capital contributions as a percentage of total assets
and depreciation have declined year over year mostly due to the significant investment and
capitalization of assets funded from government stimulus programs. The decline in contributions



compared to depreciation has pushed this target outside the benchmark range in 2012 and for this
reason, a caution indicator has resulted.

Enterprise: For both ratios, the City continues to be on target and in a healthy range for annual
contributions for capital infrastructure.



2012 Unconsolidated
Financial Statement
Highlights

Presented to Audit Committee by Finance
June 12, 2013



Agenda

1. Overview
2. Statement of Financial Position
3. Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus



Overview:

 These statements provide Council and the
public a full picture of the financial position of
the organization

* Provide a basis for many of the corporate
financial ratios that the City monitors annually

 They include all the assets and liabilities of the
City and provide explanations in the notes for
more complex items



PSAB Standards:

®* These unconsolidated statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Public Sector Accounting Board Standards (except they exclude
the consolidated entities as required by the standards)

« These statements are not audited

* Provides for consistency and comparability of reporting
between all governments and their agencies

 Ensures completeness and transparency of financial
information for all stakeholders
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1. General Concepts

3. Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus



Statement of Financial Position

Assets:
e Cash and investments
*Tangible capital assets

Liabilities:
* Net debt
« Employee future benefits

3 Year Net Financial Asset Trend

($millions)

2010 2011 2012

30%

- 28%

- 26%

- 24%

- 22%

- 20%

mmm Financial Assets
mmm Financial Liabilities
mmm Net Financial Assets

- Financial Liability Ratio



Cash and Investments

2012 City of Guelph

Ratio Target Actual Result
Cash + Investments vs.
Reserves + Reserve Funds 1:1 1:1.1 ()

« Debt issuance
 Capital spending levels

e Increased investment
holdings

$116

.
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$80

Funds

(in $millions)
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Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible Capital Asset (TCA) Spending and Ratio Trending
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Net debt ratios

Ratio Target 2011 BMA | 2012 City of Result
Average Guelph Actual
Debt to reserves / 1:1 1.4 .75
reserve funds C
Debt per $100,000
unweighted tax BMA Average $577 $773 (
assessment
Debt interest as a
% of own BMA Average 1.5% 1.5%
revenues C




Employee Future Benefits

Reserve Target 2012 Target | 2012 Reserve Result
Balance Balance

95% of the

Sick leave Sick Leave $6,823,928 $7,700,000 C
Liability
50% of the

WSIB WSIB Liability |$1,933,449 $2,246,000 C
95% of the

Land Ambulance |Severance $842,649 $440,000

Severance Liability (

Retiree Benefits Minimum = $2,000,000 $1,184,000 .
$2,000,000
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Reconciliation of PSAB surplus to operating surplus

Ending Surplus - PSAB

Capital related items:
Add: Amortization of tangible capital assets
Less: Revenues related to tangible capital assets
Less: Operating fund expenses capitalized
Add: Capital fund expenses not capital in nature
Add: Disposal of tangible capital assets

Debt related and other items:
Less: Change in employee future benefits
Less: Change in landfill post close liability
Less: Gain on fair market value of SWAP Debt
Add: Loss on Government Business Enterprises
Add: The Elliot loan principal payment
Add: Interest on debt funded by DC reserve funds
Less: Repayment of debt principle (exluding DC funded)

Reserve related items:
Less: Operating fund transfers to reserves
Add: Operating fund transfers from reserves

Ending Surplus - Tax supported
Ending Surplus - Enterprise

$ 36,737
39,563
(43,066)
(1,040)
16,326

570 12,353
(978)
(650)
(208)
1,618
752
549

(7,772) (6,689)
(47,767)

9,505 (38,262)

$ 4,139

660

3,479

$ 4,139
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2012 Expenses:

Planning and
Recreation and cultural development General government
services 2% (2011 - 2%) 7% (2011 - 7%)
11% (2011 - 11%)

Social housing
5% (2011 - 6%)\
Social and famy»

Protection services
21% (2011- 21%)

services
10% (2011 - 9%)

Health services : ‘
6% (2011 - 5%)
Environmental services
20% (2011 - 21%)

Transportation services
18% (2011 - 18%)
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2012 Expenses:

$Millions
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Expenditures by Type

®2012

®2011
=2010

Salaries, wages Interest on long Materials Purchased Rents and External Depreciation

and employee
benefits

term debt services financial transfers
expenses
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Reserves and Reserve Funds

Capital Capital Contributions to
Contributions to Result Net tangible capital Result
Depreciation asset value
Target Actual Target Actual

Tax 1 .75 2% 3.9%
Supported ¢ C

Enterprise 1 2.5 2% 7.7%
@ @

15



Reserves and Reserve Funds

Operating % of Own Result
contingency Target Source
reserve Revenue
balances 2012
Tax Supported $6,939,000 5%-10% 2.90% o
Enterprise $4,456,000 5%-10% 8.35% P

16



Conclusion

Overall the financial statements highlight that

the City continues to be in a healthy stable
position
Ratios continue to be strong

Cash and investment holdings continue to be at
appropriate levels for financial stability

Repaid $9.4m of debt principal and renegotiated the
terms of two loans to realize savings

Capital spending has decreased substantially after 3
years of above average activity spurred by federal
and provincial government stimulus initiatives; City is

reflecting, assessing and planning for future i
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TO Audit Committee
SERVICE AREA Finance & Enterprise
DATE June 12, 2013

SUBJECT 2012 Unconsolidated Financial Statements and City
Financial Highlights

REPORT NUMBER FIN-13-25

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PURPOSE OF REPORT
The purpose of this report is:
a) To present the 2012 City of Guelph unconsolidated financial statements;
b) To review the City of Guelph 2012 financial highlights; and
c) To provide a reconciliation from the operating surplus to the financial
statement surplus that is presented in accordance with Public Sector
Accounting Standards

KEY FINDINGS
The City’s lower than expected capital spending in 2012 impacted the financial
position of the City in a variety of ways including:
« Increased cash and investment holdings of $8m
« Increased deferred contributions of $15m and decreased accounts
payable and accrued liabilities of $13m
+ Decreased contribution revenue earned (and increase in deferred
contribution revenue) from Government of Canada, Province of Ontario
and development charges totalling $23m

The City repaid $9.4m in debt principle and refinanced two term loans in order
to obtain more favourable interest rates which saved the City approximately
$222k in annual interest costs.

The City continues to be in a stable and healthy financial position although
certain operating reserve indicators have highlighted risk areas that will be
addressed during the 2014 budget cycle.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

These statements are for internal purposes only and are not audited. There are
no financial implications resulting from this report. The identified savings
relating to refinancing of debt in 2012 has been reflected in the 2013 and future
year budgets.

PAGE 1



STAFF Guélph
REPORT P

Making a Difference

ACTION REQUIRED
THAT the Report FIN-13-25 entitled “"2012 Unconsolidated Financial Statement
and City financial highlights” be received.

RECOMMENDATION
THAT the Report FIN-13-25 entitled 2012 Unconsolidated Financial Statement and
City financial highlights” be received.

BACKGROUND

Annually, City Council is required to review and approve the City of Guelph Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements as required by the Municipal Act. Audit
Committee has been presented with these statements as part of report FIN-13-23.

Although not specifically required by the Municipal Act, Audit Committee has also
requested City staff present unconsolidated financial statements as it would provide
more comparative and relevant information for Council members.

REPORT
Throughout this report, please refer to Appendix A for references to the City’s 2012

unconsolidated financial statements. These statements consist of only the City of
Guelph’s operations (including Guelph Police Services Board and Guelph Public
Library Board) and have not been audited.

These financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that
recommendations as proposed in FIN-13-26 “2012 Final Year End Variance Report”
will be approved by Council as presented. These financial statements will change if
those recommendations are amended.

Statement of Financial Position - The Statement of Financial Position is a
summary of the City’s assets and liabilities as well as the ending accumulated
surplus which includes the reserves and reserve funds.

The City’s net financial liabilities ratio is a key indicator of its overall fiscal condition
and shows the extent to which the City can meet its financial liabilities with current
operating revenues. It is calculated as net assets as a percentage of operating
revenues. In 2012, the City is in a net financial asset position of $71m which is an
increase of $8m over 2011. As a percentage of operating revenues, the net asset
trend over the past 3 years has been stable indicating the City is generating the
appropriate amount of revenue to fund its financial liabilities.
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3 Year Net Financial Asset Trend
(Smillions)
350 30%
300
- 28%
250
B Financial Assets
200 A - 26%
I Financial Liabilities
150 - - 24%
° Net Financial Assets
100 o .
L 229% = Financial Liability Ratio
50 A —
- - 20%
2010 2011 2012
Highlights:

e Increase of $15m in cash and investment holdings- the target measure of
cash and investment holdings is a 1:1 ratio with the City’s reserve and
reserve fund balances. In 2012 the City’s cash and investment holdings
actually surpassed this target by $14m which is mostly the result of lower
than expected capital spending. Additionally, the City implemented a new
cash flow management modeling process in early 2011 that has proven to be
successful in monitoring these levels compared to budgeted spending in the
short and long-term.

Cash and Investment vs Reserves and Reserve Funds
(in Smillions)

$162
$148

$147

$141

| @ Cash and
Investment

M Reserves and
Reserve Funds

2009

2010

2011

2012
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Decrease in taxes receivable by $2.6m- the City continues to have a very
favorable taxes receivable balance as a percentage of taxes levied. This
ratio indicates the ability of the community to pay their taxes and can be a
valuable indicator for revenue planning at the City. The 2011 BMA average
for municipalities in the southwestern region was 6% and the City’s 2012
position is very strong at 2.4% (2011 - 3.7%). Our low rate reflects the
economic health of our City contributed in part to the low unemployment rate
as well as increased staff resources dedicated to collection of arrears.
Enhanced payment options implemented in 2012 have also contributed to the
reduction in arrears.

Reduction of net debt by $9.4m - During 2012, the City has repaid $9.4m in
debt principle and incurred $4.3m of interest on long-term debt. There were
no new debt issues in 2012 although the City did refinance two long-term
loans to earn a more favorable interest rate which resulted in a savings of
approximately $222k in annual interest costs. The City continues to have
strong debt ratios including debt to total reserves, debt outstanding per
$100,000 of un-weighted assessment and debt interest as a % of own source
revenue. It should be noted that these debt ratios are based on the City’s
actual debt balances and does not consider planned debt approved in the
capital budget. The City is planning a debt issue in late 2013 or early 2014
to fund a number of capital projects and this will bring the City’s ratio more
in line with the BMA average.

2011 2012 City of

Ratio Target BMA* Guelph Result
Average Actual
Debt to
reserves / 1:1 1.4 .75 C
reserve funds
Debt per
$100,000 un- BMA $577 $773 C
weighted tax Average
assessment
Debt interest as BMA
a % of own Average 1.5% 1.5% ¢
revenues

*BMA is a consulting firm that prepares an annual comparative analysis of
municipal Financial Information Returns for a group of participating
municipalities.

Increase of $28.9m in tangible capital assets — During 2012, the City spent
$48.3m on capital investment and picked up $20.7m of contributed
subdivision assets (2011 - $94.9m of capital investment and $9.9m of
contributed subdivision assets). These additions were offset by depreciation
expense of $39.6m and net disposals of $569k. Capital spending decreased
by $46.6m compared to 2011 which was due in part to a lower budget than
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in 2011 but also the City was under spent compared to budget. After two
years of significantly higher than average spending due to the Infrastructure
Stimulus Funding Program and a number of large facility projects, 2012 has
shown to be a regrouping year where City staff have focused on planning and
preparing for future projects.

Tangible Capital Asset (TCA) Spending and Ratio
Trending
140
- 15
120 /)\\
@ 100 -~ X I Capital Spending
% 80 - 1.0 = Capital RF Contributions
I Depreciation
60 =>¢=Contribution Ratio Target
20 L 05 =#¥=Contribution Ratio
=@-Asset Consumption Ratio
20
2009 2010 2011 2012

The contribution ratio compares the City’s contributions to capital reserve funds
compared to depreciation of the City’s tangible capital assets. The target of 1:1 for
this ratio ensures that the City is at a minimum contributing to replacement of
tangible capital assets at the same rate that assets are aging. The City has been
successful over the past four years to keeping this ratio on target but cautions that
the decline that occurred from 2011 to 2012 does not continue through 2013 and
2014.

The asset consumption ratio shows the tangible capital asset depreciated value
compared to their historical costs. This ratio seeks to highlight the aged condition
of the City’s assets and the potential replacement needs. Based on the 2011 BMA
report, the average consumption ratio for the province is 32.4% compared to the
City’s 39.4% in 2012. The higher ratio indicates that the City’s assets are of a
greater age than average and continued focus on developing and maintaining a
corporate-wide asset management plan should remain a high priority.
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Overall, this Statement of Financial Position highlights that corporately The City of
Guelph has maintained a strong fiscal position with the appropriate level of liquid
assets to support its reserves and current liabilities.

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

The Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus reflects, above all else, that
the City ended in a net surplus position for 2012 of $36.7m (2011 - $62.1m). It
also details the significant components of revenues and expenses and shows these
components as compared to the approved council budget.

Due to these financial statements being prepared in accordance with the PSAB
standards, the net surplus reported differs from the surplus reported by staff in
report FIN-13-26 “2012 Final Year End Variance Report”. It is important to
emphasize that both surplus numbers are computed on the same underlying data;
they are just presented in a different format based on the needs of cash-based
operating and capital budgeting versus the needs of accrual-based financial
reporting.

The following is the reconciliation between the ending PSAB surplus of $36.7m to
the ending 2012 tax supported and enterprise surplus of $4.1m:

Ending Surplus - PSAB $ 36,737
Capital related items:

Add: Amortization of tangible capital assets 39,563

Less: Revenues related to tangible capital assets (43,066)

Less: Operating fund expenses capitalized (1,040)

Add: Capital fund expenses not capital in nature 16,326

Add: Disposal of tangible capital assets 570 12,353
Debt related and other items:

Less: Change in employee future benefits (978)

Less: Change in landfill post close liability (650)

Less: Gain on fair market value of SWAP Debt (208)

Add: Loss on Government Business Enterprises 1,618

Add: The Elliot loan principal payment 752

Add: Interest on debt funded by DC reserve funds 549

Less: Repayment of debt principle (exluding DC funded) (7,772) (6,689)
Reserve related items:

Less: Operating fund transfers to reserves (47,767)

Add: Operating fund transfers from reserves 9,505 (38,262)

$ 4,139
Ending Surplus - Tax supported 660
Ending Surplus - Enterprise 3,479
$ 4,139
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Staff have recommended that the 2012 operating surplus to be transferred to the
following reserves:

Tax supported

OMB & Legal Reserve (193) $659,937

Enterprise

Water Capital Reserve Fund (152) 1,040,578
Wastewater Stabilization Reserve (182) 100,000
Wastewater Capital Reserve Fund (153) 1,859,391

POA Capital Reserve Fund (120) 452,643

POA Contingency Reserve (211) 26,351
$3,478,963

Total Surplus Allocation $4,138,900

Revenue

Tax revenue continues to be the largest source of income for the City followed by
contribution revenues and user charges. Overall, total revenue actually slightly
declined year over year due primarily to the reduction in capital spending.

Tax revenue - Net property tax revenues have increased by $9.6m from 2011
which is due in part to the 2012 3.52% tax rate increase approved by Council in
addition to the impact of supplementary taxes collected on new properties added to
the roll.

Contributed subdivision assets - As new subdivisions are created in the City of
Guelph, the City assumes the completed infrastructure assets that were built to
support the new community. The developers pay to put this infrastructure in place
and once the subdivisions are settled and in-use, the City records in the contributed
asset as an increase to tangible capital assets and contributed revenue. In 2012,
there were a number of subdivision projects and spending that had been completed
and the assets were therefore recorded as part of the City’s holdings.

Contribution Revenue - As shown on the Statement of Operations and
Accumulated Surplus, contribution revenues consist of revenues from the Federal
and Provincial Governments, other municipalities and developers. From 2011,
contributions have decreased from 22% of total revenue to 15% mostly due to the
completion of the Infrastructure Stimulus Funding. In total for 2011, $13m is
included in revenue relating to these grants compared to none in 2012. The
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contribution revenues also includes developer and grant contributions that are

restricted to fund approved capital project expenditures incurred during the year.
Given the significant reduction in capital spending in 2012, there was a $23m
decline in revenues recognized related to this capital investment.

User charges - User charges revenues have increased by $4.9m or 7% over the
prior year. The main driver of this increase was from water and wastewater user
fees which generated $3.6m more revenue than in 2011, due both to increased

rates and higher than average consumption.

Other revenues - Other revenues have not changed significantly year over year
but highlights include:

Expenses

The increase in investment income is a result of an extra $1.45m of dividend
income from GMHI that is a result of a change in the timing of the dividend
declaration and payment to the City.
From time to time, the City incurs costs on behalf of third parties and
recovery revenue is earned to reimburse the City for their costs. This work is
usually one-time in nature and can fluctuate year to year. These revenues
increased $4m over 2012 but directly offset increases in expenditures
recorded separately in the statements.
Decrease in gain on disposal of tangible capital assets is the result of the
2011 sale of 79 acres of Hanlon Business Park land that netted a significant
gain that did not reoccur in 2012.

City expenses by major type can be seen as follows:

SMillions

160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20

Expenditures by Type
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_C—— t - .
Salaries, Intereston Materials Purchased Rentsand
wages and long term services financial
employee debt expenses
benefits

External Depreciation
transfers

2012
W 2011
W 2010
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Year over year total expenditures have increased by $24.6m, which is spread over
all expenditure categories.

e Salaries, wages and benefits continue to be the most significant component
of the City’s operating costs and have increased by $8.3m or 5.8% over the
prior year. This is due to multiple reasons including increased wage rates of
on average 2% as collectively bargained, increased cost of employee benefits
(OMERS, medical and dental, accumulated sick leave and retiree benefits)
and additional costs from the 8.93 approved FTE’s hired during 2012. A
milestone worth noting in 2012 is ratification of a new CUPE 241 and 1946
collective agreement which see’s the elimination of the accumulated sick
leave benefit. This will have positive implications for the City in future years.

+ Material expenses increased by $6.1m over 2011 but as discussed earlier,
$4m of this increase is directly offset by recovery revenues. The remaining
increase is not isolated to any one particular category and is primarily the
result of increased non-capital spending in capital projects that were
expensed in 2012.

« Purchased services increased by $4.5m over 2011 which can be attributed to
increased repair and maintenance expenses, consulting fees and legal fees.
Similar to the materials category above, this category also includes a number
of capital project expenses that cannot be capitalized due to their nature
including design fees, professional consulting on studies and investigations
and legal fees.

» External transfers increased mostly due to transfers to the County of
Wellington for 20% of the Wellington Terrace net operating cost. This on-
going dispute was settled during 2012 and as a result the City’s annual
contribution increased from previous years.

The City’s expenditures by functional area can be seen below. Compared to 2011
the City has been consistent in the amount of resources directed to each of these
service areas. Any significant deviation year over year could indicate a shift in
service priorities by Council.
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Planning and
; |
Recreation and (il’eve opmer:t General government
cultural services 2% (2011 - 2%) 7% (2011 - 7%)

11% (2011 - 11%)

Social housing
5% (2011 - 6%) Protection services

21% (2011- 21%)

Social and family
services
10% (2011 - 9%)

Health services
6% (2011 - 5%)
Transportation
services
Environmental 18% (2011 - 18%)
services

20% (2011 - 21%)

For additional details on the revenues and expenses of the City please refer to
Schedules 1 and 2 to the Financial Statements for a full breakdown by functional
area. For more information on what services are included in each of the
categories, refer to Note 23 to the financial statements.

Accumulated Surplus

Accumulated Surplus is the excess of the City’s total assets over their total
liabilities. A full break down of the Accumulated Surplus can be found in Note 15 to
the financial statements.

The most significant components of the accumulated surplus are the City’s reserves
and reserve funds. A complete breakdown of these reserves and reserve funds can
be found in Schedule 4 to the financial statements. Compared to 2011, the City
had a decrease in reserves of $1.6m and an increase in capital reserve funds of
$8m; of the net $6.4m increase, $4.1m relates to the 2012 operating surplus.

PAGE 10



STAFF Guelph
REPORT P

Making a Difference

In order to effectively manage the fiscal preparedness of the City, the following
benchmarks are used to monitor reserve levels and reserve contributions. Any
significant deviations from the targeted benchmarks are addressed through the
next fiscal year’s budget taking into consideration other City priorities.

« Capital Reserve Funds - the capital reserve fund contributions should at a
minimum be equal to the current year amortization of tangible capital assets.
Additionally, the contributions to capital reserves should be in the range of
2% - 3% of net tangible asset value.

Capital Capital
Contributions Result | Contributions to Result
to Depreciation Net tangible
capital asset value
Target | Actual Target Actual
Tax 1 .75 ( 2% 3.9% ¢

Supported
Enterprise 1 2.5 ¢ 2% 7.7% ¢

Based on this analysis, the minimum funding requirements of these capital
reserves were met on an aggregate level but when analyzed in further detail,
the City’s tax based capital reserve fund contributions did not meet targeted
levels. The City’s tax based contributions compared to depreciation expense
were approximately $6.6m lower than target indicating that the City is not
providing for replacement of tax funded capital at the same rate assets are
aging. Staff will consider these results into the 2014 budget process to
address this shortfall.

It should be noted that the minimum target is based on historic cost and not
replacement cost. The City is currently undergoing a collaborative review
with a number of departments relating to capital asset management and
determining the best practice for funding future replacement and addressing
the City’s infrastructure deficit. From this review better information on
capital reserve targets will be available and how the City should best
benchmark this funding.
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Employee Benefit Reserves - the employee benefit reserves consist of four

components and the benchmarks have been determined based on the
associated liability or need. The liabilities that these reserve benchmarks are
based are detailed in note 10 to the financial statements and are actuarially

determined.
Reserve Target 2012 Target | 2012 Actual Result
Balance Balance

95% of the

Sick leave Sick Leave $6,823,928 $7,700,000 ¢
Liability
50% of the

WSIB WSIB $1,933,449 $2,246,000 [
Liability

Land 95% of the

Ambulance Severance $842,649 $440,000 C

Severance Liability '
Minimum =

Retiree Benefits | $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $1,184,000 o

The City provides dental and health care benefits between the time an
employee retires under OMERS or retires at a normal retirement age, up to
the age of 65 for certain employee groups. The annual cost of this benefit
approximates $527k (excluding the police services board) and of this, only
$111k is provided for in the operating budget. The differential has
historically been funded from the reserves which is not a sustainable
practice. In 2012, the retiree benefit reserve was depleted by $416k to fund
these costs and if the City were to continue at this pace, the reserve will only
last approximately two more years. Staff are highlighting this funding
discrepancy as a priority consideration in the 2014 budget.

Stabilization and Contingency Reserves - the benchmark for the operating

contingency reserves is 5% - 10% of the City’s operating revenues. City
staff revised this benchmark in 2011 to be more consistent with what our
government associations suggest, even though the City’s formal policy still
This level would be sufficient to manage
any impact of another economic decline, natural disaster or other significant
unplanned expenditure.

targets this indicator at 8-10%.
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Operating
contingency % of Own Result
reserve balances Source
2012 Revenue
Tax
Supported $6,939,000 2.90% @
Enterprise $4,456,000 8.35% ¢

The City’s tax based contingency reserves consist of $6.9m, of which $4.1m
has been set aside for employee benefit and human resource matters. These
tax based reserves would not be sufficient to manage the impact of a
significant unplanned event and therefore staff will be reviewing and
considering a long-term funding plan for these reserves as part of the 2014
budget process.

The enterprise rate based reserves meet the 5% -10% of operating revenues
benchmark and are restricted to be used for emergencies within the
enterprise business groups.

« Program Related Operating Reserves - while certain program related
reserves such as the Insurance and Ontario Municipal Board have suggested
funding targets, these reserves are funded based on an as needed basis
through the budget process.

Statement of Cash Flow

This statement provides a condensed summary of how cash was generated during
the year and where it was subsequently spent. This statement’s purpose is to
reconcile the ending surplus as shown on the Statement of Operations and
Accumulated Surplus back to the ending cash on hand at the end of the fiscal year
(as shown on the Statement of Financial Position).

The first section highlights the cash earned from normal operations and starts with
the net surplus of $36.7m and adds/subtracts out items that were non-cash in
nature. During 2012, the City generated $56m in cash from operations (compared
to $90m in 2011).
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In the next two sections, capital and investing activities and financing activities
show how the City used its cash (or generated more cash) during the year. From a
capital and investing perspective, the City spent $48m on capital acquisitions,
received $1.2m in the sale of capital property and was in receipt of $1.2m of
principle repayments from loans to other entities. From a financing perspective,
the City repaid net debt of $9.4m and also received $14.7m of externally restricted
revenues that were not spent on capital during 2012.

Overall, the City’s cash position increased by $14.9m over 2011 and has invested
the majority of this excess cash in early 2013. The City was not able to invest the
excess cash by the end of the year for a variety of reasons including wanting to
keep enough cash on hand to transition the refinancing of a term loan and also to
ensure liquidity in case of significant capital invoices coming through in early 2013.
The City manages its cash balances compared to budget and given the lower than
expected capital spending, the City had excess cash reserves on hand at year end
that were targeted for these expenses that did not materialize.

CORPORATE STRATEGIC PLAN
2.1 - Build an adaptive environment for government innovation to ensure fiscal and

service sustainability.

2.3 - Ensure accountability, transparency and engagement.

DEPARTMENTAL CONSULTATION
None noted

COMMUNICATIONS
No communications are required

ATTACHMENTS
Appendix A: 2012 Unconsolidated Financial Statements
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City of Guelph

Unconsolidated statement of financial position

as at December 31, 2012
('000's)
2012 2011
$ $
Financial assets
Cash 46,300 31,451
Investments (Note 4) 116,006 115,192
Taxes receivable 5,353 7,940
Accounts receivable 27,258 34,172
Loans and notes receivable 19,782 20,949
Investment in Guelph Junction Railway Inc. (Note 5) 6,225 5,950
investment in Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc. (Note 6) 76,367 78,260
297,291 293,914
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 26,394 39,388
Accrued interest payable 742 794
Vacation and other employee benefits payable 5,124 5,015
Developer agreement deferred revenue (receivable) 1,911 (88)
Other deferred revenue 11,713 10,215
Deferred contributions (Note 7) 40,454 25,785
Employee future benefits (Note 9) 26,568 27,546
Net debt (Note 10) 108,158 117,602
Landfill post-ciosure liability (Note 12) 5,050 5,700
Other long-term liablities (Note 13) 396 -
226,510 231,857
Net financial assets 70,781 61,957
Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 14) 943,262 914,324
Inventory 1,955 2,162
Prepaid expenses 1,460 451
946,677 916,937
Contingencies (Note 19)
Commitments and guarantees (Note 20)
Accumulated surplus (Note 15) 1,017,458 978,894

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

Page 1



City of Guelph

Unconsolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus

year ended December 31, 2012
('000's)

2012 2012 2011
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 22)
$ $ $
Revenues
Taxation
Property taxation (Note 3) 185,110 184,138 174,260
Property taxation - Downtown Guelph Business Association 424 424 412
Penalties and interest on taxes 1,413 1,319 1,590
186,947 185,881 176,262
User charges 69,914 71,655 66,743
Contributed subdivision assets - 20,744 3,901
Contributions
Government of Canada 6,199 4,115 13,540
Province of Ontario 34,300 37,753 44,450
Municipal 2,745 3,037 3,346
Developers 16,760 9,930 16,556
Other 1,855 697 1,771
131,773 147,931 156,307
Other
Investment income 2,703 4,743 3,548
Donations 334 605 586
Sales of equipment, publications 3,926 4,955 5,210
Recoveries 2,582 10,668 6,619
Licences and permits 2,736 2,811 2,742
Provincial Offenses Act revenues 3,580 3,813 3,652
Other fines 960 874 745
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 4,193 642 5,853
Income (loss) from Government Business Enterprises - (1,618) 617
21,014 27,493 29,572
Total revenues 339,734 361,305 362,141
Expenses
General government 23,847 22,040 19,035
Protection services 68,999 68,977 64,871
Transportation services 49,443 58,083 52,114
Environmental services 63,861 65,971 63,202
Health services 16,218 17,436 15,948
Social and family services 30,948 31,348 28,945
Social housing 18,457 17,200 17,291
Recreation and cultural services 35,678 36,652 33,243
Planning and development 5,658 6,861 5,310
Total expenses 313,109 324,568 299,959
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year 26,625 36,737 62,182
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 978,894 978,894 915,206
Adjustments (Note 2) - - (978)
Add: Interest on / transfers to reserves and reserve funds 1,340 1,827 2,484
Accumulated surplus, end of year 1,006,859 1,017,458 978,894

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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City of Guelph

Unconsolidated statement of change in net financial assets
year ended December 31, 2012

('000's)
2012 2012 2011
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 22)

$ $

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year 26,625 36,737 62,182
Amortization of tangible capital assets 44,000 39,563 35,664
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (93,542) (48,326) (94,905)
(Gain) loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 4,193 (642) (5,853)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets - 1,211 10,067
Contributed subdivision assets - (20,744) (9,901)
Adjustment in accumulated suplus (Note 2) (978)
Interest on / transfers to reserves and reserve funds 1,340 1,827 2,484
Change in inventory - 207 290
Change in prepaid expenses - (1,009) (94)
Increase (decrease) in net financial assets for the year (17,384) 8,824 (1,044)
Net financial assets, beginning of year 61,957 61,957 63,001
Net financial assets, end of year 44,573 70,781 61,957

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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City of Guelph
Unconsolidated statement of cash flows
year ended December 31, 2012

(1000's)
2012 2011
$ $
Operating activities
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year 36,737 62,182
ltems not affecting cash:
Amortization of tangible capital assets 39,563 35,664
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (642) (5,853)
Contributed subdivision assets (20,744) (9,901)
Allowance on asset backed investment (369) (155)
Loss (gain) on interest rate swap contracts (208) 427
Loss (income) from Government Business Enterprises 1,618 617)
Employee future benefit expenses (978) 1,690
Landfill post-closure recovery (650) (300)
Interest on / transfers to reserves and reserve funds 1,827 2,484
Changes in non-cash working capital:
Taxes receivable 2,587 (459)
Accounts receivable 6,914 5,208
Developer agreement receivable/deferred revenue 1,999 916
Inventory 207 290
Prepaid expenses (1,009) (94)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (12,786) (2,711)
Accrued interest payable (52) 17
Vacation and other employee benefits payable 108 75
Other deferred revenue 1,498 891
Other long-term liabilities 396 -
Cash provided by operating 56,017 89,754
Capital and investing activities
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (48,326) (94,905)
Proceeds from disposal of tangible capital assets 1,211 10,067
Change in loans and notes receivable 1,167 267
Net investment acquisitions (445) (41,944)
Cash used by capital and investing (46,393) (126,515)
Financing activities
Proceeds from debt issuance 10,000 46,750
Repayment of debt principal (19,444) (21,991)
Net change in deferred contributions 14,669 1,513
Cash provided by financing 5,225 26,272
increase (decrease) in cash for the year 14,849 (10,489)
Cash, beginning of year 31,451 41,940
Cash, end of year 46,300 31,451

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000°s)

1. Significant accounting policies

The unconsolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the City of Guelph (the “City”) have been
prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the City are as follows:

Reporting entity

The unconsolidated financial statements reflect the financial assets, liabilities, operating revenues and
expenses and changes in investment in tangible capital assets of the reporting entity. The reporting
entity is comprised of those City functions or entities which have been determined to comprise a part of
the aggregate City operations based upon control exercised by the City, except for the City's
government businesses which are accounted for on the modified equity basis of accounting.

Modified equity basis entities

The investments in Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc. and Guelph Junction Railway Company are
accounted for on a modified equity basis, consistent with the public sector accounting standards for the
treatment of government business enterprises. Under the modified equity basis, the business
enterprise’s accounting principles are not adjusted to conform to those of the City, and inter-
organizational transactions and balances are not eliminated. Under the modified equity basis of
accounting, the carrying value of the investment in subsidiaries is adjusted to reflect the City’s share of
the net asset change of the investes.

Basis of accounting

Accrual basis of accounting

Revenue and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting, except for revenues generated
under the Provincial Offences Act which are accounted for on the cash basis. The accrual basis of
accounting recognizes revenues in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise
to the revenues; expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of
goods or services or the creation of an obligation to pay.

Taxes receivable and related revenues

Property tax billings are prepared by the City based on assessment rolls issued by the Municipal
Property Assessment Corporation (“MPAC”). Tax rates are established annually by the City Council,
incorporating amounts to be raised for local services and amounts the City is required to collect on
behalf of the Province of Ontario in respect of education taxes. A normal part of the assessment
process is the issuance of supplementary assessment rolls, which provide updated information with
respect to changes in property assessment. Once a supplementary assessment roll is received, the City
determines the taxes applicable and renders supplementary tax billings. Taxation revenues are
recorded at the time the tax billings are issued. Assessments and the related property taxes are subject
to appeal. Tax adjustments as a result of appeals are recorded as a reduction of tax revenue when the
result of the appeal process is reasonably certain. The City is entitled to collect interest and penalties on
overdue taxes and these revenues are recorded in the period the interest and penalties are levied. Tax
revenue is recorded net of reductions including rebates. Taxes receivable are reported net of any
expense or allowance for doubtful accounts.

Reserves and reserve funds

Certain amounts, as approved by City Council, are set aside in reserves and reserves funds for future
operating and capital purposes. Reserve Funds are interest bearing and the current year earned interest
is accounted for as an adjustment within accumulated surplus.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000°s)

1. Significant accounting policies {(continued)
Basis of accounting (continued)

Deferred revenue and deferred contributions

Deferred revenues and deferred contributions represent property taxes, user charges, fees, developer
contributions and other grant revenues, which have been collected but for which the related services or
expenditures have yet to be performed. These revenues have certain restrictions and will be recognized
in the fiscal year the services or expenditures are performed.

Tangible capital assets

(i) Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes all amounts that are directly attributable
to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of
the tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated lives as follows:

Land improvements - 20 to 75 years
Buildings - 10 to 75 years
Machinery and equipment -3 to 25 years
Vehicles -51t0 15 years
Sanitary sewers infrastructure - 50 to 80 years
Storm sewer infrastructure - 15 to 80 years
Transportation infrastructure - 20 to 80 years
Waterworks infrastructure - 510 80 years

The City has various capitalization thresholds, so that individual tangible capital assets of lesser .
value are expensed, unless the assets have significant value collectively (pooled assets). Examples
of pools are deskiop and laptop computers, police equipment, traffic signals, streetlights, and fire
equipment.

(ii) Land purchased for service delivery purposes is recorded as a tangible capital asset at cost. Any
land cost premium incurred or discount received related to expropriation will be included as part of
the asset to be constructed and amortized over its’ useful life.

(iii) Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recognized at their fair value at the date of
receipt, and correspondingly recognized as contributed revenue in that period. Similarly,
contributions of assets to a third party are recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of the
tangible capital asset as of the date of transfer.

(iv) Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which transfer substantially all of the
benefits and risks incidental to ownership of the asset are accounted for as capital leases. All other
leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are charged to
expenses as incurred.

Employee future benefit obligations

The cost of future benefits earned by employees is actuarially determined using the projected benefit
method prorated on service and assumptions of mortality and termination rates, retirement age and
expected inflation rates.

Past service costs from plan amendments, if any, are deferred and amortized on a straighi-line basis
over the average remaining service life of active employees at the date of the amendment. Actuarial
gains and losses on the accrued benefit obligation arise from differences between the actual and
expected experience and from changes in the actuarial assumptions used to determine the accrued
benefit obligation. The excess of the net actuarial gains or losses over 10% of the benefit obligation is
amortized over the average remaining service life of active employees.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000°’s)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of accounting (continued)

Government transfers

Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which the events giving
rise to the transfer occur, providing that the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria have been
met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made.

Investment income

Investment income earned on available funds and loans receivable are reported as revenue in the
period earned. Investment income earned on deferred contributions is recorded as an increase to
deferred contributions.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the unconsolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.
Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include valuation allowance for asset
backed investments, valuation allowances for receivables, certain accrued liabilities and obligations
related to employee future benefits and the carrying value of tangible capital assets. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.

Future accounting changes

Effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2012, all governments will be required to adopt
Public Sector Accounting Board Handbook (‘PSAB”) Section 3410 Government Transfers. This
standard provides guidance to governments for the accounting and reporting of government transfers
from both the transferring government and the recipient government in the financial statements.

Effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2014, all governments will be required to adopt
PSAB Section 3260, Liability for Contaminated Sites. This standard provides guidance on how to
account for and report a liability associated with the remediation of contaminated sites, defines which
activities would be included in the liability for remediation, establishes when to recognize and how to
measure a liability for remediation and provides guidance on financial statement presentation and
disclosure.

Effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2015, all governments will be required to adopt
PSAB Section 2601, Foreign Currency Translation, PSAB Section 3450 Financial Instruments and
PSAB Section 1201 Financial Statement Presentation. This standard provides guidance on how fo
account for and report on financial instruments and related revenue and expenditures and also provides
guidance on financial statement presentation and disclosure.

The City is currently in the process of evaluating the potential impact of adopting these standards.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

(3000’s)

2. Restatement of 2011 comparative figures

During the 2012 year, it was determined that a certain reserve fund has external restrictions and shouid
be recorded as deferred contributions.

The total impact of correcting this item in the 2011 comparative figures is as follows:

2011
As previously As
reported  Adjustment restated
$ $ $
Deferred contributions (24,500) (1,285) (25,785)
Licences and permits revenue (3,049) 307 (2,742)
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year (915,206) 978 (914,228)
Accumulated surplus, end of year (980,179) 1,285 (978,894)

3. Taxation revenue
a) Taxation collected on behalf of school boards
The net taxation levies collected on behalf of the school boards are comprised of the following:

2012 2011
$ $
Taxation 60,879 61,644
Payments in lieu 2 2
60,881 61,646

Requisitions (60,881) (61,646)

Net levy for the year - -

Included in accounts receivable are levies owed from the school boards totaling $316 (2011 -
accounts payable and accrued liabilities - $307).
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City of Guelph

Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements

December 31, 2012
($000’s)

3. Taxation revenue (continued)

b) Taxation revenue by major tax class:

Taxes - own Payments in

Supplem- Rebates & Write-

2012 ] 2012 Total
purpose lieu  entary taxes offs

$ $ $ $ $

Residential 113,358 13 2,858 (122) 116,107
Mulit-Residential 12,933 - - (163) 12,770
Commercial 30,202 4,279 1,423 {948) 34,956
Industrial 19,030 131 256 (1,342) 18,075
Pipelines 500 - 16 - 516
Farmlands 12 - - 10 22
Managed Forests 2 - - - 2
Other 24 1,666 - - 1,690
Total tax revenue 176,061 6,089 4,553 (2,565) 184,138
2011 Taxes - own Paymepts Supplem- Rebates & Write- 2011 Total

purpose in fieu entary taxes offs
$ $ $ $ $
Residential 106,635 12 2,729 (276) 109,100
Mulit-Residential 13,465 - 343 (294) 13,514
Commercial 27,727 4,007 1,069 (343) 32,460
Industrial 17,964 129 316 (1,319) 17,090
Pipelines 486 - 3 - 489
Farmlands 11 - 1 - 12
Managed Forests 2 - - - 2
Other - 1,606 - (13) 1,593
Total tax revenue 166,290 5,754 4,461 (2,245) 174,260
4, Investments
Investments are recorded at cost. The cost and market values are as follows:

2012 2011

Market Cost  Market Cost

$ $ $ $

Short-term investments 58,061 57,755 67,029 66,891

Long-term investments 59,482 58,251 48,735 48,301
117,543 116,006 115,764 115,192
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City of Guelph

Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000’s)

4. Investments (continued)

In 2009, a restructuring plan was implemented to convert frozen short-term asset-backed commercial
paper to long-term notes of various classes with terms matching the maturity of the underlying assets.
As a result of the exchange, the City recorded the new carrying value (increase of $64) but recognized
the highly speculative nature of any ultimate payment of principal at maturity by booking a provision for
impairment. The impairment is recorded net of the cost of the long-term investments and is estimated to
be 18% of the investment cost or $373 (2011 - 18% or $743).

5. Investment in Guelph Junction Railway Company

The following table provides condensed supplementary financial information for the Guelph Junction
Railway Company (the “Railway”) for the year ended December 31:

2012 2011
$ $
Financial position

Current assets 1,028 1,591
Property, plant and equipment 8,166 6,855
Total assets 9,194 8,446
Current liabilities 759 843
Long-term debt V 1,274 678
Deferred capital contributions 936 975
Total liabilities 2,969 2,496
Net assets 6,225 5,950

Results of operations
Revenues 2,087 1,699
Operating expenses 1,812 1,471
Net income 275 228
Retained earnings, beginning of year 5,950 5,722
Retained earnings, end of year 6,225 5,950

Related party transactions

The City pays certain expenses and receives certain revenues on behalf of the Railway for which the
Railway reimburses the City periodically through the year. During the year, these net expenses
reimbursed to the City amounted to $1,483 (2011 - $339). Included in accounts receivable is an amount
owing from the Railway of $343 (2011 - $287) related to the reimbursement of these current year net
expenditures. Additional payments in 2012 of $50 (2011 - $50) were made to the City to repay the
amount owing from prior years. The total amount owing to the City at year end is $95 (2011 - $145) and
is included as part of loans and notes receivable.

The Railway also paid the City $23 (2011 - $22) in office rent and administration fees. These
transactions were made in the normal course of business and have been recorded at the exchange
amounts.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements
December 31, 2012

($000°s)

6. Investment in Guelph Municipal Holding Inc.

The City of Guelph owns 100% of Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc.("GMHI") which owns 100% of the
shares of Guelph Hydro Inc ("GHI”), which in turn owns 100% of Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc.
and 100% of Envida Community Energy Inc.. The following table provides condensed supplementary
financial information for GMHI for the year ended December 31:

2012 2011
$ $
Financial position
Current assets 50,057 61,966
Property, plant and equipment 130,798 125,185
Intangible assets 314 275
Deferred charges 40 40
Future income taxes 6,885 5,993
Total assets 188,094 193,459
Current liabilities 24,933 28,516
Customer deposits and deferred revenue 13,509 13,723
Long-term debt 65,237 65,350
Employee future benefits 8,048 7,610
Total liabilities 111,727 115,199
Total shareholder's equity 48,576 48,576
Net assets 27,791 29,684
Total investment 76,367 78,260
Results of operations
Revenues 147,542 155,917
Cost of sales 119,872 127,385
Operating expenses 26,738 25,631
Income taxes (125) 1,012
Total expenses 146,485 154,028
Net income 1,057 1,889
Retained earnings, beginning of year 29,684 29,295
Dividends {2,950) (1,500)
Retained earnings, end of year 27,791 29,684

Related party transactions

GHI pays certain expenses and receives certain revenues on behalf of the City related to customer
water billings for which GHI remits to the City bi-monthly. During the year, these net revenues received
amounted to $44,478 (2011 - $41,417). Amounts owing to the City related to these transactions total
$8,613 (2011 - $8,106) and are included in accounts receivable.

Dividend income was received from the Company of $2,950 (2011 - $1,500) and is also reported as part
of investment income. These transactions were made in the normal course of business and have been
recorded at the exchange amounts.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements

December 31, 2012
($000°s)

Deferred contributions

The following funds have statutory restrictions and as such are classified as deferred contributions:

Beginning Ending

balance 2012 2012 balance

2012 Inflows Outflows 2012

$ $ $ $

Development charges 17,008 19,619 9,070 27,557
Grants 6,961 10,107 6,413 10,655
Other 1,816 435 9 2,242
25,785 30,161 15,492 40,454

The development charges are restricted for use to fund growth related capital expenditures in
accordance with the Development Charges Act. The deferred grants include federal gas tax funds,
provincial gas tax funds, infrastructure stimulus funds, federal public transit funds and Ontario bus
replacement funds. Each of the grants has a specified set of restrictions that outlines how the funds can
be utilized. The other deferred contributions include funds received for parkland dedication as restricted
under the Planning Act and funds received in relation to the Ontario Building Code Act.

Pension agreement

The City makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System (OMERS) which is
a multi-employer plan, on behalf of the 1,667 (2011 — 1,644) members of its staff. The plan is a defined
benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based
on the length of service and rates of pay. The multi-employer plan is valued on a current market basis
for all plan assets.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2012 is $10,587 (2011 - $8,983) for current service and is
reported as an expense on the unconsolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus.

As at December 31, 2012, the City has no obligation under the past service provisions of the OMERS
agreement.

As at December 31, 2012 the OMERS plan is in a deficit position of $9.9 billion (2011 - $7.3 billion),
which will be addressed through temporary contribution rate increases, benefit reductions, and
investment returns.

Employee future benefits

Employee future benefits are current costs of the City to its employees and retirees for benefits earned
but not taken as at December 31 and consist of the following:

2012 2011

$ $

Workplace Safety and Insurance ("WSIB") 3,867 3,549
Sick leave 8,288 10,222
Post retirement benefits 14,413 13,775
26,568 27,546
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9. Employee future benefits and other liabilities (continued)
a) Liability for Workplace Safety & Insurance (“WSIB”)

The City is a Schedule Il employer under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act. As a Schedule Ii

employer, the City assumes the liability for any award made under the Act.

A comprehensive actuarial

valuation of the future liability for WSIB benefits was conducted as at December 31, 2009 and has been
extrapolated {o estimate the liability for the 2010 through 2012 period. The next required valuation will

be as of December 31, 2012.

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in estimating the City’'s WSIB liabilities are as follows:

Discount rate

Expected future WSIB payments per lost time injury
Health care inflation

WSIB Administration Rate

Lost time injury count

Information about the City’s WSIB liability is as follows:

5% (2009 - 5%)

52% (2009 - 61%)

CPI plus 4% (2009 - CPI plus 4%)

22% (2009 - 25%)

46 (2009 - 36)

2012 2011
$ $
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 4,153 3,949
Current service cost 735 712
Interest 208 198
Benefits paid (737) (706)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 4,359 4,153
Unamortized net actuarial loss (492) (604)
3,867 3,549
Information about the City’s WSIB expenses recognized in the period are as follows:
2012 2011
$ $
Current period benefit cost 735 712
Amortization of net actuarial loss from December 31, 2009 15 15
Amortization of net actuarial loss from December 31, 2006 97 97
Interest expense 208 198
1,055 1,022

A reserve in the amount of $2,246 (2011 - $2,203) has been accumulated to fund this liability.

b) Liability for sick leave

Under the sick leave benefit plan, unused sick leave can accumulate for certain employees and these

employees may become entitled to a cash payment when they leave the City’s employment.

A comprehensive actuarial valuation was completed as of December 31, 2010 and the next required

valuation will be as of December 31, 2013.
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9. Employee future benefits and other liabilities (continued)
b) Liability for sick leave (continued)

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in estimating the City’s sick leave liabilities are as follows:

+ Discount rate 4.75% (2009 - 5%)
¢ Inflation rate 2% (2009 - 2%)
o Future salaries 3.5% per year (2009 — 3.5%)
Information about the City’s sick leave liability is as follows:
2012 2011
$ $
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 12,401 9,353
Current service cost 982 919
Interest 591 561
Plan amendment (2,777) -
Net actuarial loss , - 2,403
Benefits paid (894) {835)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year i 10,303 . 12,401
Unamortized net actuarial loss , ’ : {2,015) C(2,479)
8,288 10,222

During 2012, the CUPE 241 and 1946 collective bargaining unions ratified a new contract that
eliminated the accumulated sick leave benefit. As a result, the City obtained an updated actuarial
valuation for sick leave for these two plans as of December 31, 2012. This plan amendment resulted in
a reduction to the sick leave obligation of $2,777 in 2012.

Information about the City’s sick leave expenditures recognized in the period are as follows:

2012 2011

$ $

Current period benefit cost 982 919
Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss 164 168
Plan amendment (2,777) -
Interest expense 591 561
{(1,040) 1,648

There are currently reserves totaling $7,701 (2011 - $10,446) available to fund this liability.

¢) Post retirement benefits

The City provides dental and health care benefits between the time an employee retires under OMERS,
or retires at a normal retirement age, up to the age of 65.

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in estimating the City’s liabilities are as follows:

¢ Discountrate 4.75% (2009 — 5.0%)

* Consumer price index 2.0% (2009 - 2.0%)

e Prescription Drugs Trend Rate 7.67% reducing 4.0% per year to reach 4.0% per
year starting in 2019 (2009 — no change)

¢ Dental and other Medical Trend Rates 4.0% (2009 — 4.0%)
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10.

Employee future benefits and other liabilities (continued)

¢c) Post retirement benefits

Information about the City’s employee post retirement benefits are as follows:

2012 2011

$ $

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 15,250 14,812
Current service cost 670 627
Interest 720 697
Benefits paid (875) {886)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 15,765 15,250
Unamortized net actuarial loss {1,352) {1,475)
14,413 13,775

Information about the City’'s employee future benefit expenses recognized in the period are as follows:

2012 2011

$ $

Current period benefit cost 670 627
Amortization of net actuarial loss 123 123
Interest expense 720 697
1,513 1,447

A comprehensive actuarial valuation was completed as of December 31, 2010 and the next required
valuation will be as of December 31, 2013.

There are currently reserves totaling $1,624 (2011 — $1,945) available to fund this liability.

Net debt
a) The balance of the net debt reported on the statement of financial position is comprised of the
following:
2012 2011
$ $
Total debt incurred by the City
including those incurred on behalf of related organizations
and outstanding at the end of the year amount to 108,158 118,282
Less: debt recoverable from school boards - (680)
Net debt at the end of the year 108,158 117,602
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10. Net debt (continued)

b) The net debt is comprised of the following components:

2012 2011

$ $

Demand loan - interest only at 3.7%, maturing in 2012 - 10,000

Debentures - repayable at rates ranging from 0.095% to 5.237%

and maturing from 2014 through 2031 89,151 97,601
Long-term loans - repayable at rates ranging from 2.105% to 6.38%

and maturing in 2017 and 2025 19,007 10,001

108,158 117,602

During 2012, the City repaid the maturing demand loan of $10,000 and concurrently entered into a
floating rate five-year term facility of the same value which is fixed at 2.105% via an interest rate SWAP.
The City also renegotiated a term loan that matured in 2012 for an additional 5 years at a rate of 3.04%.

During 2011, the City issued a $46,750 debenture, repayable over 10 years at a coupon rate of 3.12%.
This debenture was issued to fund $33,700 of capital projects as well as to refinance a $13,050

debenture that matured in 2011.

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is $1,584 (2011 - $1,792) representing the fair

market value of the interest rate swap facilities.

All net debt is payable in Canadian dollars. Refer to schedule 3 for further details.

c) The net debt is repayable in the following periods and will be funded through the following revenue

sources:
General taxation User pay and Deyelgper Total
other contributions
$ $ $ $
2013 6,342 1,654 1,708 9,704
2014 6,501 1,691 1,781 9,973
2015 6,711 1,423 1,817 9,951
2016 6,924 1,460 1,854 10,238
2017 16,540 1,483 1,926 19,949
Thereafter 34,799 9,474 4,070 48,343
77,817 17,185 13,156 108,158
d) Total charges during the year for net debt are as follows:
2012 2011
$ $
Principal repayments 19,444 21,991
Interest 4,333 4,350
23,777 26,341
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1.

12.

Financing Agreement

On December 19, 2012, the City, the County of Wellington and the County of Dufferin (the “obligated
municipalities”) entered into a Financing Agreement with the Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Heath
(“Public Health”) to finance the cost of building two new Public Health facilities at Chancellors Way,
Guelph, and Broadway, Orangeville.

The Financing Agreement allows for quarterly advances of capital by the obligated municipalities to
Public Health beginning in January 2013, until the completion of the new facilities. The total amount of
the advances will not exceed $24,400. Interest will be calculated annually, commencing on the 1st day
of the month following the date of substantial completion of both facilities. The interest rate will be 3.34%
per annum, and the term and amortization of the loan will be twenty years. Repayment to the obligated
municipalities will commence thirty days following certification by the project’s architect of substantial
completion of both facilities. The whole or any part of the capital financing under this agreement may be
prepaid at any time or times without penalty or bonus.

Landfill post-closure liability

The City owns one landfill site. This landfill site was closed in 2003. The liability for post-closure costs
has been reported on the unconsolidated statement of financial position. The liability was calculated
based upon the present value of estimated post-closure costs discounted to December 31, 2012 at a
factor of 3.5% (2011 - 5.0%) per annum. Post-closure care is estimated. to be required for 35 years
from the date of site closure.

The estimated expenditures for post-closure care as at December 31, 2012 is $5,050 (2011 - $5,700).

There are no reserve funds established to fund this liability as at December 31, 2012, as the City is
funding this cost annually through the budget process.
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13.

Other long-term liabilities

The City offers three tax-increment based grant (“TIBG”) programs in the areas of Heritage
Redevelopment, Brownfield Redevelopment and Downtown Development.

The tax-increment based grants are approved individually by Council and require annual reporting and
property tax payment by the applicant into order for the City to pay a grant installment. The agreements
have two identifiable phases: i) grant pre-approval and construction phase; ii) grant approval and
payment phase.

in 2012, the City has two TIBG agreements that are in the grant payment phase:

a) TIBG Agreements

2012

$

Heritage Redevelopment » 396

b) The TIBG's are repayable in the following periods:

$
2013 98
2014 98
2015 98
2016 98
2017 2
Thereafter 2
396

Page 18



City of Guelph

Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements

December 31, 2012
($000’s)
14. Tangible capital assets
2012
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Cost of year Additions Disposals of year
$ $ $ $
Land and land improvements 67,900 4,756 72,656
Buildings 222,016 11,672 {416) 233,272
Machinery and equipment 107,231 17,923 {1,073) 124,081
Vehicles 56,258 7,640 (1,289) 62,609
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 250,938 10,053 (2) 260,989
Storm water 169,823 1,175 180,998
Transportation 341,805 31,686 373,491
Waterworks 195,512 25,147 220,659
Assets under construction 79,544 (50,982) 28,562
1,491,027 69,070 (2,780) 1,557,317
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Accumulated amortization of year Amortization Disposals of year
$ $ $ $
Land and land improvements 3,568 649 4,217
Buildings 48,589 8,554 {290) 56,853
Machinery and equipment 73,695 7,212 (844) 80,063
Vehicles 29,015 5,157 {(1,075) 33,097
Infrastructure :
Sanitary sewers & waste water 120,396 4,196 (2) 124,590
Storm water 42,146 2,944 45,090
Transportation 179,459 6,819 186,278
Waterworks 79,835 4,032 83,867
576,703 39,563 (2,211) 614,055
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Net book value of year of year
$ $
Land and land improvements 64,332 68,439
Buildings 173,427 176,419
Machinery and equipment 33,536 44,018
Vehicles 27,243 29,512
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 130,542 136,399
Storm water 127,677 135,908
Transportation 162,346 187,213
Waterworks 115,677 136,792
Assets under construction 79,544 28,562
914,324 943,262
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14. Tangible capital assets (continued)

2011
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Cost of year Additions Disposals of year
$ $ $ $
Land and land improvements 38,916 32,551 (3,567) 67,900
Buildings 158,419 63,632 (35) 222,016
Machinery and equipment 103,886 3,359 (14) 107,231
Vehicles 60,429 2,501 (6,672) 56,258
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 246,379 4,559 - 250,938
Storm water 163,535 6,288 - 169,823
Transportation 312,695 29,110 - 341,805
Waterworks 183,466 12,046 - 195,512
Assets under construction 128,784 (49,240) - 79,544
‘ 1,396,509 104,806 (10,288) 1,491,027
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Accumulated amortization of year Amortization Disposals of year
$ $ $ $
Land and land improvements 3,287 283 (2) 3,568
Buildings 43,639 4,979 (29) 48,589
Machinery and equipment 66,980 6,723 (8) 73,695
Vehicles 29,568 5,482 (6,035) 29,015
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 115,905 4,491 120,396
Storm water 39,519 2,627 42,146
Transportation 173,284 6,175 179,459
Waterworks 74,931 4,904 79,835
547,113 35,664 (6,074) 576,703
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Net book value of year of year
$ $
Land and land improvements 35,629 64,332
Buildings 114,780 173,427
Machinery and equipment 36,906 33,536
Vehicles 30,861 27,243
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 130,474 130,542
Storm water 124,016 127,677
Transportation 139,411 162,346
Waterworks 108,535 115,677
Assets under construction 128,784 79,544
849,396 914,324
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15.  Accumulated surplus

The accumulated surplus is comprised of the following components:

2012 2011
$ $
Reserves set aside for specific purpose by Council:
for employee future benefits 11,571 14,594
for stabilization and contingency 11,395 10,5622
for program related purposes 10,883 10,324
Total reserves - Schedule 4 33,849 35,440
Reserve funds set aside for specific purpose by Council:
for capital financing purposes - Schedule 4 113,660 105,697
Total reserves and reserve funds 147,509 141,137
- Invested in tangible capital assets 943,262 914,324
Investment in Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc. 76,367 78,260
Investment in Guelph Junction Railway Company 6,225 5,950
Operating fund (11,004) (4,914)
Unfunded liabilities
Net debt (108,158) {117,602)
Employee future benefits and related liabilities (31,693) (32,561)
Landfill post closure liability {5,050) (5,700)
Total 869,949 837,757
Accumulated surplus 1,017,458 978,894

In accordance with the City’s policy for reserve funds, interest is earned on the average reserve fund
balance for the year at the average internal rate of return earned during the year. In 2012, $1,827 (2011
- $2,484) of interest was earned by the reserve funds and is recorded as a decrease in investment
income and an adjustment to the ending accumulated surplus.

16. Contributions to other entities

Contributions made to other entities during the year greater than $100 are as follows:

2012 2011

$ $

Grand River Conservation Authority 1,429 1,395
Hospice Wellington ) 200 200
Guelph General Hospital 200 200
MacDonald Stewart Art Centre 160 175
Humane Society 611 459
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 1,579 1,529
4,179 3,958
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17. Expenditures by type

The following is a summary of the current expenditures reported on the unconsolidated statement of
operations and accumulated surplus by the type of expenditures:

2012 2011

$ $

Salaries, wages and employee benefits 149,427 141,104
Interest on net debt 4,333 4,350
Materials 40,408 34,303
Purchased services 27,241 22,660
Rents and financial expenses 8,629 9,719
External transfers 54,967 52,159
Amortization of tangible capital assets 39,563 35,664
324,568 299,959

18. Shared service agreements

Certain programs as mandated by provincial legislation are managed by neighboring municipalities on
behalf of the City and certain programs are also managed by the City on behalif of other municipalities.

The City’s share of revenues and expenditures from social service programs managed by Wellington
County are as follows:

2012 2011
$ $
Revenues
Social housing 2,905 3,001
Child care 7,483 7,254
Social services 13,179 12,774
23,567 23,029
Expenditures
Social housing 16,207 16,817
Child care 9,934 9,371
Social services 17,661 17,219
43,802 43,407
Net expenditures (20,235) (20,378)

The City’s share of net expenditures for social housing is 83% (2011 - 86%), child care 76% (2011 —
78%) and social services 70% (2011 — 74%).

Additionally, the City paid the County $1,164 (2011 - $1,112) for the City’'s share of expenditures for the
operation of Wellington Terrace, a long-term care facility.
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18.

19.

20.

Shared service agreements (continued)

The City’s share of revenues and expenditures from programs managed by the City are as follows:

2012 2011
$ $
Revenues
Land Ambulance 4,059 3,504
Provincial Offences Act 1,942 1,878
6,001 5,382
Expenditures
Land Ambulance 8,362 7,813
Provincial Offences Act 1,203 1,048
9,565 8,861
Net expenditures (3,564) (3,479)

The City's share of net expenditures for land ambulance is 61% (2011 - 81%) and Provincial Offences
Actis 53% (2011 — 53%).

The Provincial Offences Act revenues are recorded on a cash basis due to regulatory restrictions. As at
December 31, 2012 there are $6,661 (2011 - $6,872) of over-due fines receivable and of this amount
$324 (2011 - $734) is considered uncollectable.

The City’s share of the net expenditures for all the above programs, are included in the unconsolidated
statement of operations and accumulated surplus.

Contingencies

a) In 2008, Urbacon Buildings Group Corp. served a Statement of Claim against the City pursuant to
the Construction Lien Act seeking damages in excess of $12,000 and punitive and other damages
totaling over $7,000. The City has filed a Statement of Defense and Counterclaim claiming
damages in the amount of $5,000. The City has also filed claims against other parties relating to this
action totaling $6,800. The trial on the issue of liability commenced January 2013 and is still on-

going.

b) During 2010, a claim was filed against the City seeking damages of $2,000 in relation to
development charge disputes. The matter is currently on-going and the next court date is scheduled
for July, 2013.

¢) From time to time, the City may be involved in other claims in the normal course of business.
Management assesses such claims and where considered likely to be material exposure and, where
the amount of the claim is quantifiable, provisions for loss are made based on management's
assessment of likely outcome. The City does not provide for claims that are considered unlikely to
result in a significant loss, claims for which the outcome is not determinable or claims where the
amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated. Any settlements or awards under such claims are
provided when reasonably determinable.

Commitments and guarantees

a) The City has guaranteed a non-revolving facility for Guelph Community Sports which is supported by
Council resolution authorizing provision of such guarantee in favour of Guelph Community Sports.
The balance of the guaranteed facility is $588 as at August 31, 2012.
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20.

21,

Commitments and guarantees (continued)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

9)

h)

In February 2013, a setllement was reached regarding an appeal of the City’s development charge
by-law. The resuiting settlement will require the City to refund development charges back to certain
developers; the amount of which is not yet finalized. This refund will result in a decrease to deferred
contributions in the year it is paid.

The City has a financial commitment approximating $3,150 resulting from the Ministry of
Transportation’s initiative to expand GO train service into Guelph; terms of payment have not yet
been finalized.

The City has commitments under a variety of leases and agreements of which the longest expires on
June 18, 2088. The minimum lease payments over the next five years are as follows:

$

2013 467
2014 338
2015 298
2016 290
2017 283
1,676

The City has commitments totaling $2,050 (2011 - $802) resulting from agreements entered into as
part of the Heritage Redevelopment Grant Program. Grant expenditures will be recognized upon the
applicant meeting all the eligibility criteria.

The City has commitments totaling $3,821 (2011 - $3,527) resulting from agreements entered into
as part of the Brownfield Tax Increment Based Grant Program. Grant expenditures will be
recognized in the year of reassessment by MPAC and when all eligibility criteria have been met by
the applicant.

The City has commitments totaling $1,507 (2011 - nil) resulting from agreements entered into as part
of the Major Downtown Activation Grant Program. Grant expenditures will be recognized in the year
of reassessment by MPAC and when all eligibility criteria have been met by the applicant.

Other obligations include:
MacDonald Stewart Arts Centre
The City has committed to operating grants for 2012 totalling $179 (2011 - $174).

Other community grants

The City has committed to providing various grants to organizations in the community totalling $435
(2011 - $312).

Local Immigration Partnership

Included in the unconsolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus are the activities of the
Local Immigration Partnership Program (LIPP) which is a federally funded program for the purpose of
creating a more welcoming community for immigrants by focusing efforts on employment services,
English language training, community integration/inclusion and community services/programs. During
2012, the City of Guelph received $228 (2011 - $243) of funding from Citizenship and Immigration
Canada related to the operation this program.
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22,

23.

Budget figures

Budgets are established to set tax rates or to finance projects which may be carried out over one or
more years. Budget figures have been translated to reflect changes in PSAB standards on the
unconsolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus by adjusting for amortization of
tangible capital assets, including the consolidated entities and excluding budgeted amounts for the debt
principal repayment and reserve transfers. Budget figures have not been audited.

Segmented information

The City of Guelph is a diversified municipal government institution that provides a wide range of
services to its citizens. For management reporting purposes, the City’s operations and activities are
organized and reported on in two groups: Operating Fund and Capital Fund. These funds were created
for the purpose of recording specific activities to attain certain objectives in accordance with special
regulations, restrictions or limitations. Within the operating fund, the City’s operations are further defined
into the Tax Supported and User Pay/Enterprise categories and then segregated in to five service area
pillars: Community & Social Services, Operations, Transit and Emergency Services, Planning & Building
and Engineering & Environment, Corporate & Human Resources, Finance & Enterprise.

Although City services are provided internally by these defined service areas, for financial reporting, the
City has chosen to remain consistent with the Ontario Financial information Return (FIR) and the nine
functional areas that it prescribes. This will allow comparability between our Schedule of Segment
Disclosure (Schedules 1 and 2 aftached) and several schedules on the FIR that already require full
segment disclosure of operating expenditures and limited disclosure of current operating revenues.

The services that have been separately disclosed in the segmented information are defined by the
compositional requirements of the FIR as follows:

General Government
Governance (election management, Council, Council support, Office of the Mayor)

Corporate management (Office of the CAQ, finance, corporate communications, legal, corporate
properties and real estate and information technology)

Protection services

Police services, fire services, 911 service, court operations, building and structural inspection,
parking enforcement, by-law enforcement and animal control

Transportation services

Roadways - including asphalt resurfacing and crack sealing, line painting, sweeping, traffic
operations and maintenance of roadside areas, culverts and bridges.

Winter control, street lighting, parking and public transit
Environmental services
Water, Wastewater, storm sewers, and solid waste collection, disposal and recycling
Health services
Land ambulance operations
Social housing
Social housing program costs
Social and family services

General assistance (Ontario Works) and childcare programs, and contributions to Wellington
Terrace
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23. Segmented information {(continued)
Recreation and cultural services

Parks, recreational facilities, recreational programs, libraries, museums, River Run Centre,
Sleeman Centre and other cultural services

Planning and development services
Planning and zoning, Committee of Adjustment, tourism and economic development
24. Comparative figures

Certain 2011 comparative figures have been reclassified in order to present them in a form comparable
to those for 2012.
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year ended December 31, 2012
(Unaudited)

General Protection Transportation Environmental Health Social & Family Social Recreation &  Planning and
Government Services Services Services Services Services Housing Cultural Services  Development Total
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Revenues
Taxation 185,881 - - - - - - - - 185,881
User charges 252 959 11,888 51,089 32 412 - 6,141 882 71,655
Contributed subdivision assets 20,744 - - - - - - - - 20,744
Contributions 120 1,712 8,899 7,821 9,594 20,719 2,905 3,329 433 55,532
Other
Investment income 4,086 - 55 602 - - - 4,743
Donations - 38 - - - - - 567 - 605
Sales of equipment, publications - 1 8 3,429 80 1,422 15 4,955
Recoveries 470 447 7,908 648 - 108 - 934 153 10,668
Licences and permits 65 2,687 - 59 - - - - - 2,811
Provincial offences act - 3,813 - - - - - - - 3,813
Other fines - 874 - - - - - - - 874
Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets 169 48 {202) (59} 9 - - 677 - 642
Loss from Government Business Enterprises (1,618) - - - - - - - - (1,618}
210,169 10,579 28,501 63,042 9,635 21,921 2,905 13,070 1,483 361,305
Expenses
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 12,579 58,286 26,427 17,541 11,437 770 - 19,239 3,148 149,427
Interest on net debt 1,046 488 252 1,417 5 378 - 675 372 4,333
Materials 1,599 1,949 20,907 10,512 574 164 23 4,381 299 40,408
Purchased services 5,325 2,943 3,609 9,991 423 303 492 2,875 1,280 27,241
Rents and financial expenses 1,983 139 962 3,928 193 73 - 1,340 " 8,629
External transfers 1,592 1,325 - 1,472 3,066 28,767 16,665 900 1,180 54,967
Internal charges (5,435) 848 (5,620) 6,272 1,287 537 - 1,993 118 -
Amortization of tangible capital assets 3,351 2,999 11,546 15,138 451 356 20 5,249 453 39,563
22,040 68,977 58,083 65,971 17,436 31,348 17,200 36,652 6,861 324,568
Excess of revenues over expenses
{expenses over revenues) 188,129 (58,398) (29,582) (2,929} (7,801) (9,427) (14,295) (23,582) (5,378) 36,737
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year ended December 31, 2011

(Unaudited)
General Protection Transportation Environmental Health  Social & Family Social Recreation &  Planning and
Government Services Services Services Services Services Housing Cultural Services  Development Total
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Revenues
Taxation 176,262 - - - - - - - - 176,262
User charges 295 845 12,140 46,465 1 203 6,008 786 66,743
Contributed subdivision assets 9,901 - - - - - - - - 9,901
Contributions (95) 3,080 21,436 15,134 8,905 20,484 3,001 7,559 159 79,663
Other
Investment income 2,502 - - 47 - 999 - - - 3,548
Donations - 23 23 - - - - 535 5 586
Sales of equipment, publications - 14 8 3,879 - 86 - 1,210 13 5,210
Recoveries 103 248 4,443 469 9 98 - 1,049 200 6,619
Licences and permits 265 2,400 - 77 - - » . - 2,742
Provincial offences act - 3,652 - - - - - - - 3,652
Other fines - - 745 - - - - - - 745
Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets 372 52 {519) (6) (29) - - - 5,983 5,853
Income from Government Business Enterprises 617 - - - - - - - - 617
190,222 10,314 38,276 66,065 8,886 21,870 3,001 16,361 7,146 362,141
Expenses
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 10,819 55,667 25,236 17,147 10,524 657 - 17,769 3,285 141,104
Interest on net debt 1,082 512 292 542 5 830 - 660 427 4,350
Materials 1,512 1,878 13,800 11,763 545 189 38 4,356 122 34,303
Purchased services 4,871 2,595 3,098 7,775 394 121 502 2,637 667 22,660
Rents and financial expenses 2,970 194 1,109 4,094 203 100 - 1,041 8 9,719
External transfers 2,024 1,246 - 1,482 2,591 26,895 16,730 586 605 52,159
Internal charges (6,979) 1,273 (2,837) 5,089 1,334 42 1 1,934 143 -
Amortization of tangible capital assets 2,736 1,506 11,316 15,310 352 111 20 4,260 53 35,664
19,035 64,871 52,114 63,202 15,948 28,945 17,291 33,243 5,310 299,959
Excess of revenues over expenses
{expenses over revenues) 171,187 (54,557) (13,838) 2,863 (7,062) (7,075) (14,290) (16,882) 1,836 62,182

Page 28



City of Guelph

Unconsolidated schedule of net debt - Schedule 3

December 31, 2012
('000's)
Bylaw Project description Term Maturity date Interest rates 2012 2011
$ $
Debentures:
17536 On behalf of the Elfiott 10 15-Sep-14 2.75% to 5.20% 593 868
18105 New City Hall 25 28-Aug-31 5.237% 16,815 17,323
18105 New POA Court 25 28-Aug-31 5.237% 4,743 4,886
18622 Social Services Building Renovation 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% t0 4.70% 1,753 2,004
18622 Police HQ Renovations 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% 10 4.70% 814 931
18622 Road Projects - Gordon, Victoria, Cardigan, Clair 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% t0 4.70% 3,443 3,937
18622 Bus Siorage Area Expansion 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% tc 4.70% 118 135
18622 Organic Waste Facility - Roof Repairs 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% t0 4.70% 322 368
18898 Road Projects - Gordon, Victoria, Eramosa 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 554 624
18898 South End Station 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % t0 4.60% 4,851 5,467
18898 New City Hall 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 1,674 1,887
18898 Land Purchase - Library 10 25-Nov-18  .095 % to 4.60% 619 697
18898 Public Drop Off Facility 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 157 177
18898 Transit Terminal Road Upgrades 10 25-Nov-19 095 % t0 4.60% 1,358 1,531
18898 Watermain Projects - Laird, Arkell, Scout Camp 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 4,631 5,219
18898 Waste Water Treatment Plant Facility Upgrade 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 4,256 4,797
19294 Organic Waste Facility Composter Rebuild 10 9-Nov-21 1.25% to 3.70% 25,424 28,000
19294 Civic Museum Renvovations 10 9-Nov-21 1.25% t0 3.70% 5,176 5,700
19294 On behalf of the Elliott 10 9-Nov-21 1.25% to 3.70% 11,850 13,050
89,151 97,601
Other loans:
Mortgage RBC - Sleeman Centre 10 01-May-17 3.04% ‘,'(29%10/1) 3,483 4,204
CIBC Loan - Sleeman Centre - SWAP 18.8 01-Sep-25 6.38% 5,524 5,797
RBC Interest only loan Demand 31-Dec-12 3.70% - 10,000
TD Interest only loan 5 31-Dec-17 2.105% 10,000 -
Net Debt before the school boards 108,158 117,602
15648 Public School Board 15 18-Dec-12 4.50% to 6.20% - 451
15648 Separate School Board 15 18-Dec-12 4.50% to 6.20% - 229
Less: Receivable from School Boards - (680)
Recoverable from Schooi Boards - -
Total Net Debt 108,158 117,602
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4

December 31, 2012
('000's)
Code Description 2012 2011
$ $
Reserves:
For Employee Future Benefits:
100 Sick Leave - Fire 3,593 3,531
101 Sick Leave - Police 3,558 3,297
102 Sick Leave - Library 328 894
103 Sick Leave - CUPE 241 222 2,724
330 WSIB 2,246 2,203
338 Land Ambulance Severance 440 345
212 Early Retiree Benefits 1,184 1,600
11,571 14,594
For Stabilization and Contingency:
131 Employee Benefit Stabilization 3,102 2,132
180 Tax Rate Stabilization 1,894 1,894
181 Water Rate Stabilization 2,114 2,114
182 Waste Water Rate Stabilization 2,342 2,242
198 Operating Contingency 902 902
191 Human Resource Contingency 1,041 1,238
11,395 10,522
For Program Related:
184 Insurance 1,593 1,328
119 Affordable Housing 637 653
122 Brownfield Strategy 205 512
206 Building Operating Maintenance 62 81
192 Heritage Redevelopment 950 908
193 Ontario Municipal Board 3,040 4,054
194 Downtown Improvements 207 360
195 Election Costs 441 314
196 Joint Job Evaluation Committee 329 330
345 Westminster Woods 35 35
208 Social Housing 200 300
197 Human Resource Negotiations 375 89
210 Information Technology Licences 320 210
211 POA Contingency 26 -
205 Community Investment Strategy 50 50
179 Strategic Priorities 2,413 1,100
10,883 10,324
Total Reserves 33,849 35,440
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4

December 31, 2012
('000's)
Code Description 2012 2011
$ $
Reserve Funds:
111 Fire 1,503 356
113 Transit 118 219
115 Police 114 268
116 Waste Management 2,013 1,335
118 Computers 558 459
121 Play Equipment 295 345
124 Operations Fleet 2,161 3,215
120 POA Relocation 790 179
135 Museum Development 252 58
136 McCrae House Development 142 137
137 Moon-McKeigan 14 13
138 Library Bequests 196 174
150 Capital Taxation 1,644 2,520
151 Capital Parking 1,300 1,961
162 Capital Waterworks 28,768 22,469
153 Capital Wastewater 33,787 26,095
154 Capital Strategic Plan 15 -
155 Capital Landfill Compensation 126 134
156 Capital DC Exemption 2,009 3,158
157 Capital Library 849 828
158 Capital Police 2,916 2,556
159 Accessibility 514 505
160 Road Infrastructure 3,440 2,993
161 Public Transit Improvements 21 594
162 Capital Sleeman Centre 3 9
164 Capital Roads 972 1,396
165 Capital Stormwater 237 181
166 Capital Park Planning 75 84
167 Capital Policy Planning 245 60
168 Capital Economic Development 22 71
169 Capital Operations 445 551
170 Capital Recreation - 103
171 Capital Culture 171 124
172 Capital Transit 1,496 555
173 Capital Fire 132 281
175 Capital Corporate Property 25 14
176 Capital Info Services 74 153
177 Capital Museum - 41
178 Tree Donation - -
186 Capital Waste Management 695 493
189 Capital GSEC 42 31
190 Building Life Cycle 876 654
199 City Infrastructure Fund - 2,494
200 Investing Ontario Act 1,123 2,154
201 ISF - City Share Water - 958
202 ISF - City Share Waste Water - 1,143
Carried forward {o next page 90,178 82,121
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4

December 31, 2012
('000's)
Code Description 2012 2011
$ $
Carried forward from previous page 90,178 82,121
203 RINC City Share - 6
331 Road Widening 973 954
332 Industrial Land 1,757 4,254
340 Capital River Run 113 195
341 Locomotive 6167 1 1
350 Transportation Demand Management 21 21
351 Capital Renewal 14,359 14,093
352 Greenhouse Gas 687 527
353 Waterworks DC Exempt 2,469 1,698
354 Wastewater DC Exempt 2,491 1,543
355 Greening 57 81
356 Public Art 207 203
357 Brownfield Capital 347 -
Total Reserve Funds 113,660 105,697
Total Reserves and Reserve Funds 147,509 141,137
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City of Guelph

Guelph Public Library Board - Schedule 5

Statement of Revenue and Expense

December 31, 2012
(000's)
2012 2012 2011
Budget Actual Actual
OPERATING FUND
Revenue
Grant - Province of Ontario $ 168 $ 168 $ 126
Donations 58 90 6
Fees and service charges 310 307 389
Sundry revenue 7 7 53
543 572 574
Expenses
Administrative and office 1 10 7
Operating supplies 262 236 500
Repairs and maintenance 392 510 429
Interest on long-term debt - 26 27
Consulting and professional fees 35 34 64
Communications 172 163 163
Amortization - 730 280
Training 16 12 14
Salaries and benefits 5,433 5,996 5,278
Rental and leases 819 771 747
Furniture and equipment 23 24 41
Utilities and taxes 157 116 120
7,310 8,628 7,670
Net operating deficit (6,767) (8,056) (7,096)
CAPITAL FUND
Developer contribution revenues - 1 52
Less: Tangible capital asset acquisitions (1,094) (1,136) (963)
Net capital deficit (1,094) (1,135) (911)
Total combined net deficit (7,861) (9,191) (8,007)
Less: net contributions (to)/from reserves 60 116 139
Less: debt principal repayments (79) (79) (77)
(7,880) (9,154) (7,945)
City of Guelph share of net deficit 7,880 9,154 7,945
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ - 3 -
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City of Guelph
Guelph Police Services Board - Schedule 6
Statement of Revenue and Expense

December 31, 2012
('000's)
2012 2012 2011
Budget Actual Actual
OPERATING FUND
Revenue
Grant - Province of Ontario 1,190 § 1,351 § 1,170
Gain on sale of tangible capital assets 85 65 61
Other fees and recoveries 786 1,253 1,024
2,061 2,669 2255
Expenses
Amortization - 1,091 806
Personnel supplies 145 175 154
Professional consulting 935 963 775
Fleet 598 545 537
Repairs and maintenance 302 275 196
Corporate training and development 429 346 305
Rental and lease 115 85 136
Communication 216 203 183
Utilities, taxes and insurance 375 358 343
Banking and other fees 5 6 4
Equipment and furniture 114 128 67
Operating, admin and office supplies 265 232 260
Interest on long-term debt - 132 142
Salaries and benefits 31,746 31,195 30,857
35,245 35,734 34,765
Net operating deficit (33,184) (33,065) (32,510)
CAPITAL FUND
Revenue
Developer contributions - - 448
Province of Ontario grants - 6) 173
Other revenues 13 13
- 7 634
Expenses
Tangible capital asset acquisitions 12,529 1,203 1,800
Net capital deficit (12,529) (1,196) (1,166)
Total combined net deficit (45,713) (34,261) (33,676)
Add: net contributions from reserves 1,218 570 1,217
Less: debt principal repayments 11,168 (399) (406)
(33,327) (34,090) (32,865)
City of Guelph share of net deficit (33,327) (34,090) (32,865)

Fund balance, end of year
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